Towne Park
Community Development District

12051 Corporate Boulevard, Oriando, FL 32817, 407.723.5900
www.towneparkcdd.com

The following is the proposed agenda for the Board of Supervisors' Meeting for the Towne Park
Community Development District, scheduled to be held Thursday, August 8, 2019 at 11:00 a.m.
at the Offices of Highland Homes, 3020 S. Florida Avenue, Suite 101, Lakeland, Florida
33803. As always, the personal attendance of three Board Members will be required to constitute
a quorum.

If you would like to attend the Board Meeting by phone, you may do so by dialing:
Phone: 1-866-546-3377 Participant Code: 964985

PROPOSED BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETING AGENDA

Administrative Matters

* Roll Call to Confirm Quorum
» Public Comment Period {for any members of the public desiring to speak on any
proposition before the Board]
1. Consideration of Minutes of the July 11, 2019 Board of Supervisors Meeting

Business Matters

2. Public Hearing on Imposition of Debt Assessments
o Public Comments and Testimony
o Board Comments
o Consideration of Resolution 2019-15, Levying Debt Special Assessment

Consideration of Resolution 2019-16, Supplemental Assessment Resolution

4. Consideration of Collateral Assignment and Assumption of Development Rights
Relating to the Assessment Area 3B Project

5. Consideration of Agreement By and Between the District and Highland Sumner,
LLC, Regarding the Acquisition of Work Product, Improvements, and Real
Property

6. Consideration of Agreement By and Between the District and Highland Sumner,
LLC, Regarding True-Up as to Assessment Area 3B Assessments

7. Consideration of Agreement By and Between the District and Highland Sumner,
LLC, Regarding the Completion of Certain Improvements

8. Consideration of Bids for Phase 3 and Phase 4 Site Work Construction Services
(provided under separate cover)

9. Consideration of Floralawn Phase 2B Landscape Maintenance Proposal

10. Ratification of Payment Authorization No. 111

11. Consideration of Monthly Financials (provided under separate cover)

P

pfm



Other Business

Staff Reports
District Counsel
District Engineer
District Manager
Supervisor Requests and Audience Comments
Adjournment

pfm






Towne Park
Community Development District

Minutes



MINUTES OF MEETING

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETING

Thursday, July 11, 2019 at 11:07 a.m.

The Offices of Highland Homes

3020 S. Florida Avenue, Suite 101

Lakeland, Florida 33803

Board Members present at roll call:

Joel Adams Board Member
Brian Walsh Board Member
Jeffery Shenefield Board Member
Scott Shapiro Board Member (via phone)

Also Present:

Roy Van Wyk Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.
Jane Gaarlandt PFM
Sonali Patil PFM
Jennifer Glasgow PFM (via phone)
Amanda l.ane PFM (via phone)
Heather E. Wertz Absolute Engineering, Inc. {(via phone)
Art Lamb Public
Dave Hynes Public
Karen Jordan Public
Gale Tatlak Public
Don Stidham Pubilic
Sandy Stidham Public
Ringo Breton Public
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order and Roll Call

The meeting was called to order at approximately 11:07 a.m. The Board Members and staff in
attendance are as outlined above.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period

Members of the public brought up concerns regarding the budget and assessments. District staff
replied they will discuss it in detail during the public hearing.

Page 1 of 7



THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of the Minutes of the
June 10, 2019 Board of Supervisors’
Meeting

The Board reviewed the minutes of the June 10, 2019 Board of Supervisors’ Meeting.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board approved the
Minutes of the June 10, 2019 Board of Supervisors' Meeting.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2019-11,
Appointing District Officers

Ms. Gaarlandt stated the current slate of officers is as follows: Mr. Adams as Chair, Mr. Walsh as
Vice-chair, Mr. Shenefield as Assistant Secretary, Mr. Heath as Assistant Secretary, and Mr.
Shapiro as Assistant Secretary; and requested adding Ms. Lane as Treasurer, Ms. Glasgow as
Assistant Treasurer, and Ms. Patil as Assistant Secretary.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board approved
Resolution 2019-11, Appointing District Officers, as presented.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2019-12,
Annual Meeting Schedule for Fiscal
Year 2019/2020

Ms. Gaarlandt suggested keeping the same time and location which is the second Thursday of the
month at 11:00 a.m. at the offices of Highland Homes located at 3020 S. Florida Ave. Suite 101,
Lakeland, Florida 33803.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Shenefield, with all in favor, the Board adopted
Resolution 2019-12, Annual Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2019/2020.

Page 2 of 7




SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing on the Adoption of the

District’s Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Budget

a) Public Comments and Testimony

b) Board Comments

c) Consideration of Resolution 2019-
13, Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019-
2020 Budget and Appropriating
Funds

Ms. Gaarlandt stated that the public hearing was noticed and the County was notified according to
statutory requirements. Ms. Glasgow joined the meeting in progress at 11:16 a.m. via
speakerphone.

Ms. Gaarlandt requested a motion to open the public hearing.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Shenefield, with all in favor, the Board opened the
Public Hearing.

Ms. Lane joined the meeting in progress at 11:17 a.m. via speakerphone.

Ms. Gaarlandt presented the budget to the Board. The proposed budget is $430,950.00. It is an
increase from the previous year. Ms. Gaarlandt review the various line item increases to the budget.

Mr. Van Wyk explained the Debt Service Assessments. Ms. Wertz answered Board questions
regarding the number of lots in the different Phases. District staff explained the difference between
Debt Service, O&M and HOA fees. Homeowners brought up concerns regarding CDD fees. A
resident asked about pool keys. Residents brought up issues with the ponds and discussion took
place regarding pond maintenance. Ms. Gaarlandt asked a resident to send District Management
an email with his address and the pond he is referring so that staff can address the issue. She
asked residents to bring concerns to the attention of District Management so that they can address
the issues with the appropriate vendor.

A resident stated that there is no lighting at the mailboxes by the pool and suggested that lights be
put there. A resident asked for the Board to put out bids when the contracts expire. Mr. Van Wyk
explained the bidding process.

A resident asked about the bond pay off and what the assessment amount will be. District staff
stated that the yearly O&M assessment is $638.10 per unit. Another resident asked about the
adjustment to the budget. Mr. Adams responded that when they approved the preliminary budget
they adjusted it down. A discussion ensued. Mr. Van Wyk requested a motion to close the public
hearing.

Page 3 of 7




ON MOTION by Mr. Shenefield, seconded by Mr. Adams, with all in favor, the Board closed the
Public Hearing.

The Board had no comments.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board approved
Resoiution 2019-13, Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget and Appropriating Funds.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing on the Imposition of
Special Assessments to Fund the
District's Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Budget
a) Public Comments and Testimony
b) Board Comments
c) Consideration of Resolution 2019-

14, Adopting an Assessment Roll
for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and
Certifying  Assessments for
Collection

Ms. Gaarlandt requested a motion to open the public hearing.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board opened the Public
Hearing.

Ms. Glasgow explained the apportionment ot the assessment for O&M. The net assessment for
Phase 2A is $593.40 and the gross assessment is $638.10. A resident asked for clarification
regarding the assessmens. A discussion ensued.

ON MOTION by Mr. Shenefield, seconded by Mr. Adams, with all in favor, the Board closed the
Public Hearing.

Page 4 of 7




Mr. Van Wyk mentioned that by adopting this resolution, the Board is making findings of specific
benefit to the parcels and that the apportionment method is fair.

ON MOTION by Mr. Shenefield, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board adopted
Resolution 2019-14, Adopting an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and Certifying
Assessments for Collection

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing on Imposition of Debt
Assessments
a) Public Comments and Testimony
b) Board Comments
c) Consideration of Resolution 2019-
15, Levying Debt Assessments

Mr. Van Wyk explained that the Debt Assessments is in reference to the six lots that were outside
of Phase 2A up on the north end. The Board will be going through the process of refining the
assessments for those six lots. He requested that the Board open the public hearing, take public
comment and then continue this public hearing until the next meeting.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board opened the Public
Hearing.

There were no public comments related to the assessment. Mr. Van Wyk requested a motion to
continue the public hearing until the next scheduled Board meeting.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board continued the
Public Hearing and the consideration of Resolution 2019-15 until the next meeting.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Authorization to
Issue RFP for Phase 3 and Phase 4
Construction and Approval of
Evaluation Criteria

Mr. Van Wyk stated that Monday, July 15, 2019 is the date for pick-up of criteria; August 1, 2019 is
the cutoff date for questions; and the due date is August 14, 2019. A discussion took place

Page 5 of 7




regarding the date for the bid opening. The bid opening will take place on Wednesday, August 14,
2019 at 1:30 p.m. at the office of Absolute Engineering.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Shenefield, with all in favor, the Board approved the
Authorization to Issue RFP for Phase 3 and Phase 4 Construction and Approval of Evaiuation
Criteria, as amended by District Engineer.

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of the Fiscal Year 2017-
2018 Audited Financial Statements

The Board reviewed the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Audited Financial Statements.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board accepted the Fiscal
Year 2-17-2018 Audited Financial Statements.

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Payment Authorization
No. 109 - 110

The Board reviewed Payment Authorization No. 109 - 110.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board ratified Payment
Authorization No. 109 — 110.

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review of Monthly Financials

The Board reviewed the monthly financials. There was no action required by the Board.

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports

District Counsel - Mr. Van Wyk stated that District staff is moving closer to getting the bond
documents posted for Riverstone Phase 2. The District may have to have
a special meeting to consider the Supplemental Assessment Resolution
and reports. The bond documents may post today or tomorrow and pricing

Page 6 of 7




wili happen in about a week, A special meeting might be required the week
of July 24, 2019.

District Engineer — No Report

District Manager - Ms. Gaarlandt distributed the Amenity Facility Policies in regards to the
key cards. Currently, there is only one key card being handed out and she
suggested changing the language in the Amenity Facility Policies to the
language highlighted in yellow. Ms. Gaartandt discussed smoking policies
because it is in newer policies. Mr. Adams requested input from audience
members. The members of the public stated that it shouid be adjusted to
say that no smoking should take place outside. The Board addressed the
wording regarding the key cards to aliow for two per household.

ON MOTION by Mr. Adams, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board approved
amending the Amenity Facility Policies.

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests and Audience
Comments

There were no Supervisor requests or audience comments.

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

There were no other questions or comments. Ms. Gaarlandt requested a motion to adjourn.

ON MOTION by Mr. Shenefield, seconded by Mr. Walsh, with all in favor, the Board adjourned the
July 11, 2019 Board of Supervisor's Meeting for the Towne Park Community Development District.

Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman / Vice Chairman

Page 7 of 7







Towne Park
Community Development District

Resolution 2019-15



RESOLUTION 2019-15

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
THE TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT SUPPLEMENTING RESOLUTIONS 2015-09,
2015-17 AND 2016-07 TO INCLUDE LANDS ANNEXED INTO
THEDISTRICT’S BOUNDARIES; AUTHORIZING DISTRICT
IMPROVEMENTSS FOR CONSTRUCTION AND/OR
ACQUISITION OF INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS;
EQUALIZING, APPROVING, CONFIRMING,AND LEVYING
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ON PROPERTY SPECIALLY
BENEFITED BY SUCH IMPROVEMENTS TO PAY THE
COST THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND
THE COLLECTION OF SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BY
THE METHODS PROVIDED FOR BY CHAPTERS 170, 190,
AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTES; CONFIRMING THE
DISTRICT’S INTENTION TO ISSUESPECIAL ASSESSMENT
BONDS; MAKING PROVISIONS FOR TRANSFERS OF REAL
PROPERTY TO GOVERNMENTAL BODIES; PROVIDING
FOR THE RECORDING OF AN AMENDED ASSESSMENT
NOTICE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Towne Park Community Development District (“Distriict”) previously
indicated its intention to construct certain types of infrastiucturc improvements and to finance such
infrastructure improvements through the issuance of bonds, which bonds would be repaid by the
imposition of special assessments on benefited property within the District; and

WHEREAS, the District Board of Supervisors (*Board™) noticed and conducted a public
hearing pursuant to Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes, relating to the imposition, levy,
collection and enfiorcement of such assessments.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THEBOARD OF
SUPERVISORS OF THE TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION. This Resolution is adopted
pursuant to Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes, including without limitation, Section
170.08, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2. FINDINGS. The Board hereby finds and determines as follows:



(a) The District is a local unit of special-purpose government organized and existing
under and pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended.

(b) The District is authorized by Chapter 190, Flarida Statutes, to finance, fund, plan,
establish, acquire, install, equip, operate, extend, construct, or reconstruct certain infrastructure
improvements benefitting the lands within the District.

(c) The District is authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, to levy and impose
special assessments to pay all, or any part of, the cost of such infrastructure improvements and
services and to issue special assessment bonds payable from such special assessments as provided in
Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes.

(d) It is necessary to the public health, safety and welfare and in the best interests of the
District that (i) the District provide the “Improvements” (or the “Project™ as described in the Debt
Assessment Resolutions, hereinafter defined), the nature and location of which were initially
described in the District’s Preliminary Engineer's Report dated November 2014 (the “Master
Engineer’s Report”), and which is on file at the office of the District Manager c/o PFM Group
Consulting LLC, 12051 Corporate Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32817 (*District Records Offices™);
(ii) the cost of such Improvements be assessed against the lands specially benefitted by such
Jmprovements; and (iii) the District issue bonds to provide funds for such purposes pending the
receipt of such special assessments.

(e) The provision of said Improvements, the levying of such Special Assessments
(hereinafter defined) and the sale and issuance of such bonds serves a proper, essential, and valid
public purpose and is in the best interest of the District, its landowners and residents.

(9] In order to previde funds with which (o pay a portion of the costs of the
Improvements which are to be assessed against the benefitted properties, pending the collection of
such Special Assessments, it is necessary for the District from time to time to sell and issue its
Special Assessment Bonds, in one or more series (the “Bonds”).

(g) By Resolution 2015-09, the Board previously determined to provide the
Improvements and declared its intent to levy the Special Assessments, and thereafter, at a duly
noticed and held public hearing on January 21, 2015, adopted Resolution 2015-17, levying Special
Assessments upon all assessable lands within the boundary of the District, which were identifiedin
the Master Engineer’s Report, attached as Exhibit A to said Resolution 2015-17, pursuant to that
Adaopted Assessment Methodology dated January 21, 2015 (the “Master Assessment Report™).

(h) On June 9, 2016, the Boardadopted Resolution 2016-07, supplementing Resolution
2015-17 (Resolutions 2015-09, 2015-17 and 2016-07 collectively, the “Debt Assessment
Resolutions™), which (i) allocated and certified for collection the Series 2016 Assessments (as
defined in said Resolution 2016-07), (ii) secured the Series 2016 Bonds thereinafter defined), and
(iii) approved the Master Engineer’s Report, as supplemented by that First Supplemental Engineer's
Report Phase 2A & 2B (Assessment Area 1) dated May 12, 2016, attached as Exhibit A to this
Resolution and incorporated herein by this reference (*“First Supplemental Engineer's Report™, and



together with the Master Engineer’s Report, as amended from time to time, the “Engineer’s Report™),
which, among other things, identified and described the Improvements to be financed all or in part
with the Series 2016 Bonds (the “Series 2016 Project™) on lands described in the Debt Assessment
Resolutions (the ““‘Assessment Area 17).

(V) Pursuant to the Master Assessment Repoit, as supplemented by that Supplemental
Assessment Methodology (Series 2016 Bonds, Assessment Area 1)dated June 3, 2016, attached to
this Resolution as Composite Exhibit B (the “First Supplemental Assessment Repoit”, and together
wilh the Master Assessment Report, as amended from time to time, the “Assessment Report™), the
District issued its Towne Park Community Development District Special AssessmentBonds, Series
2016 (the “*Series 2016 Bonds™).

§); Thereafter, the developer of the lands located in Assessment Area | included
approximately | acre of land that was outside the external boundaries of the District (the **Anncxed
Lands™) as part of the Series 2016 Project.

(k) On April 1, 2019, the City Commission in and for the City of Lakeland, Florida
adopted Ordinance No. 5766, forthe purpose of expanding theexternal boundaries of the District to
include the Annexed Lands.

(1 Upon annexation of the Annexed Lands into the extemal boundaries of the District,
the District adopted Resolution 2019-10 on June 10, 2019, declaring its intent to levy and impose
special assessments upon the Annexed Lands (together with Assessment Area |, the “Benefitted
Properties™) to provide its proportionate share of the costs of the Improvements.

(m) Asdirected by this Resolution, which amends and supplements the Debt Assessment
Resolutions, the Bistrict confirms it authority to levy and impose special assessments to pay all, or
any pait of, the cost of such infrastructure Improvements and services and to issue special assessment
bonds payable from such special assessments as provided in Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida
Statures on the Benefitted Properties.

(n) As directed by Resolution 2019-10, said Resolution 2019-10 was published as
required by Section 170.05, Florida Statutes, and a copy of the publisher’s affidavit of publication is
on ftile with the Secretary of the Board.

(o) As directed by Resolution 2019-10, a prelinunary assessment roll was adopted and
filed with the Board as required by Section 170.06, Florida Statutes.

(p)  Asrequired by Section 170.07, Florida Statutes, and as directed by Resolution 2019-
10, upon completion of the preliminary assessment roll, the Board fixed tbe time and place for a
public hearing at which owners of the property to be assessed and other persons interested therein
may appear before the Board and be heard as to the propriety and advisability of making the
Improvements, the cost thereof, the manner of payment therefore, and the amount thereof to be
assessed against each specially benefited property or parcel and provided for publication of notice of
such public beating and individual mailed notice in accordance with Chapters 170, 190, and 197,
Florida Statutes.



(q Notice of such public hearing was given by mail as required by Section 170.07,
Florida Statutes. Affidavit of mailings is on file in the office of the Secretary of the Board.

(r) On July 11, 2019, at the time and place specified in Resolution 2019-10 and the
notice referred to in paragraph (q) above, the Board opened and continued the public hearing to
August 8, 2019, in order to allow proper publication of the notice of public hearing as required by
Section 170.07, Florida Statutes.

(8) Notice of the continued public bearing was given by publication as required by
Section 170.07, Florida Statutes. Affidavit of publication is on file in the office of the Secretary of
the Board.

(t) On August 8, 2019, at the time and place designated by the Board during public
heuaring opened and continued on July 11,2019, tbe Board met as an Equalization Board, conducted
such public hearing, and heard and considered all complaints and testimony as to the matters
described in paragraph (p) above. The Board has made such modifications in the preliminary
assessment roll as it deems necessary, just and right in the making of the final assessment roll.

(u) Having considered the estimated costs of the Improvements, estimates of financing
costs and all complaints and evidence presented at such public hearing, the Board further finds and
determines:

(i) that the estimated costs of the Improvements are as spectfied inthe Engineer’s
Report, which Engineer’s Report is hereby adopted and approved, and that the amount of
such costs is reasonable and proper;

(il) it is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the cost of such Improvements
against the properties specially benefited thereby using the method determined by the Board
set forth in the Assessment Report (attached hereto as CompositeExbibit B and incorporated
herein by this reference), for the Bonds, which results in the special assessments set forth on
the final assessment roll included within such Composite Exhibit B (the “Special
Assessmenis");

(ii)  the Assessment Report is hereby approved, adopted and confirmed. The
District ratifies its use in connection with the issuance of the Bonds;

(iv)  itisherebydeclaredthat the Improvements will constitutea special benefitto
al] parcels of real property listed on said final assessment roll and that the benefit, in the case
of each such parcel. will be equal to or in excess of the Special Assessments thereon when
allocated as set forth in Composite Exhibit B;

(v) that the costs of the Improvements arefairly and reasonably apportioned to the
Benefitted Properties as set forth in Composite Exhibit B; and

(vi) itis inthebestinterests of the District that the Special Assessments be paid
and collected as provided in the Debt Assessment Resolutions, as supplemented by this



Resolution.

(v) Except as specifically provided herein, the existing Debt Assessment Resolutions
shall remain valid, binding, and unmodified until such time as the District may further amend the
respectiveresolutions. This Resolution is meant to supplement the Debt Assessment Resolutions to
the extentit confirms, levies, and imposes Special Assessments upon Annexed Lands to provide its
proportionate share of the costs of the Improvements, and, therefore, all provisions, including the
defined terms, in the resolutions shall be read and interpreted to complement, not conflict, each
other.

SECTION 3. AUTHORIZATION OF DISTRICT IMPROVEMENTS. That
construction of Improvements initially described Debt Assessment Resolutions and more specifically
identified and described in Exhibit A attached hereto, is hereby confirmed, authorized and approved
and the proper officers, employees and/or agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to
take such further action as may be necessary or desirable to cause the same to be made.

SECTION 4. ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENTS. The total estimated costs of
the Improvements and the costs to be paid by Special Assessments on all Benefitted Properties are
set forth in Exhibit A and Composite Exhibit B, respectively, hereto.

SECTION 5. EQUALIZATION, APPROVAL, CONFIRMATION AND LEVY OF
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. The Special Assessments on the parcels specially benefited by the
Improvements, all as specified in the final assessment roll set forth in Composite ExhibitB, attached
hereto, are hereby equalized, approved, confirmed and levied. Immediately following the adoption
of this Resolution, these Special Assessments, as reflected in Composite Exhibit B, attached hereto,
shall berecorded by the Secretary of tbe Board of the District in a $pecial book, to be known as the
“Improvement Lien Book.” The Special Assessments or assessments against each respective parcel
shown on such final assessment roll and interest, costs and penalties thereon, as hereafter provided,
shall be and shall remain a legal. valid and binding first lien on such parcel until paid and such lien
shall be coequal withthelien of all state, county, district, municipal or other governmental taxes and
superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims. Prior to the issuance of any bonds, including
refunding bonds, the District may, by subsequent resolution, adjust the acreage assigned to particular
parcel identification numbers listed on the final assessment roll to reflect accurate apposrtionment of
acreage within the District amongst individual parcel identification numbers. The Districtmay make
any other such acreage and boundary adjustments to parcels listed on the final assessment roll as may
be necessary in the best interests of the District as determined by the Board by subsequent resolution.
Any such adjustment in the assessment roll shalt be consistent with the requirements of law. In the
event the issuance of bonds, including refunding bonds, by Lhe District which would result in a
decrease of the Special Assessments, then the District shall by subsequent resolution, adopted within
sixty (60) days of the sale of such bonds at a publicly neticed meeting and without the need for
further public hearing, evidence such a decrease and amend the final assessment roll as shown in the
Improvement Lien Book to reflect such a decrease.

SECTION 6. FINALIZATION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. When the entire
Improvements have both been constructed or otherwise provided to the satisfaction of the Board, the



Board shall adopt a resolution accepting the same and determining the actual costs (including
financing costs) thereof, as required by Sections 170.08 and 170.09, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to
the provisions of Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, regarding completion of improvements funded by
a particular series of bonds, the District shall credit to each Special Assessment the dif ference, if any,
between the Special Assessment as hereby made, approved and confirmed, and the actual costs in
completing the Improvements. In making such credits, no credit shall be given for bond financing
costs, capitalized interest, funded reserves or bond discounts. Suchcredits, i f any, shall be entered in
the Improvement Lien Book. Once the final amount of Special Assessments for the entire
Improvements have been determined, the term “Special Assessment™ shall, with respect to each
parcel, mean the sum of the costs of the Improvements.

SECTION 7. PAYMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND METHOD OF
COLLECTION.

(a) The Special Assessments may be paid in not more than thirty (30) substantially equal
consecutive annual installments of principal and interest. The Special Assessments may be paid in
full without interest at any time witbin thirty (30) days after the completion of the Improvements and
the adoption by the Board of a resolution acceptingthe Improvements; provided, however, that the
Board shall at any time make such adjustments by resolution, at a noticed meeting of the Board, to
that payment schedule as may be necessary and in the best interests of the District to account for
changes in long and shost term debt as actually issued by the District. All impact fee credits received
shall be applied against outstanding indebtedness of any debtissuance that funded the improvement
giving rise to the credits which application may be addressed by such resolutions. At any time
subsequent to thirty (30) days after the Improvements have been completed and a resolution
accepting the Improvements has been adopted by the Board, the Special Assessments may be prepa:d
in full including interest amounts to the next succeeding interest payment date or to the second
succeeding interest payment date if such a prepayment is made within forty-five (45) calendar days
before an interest payment date. The owner of property subject to Special Assessments may prepay
the entire remain ing balance of the Special Assessments at any time, or a portion of the remaining
balance of the Assessment one time if there is also paid, in addition to the prepaid principal balance
of the Assessment, an amount equal to the interest that would otherwise be due on such prepaid
amount on the next succeeding interest payment date, or, if prepaid during the forty-five day (45)
period preceding such interest payment date, to the interest payment date following such next
succeeding interest payment date. Prepayment of Special Assessments does not entitle theproperty
owner to any discounts for early payment.

(b) The District may elect to use the method of collecting Special Assessments authorized
by Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes (the “Uniform Method*). The District has
heretofore taken or will use its best efforts to take as timely required, any necessary actions to
comply with the provisions of said Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes. Such Special
Assessments may be sub ject to all of the collection provisions of Chapter 197, Florida Statutes.
Notwithstanding the above, in the event the Uniform Method of collecting its special or non-ad
valorem assessments is not available to the District in any year, or if determined by the District to be
in its best interest, the Special Assessments may be collected as is otherwise permitted by law. The



District may, in its sole discretion, collect Special Assessments by directly assessing landowner(s)
and enforcing said collection in any manner authorized by law.

(c) For the period the Disitrict uses the Uniforin Method, the District shall enter into an
agreement with the Tax Collector of Polk County who may notify each owner of a lot or parcel
within the District of the amount of the special assessment, including interest thereon, in the manner
provided in Section 197.3635, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 8. APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS.

(a)  There may be required from time to time certain tiue-up payments as specified in
supplement assessment methodology reports. As parcels of land or lots are platted, the Special
Assessments securing the Bonds shall be allocated as set {orth in such reports. In furtherance
thereof, at such time as parcels or land or lots are platted, it shall be an express condition of the lien
established by this Resolution that any and all initial plats of any portion of the lands within the
District, as the District’s boundaries may be amended from time to time, shall be presented to the
District Manager for review, approval and calculation of the percentage of acres and numbers of
units which will be, after the plat, considered to be developed. No further action by the Board shall
be required. The District’s review shall be limited solely to this function and the enforcement of the
lien established by this Resolution. The District Manager shall cause the Special Assessments to be
reallocated to the units being platted and the remaining property in accordance with such
supplemental assessment methodology reports, which process is incorporated herein as if fully set
forth. Any resulting true-up payment shall become due and payable that tax year by the landowner(s)
of record of the remaining property, in addition to the regular assessment installment payable with
respect to such remaining developable acres.

(b) The District will take all necessary steps to ensure that true-up payments are made in a
timely fashion to ensure its debt service obligations are met. The District shall record all true-up
payments in its Improvement Lien Book.

(c) The foregoing is based on the District’s understanding with the developer, that it intends
to develop the unit numbers and types shown in Composite Exhibit B, on the net developable acres
and s intended to provide a formula to ensure that the appropriate ratio of the Special Assessments
to developable acres is maintained if fewer units are developed. However, no action by the District
prohibitsmore than the maximum units shown in Composite Exhibit B frombeing developed. Inno
event shall the District collect Special Assessments pursuant to this Resolution in excess of the total
debt service related to the Improvements, including all costs of financing and interest. The District
recognizes that such events as regulatory requirements and market conditions may affect the timing
and scope of the development in the District. If the strict application of the True-Up Methodology to
any assessment reallocation pursuant to this paragraph wouldresult in Special Assessments collected
in excess of the District’s total debt service obligation for the Improvements, the Board shall by
resolution take appropriate action to equitably reallocate the Special Assessments. Further, upon the
District’s review of the final plat for the developable acres, any unallocated Special Assessments
shall become due and payable and must be paid prior to the District’s approval of that plat.



(d) The application of the monies received from true-up payments or assessments 1o the
actual debt service obligations of the District, whether long term or short term, shall be set forth in
the supplemental assessment resolution adopted for each series of Bonds actually issued. Such
subsequent resolution shall be adopted at a noticed meeting of the District, and shall set forth the
actual amounts financed, costs of issuance, expected costs of collection, and the total amount of the
assessments pledged to that issue, which amount shall be consistent with the lien imposed by this
Resolution. Each such supplemental resolution shall also address the allocation of any impact fee
credits expected to be received from the provision of the improvements funded by the corresponding
series of bonds issued or to be issued.

SECTION 9 GOVERNMENT PROPERTY; TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY TO
UNITS OF LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. Property owned by units of
local, state, and federal governmentshall notbe subject to the Special Assessments without specific
consent thereto. In addition, property owned by a property owners association or homeowners
association that is exempt from special assessments under Florida law shall not be subject to the
Special Assessments. Ifat any time, any real property on which Special Assessments are imposed by
this Resolution is sold or otherwise transferred to a unit of local, state, or federal government
(without consent of such governmental unit to the imposition of Special Assessments thereon), all
tuture unpaid Special Assessments for such tax parcel shall beccome due and payable immediately
prior to such transfer without any further action of the District.

SECTION 10. ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District’s Secretary is hereby directed to
record asupplemented Notice of Assessments in the Official Records of Polk County, Florida, which
shall be updated from time to time in a manner consistent with changes in the boundaries of the
District.

SECTION 11. SEVERABILITY. If any section or part of asection of this Resolution be
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a
section of this Resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that such
other section or part of a section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon the
section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 12. CONFLICTS. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to
the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed.

SECTION 13. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective upon its
adoption.

| Continue onto next page]



APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of August, 2019.

ATTEST: TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
Exhibit A: First Supplemental Engineer's Report Phase 2A & 2B (Assessment
Area /) dated May 12, 2016
Composite Exhibit B: Adopted Assessment Methodology dated January 21, 2015, as

supplemented by that Supplemental Assessment Methodology (Series
2016 Bonds, Assessment Area 1) dated June 3, 2016



Exhibit A



ANDIVTARK

Engineering & Surveying Corporation

wwWw.lesc.com

8516 Palm River Road. Tampa, FL 33619-4316 | 813-621.7841 | fax 813-621-6761 | mail@lesc.com

TOWNE PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEER’S REPORT
PHASE 2A & 2B (Assessment Area 1)

Prepared for:

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TOWNE PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Prepared by:

LANDMARK ENGINEERING & SURVEYING CORPORATION
8515 PALM RIVER ROAD
TAMPA, FL 33619
PH: 813-621-7841

May 12, 2016



IL.

I11.

TOWNE PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

PERMITTING

.....................................................................................................................



LIST OF TABLES & EXHIBITS

TABLE | — Land Use Summary Within the District

TABLE 2 — Summary of Opinion of Probable Costs

EXHIBIT | — Map of Phase 2A
EXHIBIT 2 — Legal Description of Phase 2A
EXHIBIT 3 —Map of Phase 2B

EXHIBIT 4 — Legal Description of Phase 2B



TOWNE PARK
FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEER’S REPORT
PHASE 2A & 2B (Assessment Area |)

INTROBUCTION

The Towne Park Community Development District (the “District” or the “CDD”) is located
south of West Pipkin Road and north of Ewell Road, just east of County Line Road, in the
City of Lakeland, Polk County, Florida. The District currently contains approximately 585
acres, and is expected to consist of 2,088 single family and/or multi-family residential units,

recreation and amenity areas, parks, and associated infrastructure.

The CDD was established under City of Lakeland Ordinance No. 14-051, which was passed
by the City Council on November 3, 2014. The CDD will own and operate the roadways and
stormwater management facilities, as well as the landscape, irrigation, signage. and

recreational facilities within the Community.

Improvements and facilities financed, acquired, and/or constructed by the CDD will be
required to conform to regulatory requirements of the City of Lakeland, Polk County,
Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD), and other agencies with
regulatory jurisdiction over the development. Anoverall estimate of probable cost is provided

in Section 3 of this report.

The development plan prepared by the CDD reflects the present intentions of the CDD. It
should be noted that the location of proposed facilities and improvements may be adjusted
during the final design, permitting, and implementation phases. It should also be noted that
these modifications are not expected to diminish the benefits received by the Towne Park
Community (the *Community™). The CDD reserves the right to make reasonable adjustments
to the development plan to meet applicable regulatory requirements of agencies with
jurisdiction over the development, while maintaining comparable level of benefits to the
community served by the improvements. Changes and modifications are expected as changes

in regulatory criteria are implemented.



Implementation of any proposed facilities or improvements outlined in this report requires
written approval from the CDD's Board of Supervisors. Estimated costs outlined in this report
were based on best available information, which includes but is not limited to previous
experience with similar projects. Actual costs could be different than estimates because final

engineering and specific lield conditions may affect construction costs.

All roadway improvements, sidewalks, and storm drainage collection systems (from the curb
infets to their connection to the Stormwater ponds) within the Community will be maintained
by the CDD. Waterdistribution and wastewater collection systems (gravity lines, force mains,

and lift stations) will be dedicated to City of Lakeland for ownership and maintenance.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this report is to provide engineering support to fund improvements in Phases
2A and 2B of the Community. Phase 2A is currently approved and permitted for 148 single
fumily residential units and their associated infrastructure, while Phase 2B is currently
approved and permitted for |30 single family residential units and their associated
infrastructure. This report will identif y the proposed capital improvements to be constructed

or acquired by the District along with an opinion of probable cost.

Thisreport should be reviewed in conjunction with the Master Engineer’s Report.



I1I.

PERMITTING

Construction permits for Phase 2A and 2B have been obtained, which include the SWFWMD
Environmeutal Recourse Permit (ERP). There ure no proposed impacts to Army Corps of
Engineer (ACOE) jurisdictional wetlands within the project boundaries, therefore no permits

are required from that agency.

Following is a summary of required permits obtained and pending for the construction of the

public infrastructure improvements for the District:

PHASE 2A

Permits / Approvals Approval / Expected Date
Zoning Approval (Lakeland) October 2014
Preliminary Plat (Lakeland) December 2014
SWFWMD ERP Fchruary 2016
Construction Permits (Lakeland) [ May 2016
FDEP Water = May 2016
FDEP Scwer Mayv 2016
PHASE 2B

Permits / Approvals Approval / Expected Date
Zoning Approval (Lakeland) October 2014
Preliminary Plat (Lakeland) Deccember 2014
SWFWMD ERP February 2016
Construction Permiits (Lakeland) May 2016
FDEP Water May 2016
FDEP Scwer May 2016




V.

CONCLUSION

It is our professional opinion that the public infrastructure costs for the District provided in
this report are reasonable to complete the construction of the infrastructure. Furthermore, the
public infrastructure improvements will benefit and add value to lands within the District at

least equal to the costs of such improvements.

The Opinion of Probable Costs of the infrastiucture is only an estimate and is not a guaranteed
maximum price. The estimated costs are based upon unit prices currently experienced on an
ongoing and similar basis for work in Polk County. Furthermore, the quantities are a
derivative of line items from specific construction documents and construction contracts as of
this date. However, labor market, future costs of equipment, materials, changes to the
regulatory permitting agencies activity, and the actual construction processes employed by the
chosen site contractor are beyond the engineer’s control. Due to this inherent opportunity for
changes (upward or downward} in the construction costs, the total, final construction cost may

be more or less than this estimate.

Based upon the presumption that the Project construction continues in a timely manner, it is
our professional opinion that the proposed public improvements when constructed and built
in substantial conformance with the approved plans and specifications, can be completed and
used for their intended function. Be advised that we have utilized historical costs and direct
unit costs from site contractors and consultants in Polk County, which we believe to be
necessary in order to facilitate estimated costs associated with the Opinion of Probable Costs.
Based upon the information above, it is our professional opinion that the acquisition and

construction costs of the proposed project can be completed at the cost as stated.



1.
2
3.

Table 1 — Land Use Summary Within The District Boundaries

TOWNE PARK

Community Development District

Distribution by Land Use ¥

Land Use Ph 2A (acres) Ph 2B (acres) TOTAL (acres) Percentage
Stormwater Ponds 30.20 22.71 52.91 358 %
Residential 33.3% 35.61 68.96 46.6 %
Commercial 0 0 0 0%
Wetland / Conservation 0 24.59 24.59 16.6 %
Recreation / Open Space 1.51 0 1.51 1.0%
TOTAL 65.06 82.91 147.97 100.0 %

Distribution by Lot Size
Phase SF Lots MF Units TOTAL Percentage
A 148 0 148 53.2%
2B 130 0 130 46.8 %
TOTAL 278 0 278 100.0 %

Notes:

Figures are approximate; Areas may change upon final layout

Lot widths subject to change
Current approved lot count




TOWNE PARK
Community Development District

Table 2 — Summary of Opinion of Probable Costs ®

TOTAL
Infrastructure @® Phase 2A Phase 2B ("

Stormwater Management (@6} $ 1,944,000 $1,710,000 $ 3,654,000
Utilities (Water and Sewer) $ 725,000 $ 638,000 $ 1,363,000
Roadway $ 694,000 $ 611,000 $ 1,305,000
Entry Feature & Signage (" $ 400,000 $ 350,000 $ 750,000
Amenities $ 532,000 $ 468,000 $ 1,000,000
_Contingency $ 372,000 $ 328,000 $ 700,000
TOTAL $ 4,667,000 $ 4,105,000 $ 8,772,000

Notes:

1. Infrastructure consists of roadway improvements, stormwater management facilities, water lines, sanitary sewer utilities,
entry feature, landscaping and signage, neighborhood parks and recreational facilities

Includes stormwater pond excavation, ptacement of fill, and wetiand mitigation.

Includes sub-grade, base, asphalt paving, curbing, and civil / site engineering.

Includes subdivision infrastructure and civil / site engineering only.

Stormwater does not include grading associated with building pads.

Estimates are based on 2013 costs.

Includes Entry Features, Signage, Hardscape, Landscape, Irrigation, and Fencing

CDD will enter into a Lighting Agreement with Lakeland Electric for the street light poles and lighting service

QNGO R WN



=7 s

79—

—

=

Nﬂﬂ

o

|
——

e

§&cteen

=




EXHIBIT 2; LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PHASE 2A

APARCEL OF LAND LYING WITHIN SECTIONS 8 AND 9, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, CITY OF
LAKELAND, POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND AREPLATOF A PORTION OF TRACT B AND ALL OF TRACT C OF
TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A PLAT BOOK 140, PAGE 33, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY,
FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 29
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 89°51'10" W, ALONG THE SOUTH
BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, A DISTANCE OF 1027.56 FEET; THENCE N
00°08'50" W, A DISTANCE OF 107.61 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 430.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 25°35'50" E, A
DISTANCE OF 373.55 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF
386.42 FEETTO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A
RADIUS OF 980.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 45°58'59" E, A DISTANCE OF 183.04 FEET,;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 183.30 FEETTO THE END OF SAID
CURVE; THENCE S 67°38'22" E, A DISTANCE OF 71.68 FEET; THENCE S 22°21'38" W, A DISTANCE OF
150.00 FEET; THENCE S49°00'48" W, A DISTANCE OF 73.23 FEET; THENCE S 25°02'17" E, A DISTANCE OF
110.00 FEET; THENCE N 64°57'43" E, A DISTANCE OF 60.23 FEET TO THEPOINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 80.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N
43°39'41" E, A DISTANCE OF 58.12 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A
DISTANCE OF 59.48 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N 22°21'38" E, A DISTANCE OF 31.49 FEET;
THENCE S 67°38'22" E, ADISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET; THENCE S 22°21'38" W, A DISTANCE OF 15.58 FEET
TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING ARADIUS OF 25.00
FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 30°30'24" E, A DISTANCE OF 39.86 FEET,; THENCE ALONG THE ARC
OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, ADISTANCE OF 46.14 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S
83°22'26" E, ADISTANCE OF 81.27 FEET; THENCE N 22°21°38" E, A DISTANCE OF 634.33 FEET; THENCE N
30°59'55" W, A DISTANCE OF 328.67 FEET; THENCE N 26°38'07" E, A DISTANCE OF 21.84 FEET TO THE
POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 595.00 FEET AND
A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 11°53'28" W, ADISTANCE OF 741.22 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OFf SAID
CURVE TO THE LEFT, ADISTANCE OF 800.17 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N 50°25'04" W, A
DISTANCE OF 296.39 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY,
HAVING A RADIUS OF 705.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 70°18'39" W, A DISTANCE OF 479.78
FEET, THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 489.55 FEET TO APOINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE S 89°47'45" W, A DISTANCE OF 83.50 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 435.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N
89°57'18" W, A DISTANCE OF 3.78 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A
DISTANCE OF 3.78 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE N 36°19'40" E, A DISTANCE OF 436.78
FEETTO APOINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PIPKIN ROAD; THENCE N 89°47'51" E, ALONG
SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 982.20 FEET TO A POINT ON A NORTHERLY
PROJECTION OF THE WEST BOUNDARY OF TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A AS RECORDED IN P1AT
BOOK 140, PAGE 33 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 00°05'14" E,
ALONG SAID NORTHERLY PROJECTION AND THE WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES
PHASE 1-A, A DISTANCE OF 118.00 FEET; THENCE N 89°47'57" E, A DISTANCE OF 27.73 FEETTO A POINT
ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WHITEEGRET LANE PER SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A
AND THE BEGINNING A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A
RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 17°45'18" E, A DISTANCE OF 28.04 FEET; THENCE
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, AND SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF




28.13 FEETTO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS
OF 200.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 18°39'31" E, ADISTANCE OF 49.83 FEET; THENCE ALONG
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, AND SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 49.96
FEETTO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE S 89°47'57" W, ON A NON-RADIAL LINE, A DISTANCE OF
S2.11 FEETTO A POINT ON THE AFOREMENTIONED WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES
PHASE 1-A; THENCE S 00°05‘14" E, ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 195.68 FEET; THENCE
N 89°47'45" E, ALONGA SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A, A
DISTANCE OF 80.00 FEET; THENCE S 00°04'55" E, ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK
ESTATES PHASE 1-A, A DISTANCE OF 1646.83 FEET; THENCE N 89°50'53" E, ALONG A SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A, A DISTANCE OF 136.98 FEET; THENCE S
88°44'58" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 138.19 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST
CORNER OF TRACT C OF SAID TOWNE PARK PHASE 1-A; THENCE N 23°39'35" E, ALONG THE WEST
BOUNDARY OF SAID TRACTC, A DISTANCE OF 180.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT
C; THENCE S 66°20'25" E, ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID TRACT C, A DISTANCE OF 275.00 FEET
TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT C; THENCE N 23°39'35" £, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A, A DISTANCE OF 108.62 FEET; THENCE N
72°37'20" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 209.24 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1010.00 FEETAND A CHORD
WHICH BEARS N 64°57'40" E, A DISTANCE OF 269.29 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO
THE LEFT AND ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 270.10 FEET TO THE END OF SAID
CURVE; THENCE N 55°52'41" E, ALONG A NON-TANGENTIAL LINE AND SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A
DISTANCE OF 50.03 FEET, TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVATURE OF A CURVE
CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1360.46 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
37°58'11" E, A DISTANCE OF 274.53 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A
DISTANCE OF 275.00 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE N 48°42'02" E, ON A NON-RADIAL LINE
AND SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 18.23 FEET; THENCE S 57°17'47" E, ALONG SAID
SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 104.75 FEET; THENCE N 81°37'40" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY, ADISTANCE OF 50.47 FEET; THENCE S 61°22'20" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A
DISTANCE OF 134.05 FEET; THENCE S 58°31'23" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF
210.85 FEET; THENCE S 66°10'24" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 132.26 FEET;
THENCE S 00°28'53" W, ALONG THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A, A
DISTANCE OF 178.59 FEET; THENCE S00°14'08" E, ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF
247,65 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 9,
TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 89°45'52" W, ALONG SAID
SOUTH BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 1865.81 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

LESS AND EXCEPTTRACT LS-1 AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A AS
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 140, PAGE 33 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA.

THE ABOVE PARCELCONTAINING 65.06 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.



-
=
gt

i ||§

¥

Oy 7
2 ]
- {

¥ —

——

7
e

——
—




EXHIBIT 4; LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PHASE 2B

BEING APARCEL OF LAND LYING WITHIN SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, POLK COUNTY,
FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARCTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

FOR A POINT OF REFERENCE COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 8 AND PROCEED S
89°51'10" W, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 1027.56 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 26 (BLOCK 4) OF TOWNE PARK ESTATES
PHASE 2A PER PLATBOOK __, PAGE __ OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S
89°51'10" W, CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 1627.60 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE S 89°51'04" W, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY
THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 321.04 FEET; THENCE N 36°19'40" E, LEAVING SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE
OF 2787.77 FEET TO THE MOST SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 20 (BLOCK 1) OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES
PHASE 2A AND THE MOST WESTERLY CORNER THEREOF; SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE BEGINNING OF A NON-
TANGENTIAL CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 435.00 FEET AND A CHORD
WHICH BEARS S 89°5718" E, A DISTANCE OF 3.78 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVETO THE LEFT,
AND ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK PHASE 2A, A DISTANCE OF 3.78 FEETTO A POINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE N 89°47'45" E, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE
2A, ADISTANCE OF 83.50 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A
RADIUS OF 705.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 70°18'39" E, A DISTANCE OF 479.78 FEET; THENCE
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 489.55 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE
$50°25'04" E, A DISTANCE OF 296.39 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY,
HAVING A RADIUS OF 595.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 11°53'28" E, A DISTANCE OF 741.22 FEET,;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, ADISTANCE OF 800.17 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;
THENCE S 26°38'07" W, ADISTANCE OF 21.84 FEET; THENCE S 30°59'55" E, A DISTANCE OF 328.67 FEET; THENCE
522°21'38" W, A DISTANCE OF 634.33 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF WAY OF NORTH EGRET LANE DEDICATED
PER SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 2A; THENCE N 83°22'26" W, ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF WAY, A DISTANCE
OF 81.27 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00
FEETAND A CHORD WHICHBEARS N 30°30'24" W, A DISTANCE OF 39.86 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID
CURVE TO THERIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 46.14 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N 22°21'38"E, A
DISTANCE OF 15.58 FEET; THENCE N 67°38'22" W, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT -
OF-WAY OF WHITE IBtS ROAD DEDICATED PER SAID TOWNE PARK PHASE 2A; THENCE S 22°21'38" W, A
DISTANCE OF 31.49 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A
RADIUS OF 80.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 43°39'41" W, A DISTANCE OF 58.12 FEET; THENCE ALONG
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 59.48 FEETTO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCES
64°57'43" W, ADISTANCE OF 60.23 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF TRACT D PER SAID TOWNE PARK
PHASE 2A; THENCE N 25°02'17" W, A DISTANCE OF 110.00 FEET; THENCE N 49°00'48" E, A DISTANCE OF 73.23
FEET; THENCE N 22°21'38" E, A DISTANCE OF 150.00 FEET; THENCE N 67°38'22" W, A DISTANCE OF 71.68 FEET
THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF SAID TRACT D; SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE BEGINNING OF A NON-
TANGENTIAL CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLYWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 980.00 FEET AND
A CHORD WHICH BEARS 5-45°58'59" W, A DISTANCE OF 183.04 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE
TOTHERIGHT, ADISTANCE OF 183.30FEETTO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 430.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 25°35'50" W, A DISTANCE
OF 373.55 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 386.42 FEET; THENCE S
00°08'50" E, A DISTANCE OF 107.61 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE PARCEL CONTAINING 82.91 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.



Composite Exhibit B



FISHKIND

& ASSOCIATES

ADOPTED MASTER
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

January 21, 2015

Prepared for:

Members of the Board of Supervisors,

Towne Park Community Development District
Prepared by:

Fishkind & Associates, Inc.

12051 Corporate Boulevard
Orlando, Florida 32817




ADOPTED MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

January 21, 2015

1.0

1.1

1.2

Introduction
Purpose

This “Adopted Master Assessment Methodology” dated January 21, 2014
("Methodology") provides a system for the allocation of non-ad valorem
special assessments securing the repayment of bond debt planned to be
issued by the Towne Park Community Development District ("District”) to
fund beneficial public infrastructure improvements and facilities. The
Methodology described herein has two goals:; (1) quantifying the special
benefits received by properties within the District as a result of the
installation of the District’'s improvements and facilities, and (2) equitably
allocating the costs incurred by the District to provide these benefits to
properties in the District. The District plans to implement a capital
improvement program ("CIP") that will allow for the development of
property within the District. The District plans to fund the majority of its CIP
through bond debt financing. This bond debt will be repaid from the
proceeds of non-ad valorem special assessments levied by the District’s
Board of Supervisors. These special assessments will serve as liens
against properties within the boundary of the District that receive a special
benefit from the CIP. This Methodology is designed to conform to the
requirements of Chapters 170, 190, and 197 of the Florida Statutes with
respect to special assessments and is consistent with our understanding
of the case law on this subject.

Background

The District includes approximately 584.8 gross acres of property located
within the City of Lakeland, Florida. The District is generally located to the
south of West Pinkin Road, to the west of Yates Road, and to the north of
Ewell Road within the City of Lakeland. At build-out, the District is expected
to contain 1,638 single-family lots, 450 multi-family units, recreation
areas, parks/conservation, and related infrastructure. The legal
description of the land included within the District's boundaries is



1.3

1.4

found in Exhibit “"A". The land use plan for the District is found in Table 1
(all tables are found in the attached Appendix).

Special Benefits and General Benefits

Improvements undertaken by the District create both special benefits and
general benefits to property owners located within and surrounding the
District. However, the general benefits to the public at large are incidental
in nature and are readily distinguishable from the special benefits which
accrue to property located within the District. It is the District's CIP that
enables properties within the District's boundaries to be developed.
Without the District's CIP, there would be no infrastructure to support
development of land within the District. Without these improvements
development of property in the District would be prohibited by law.

There is no doubt that the general public and certain property owners
outside the District will benefit from the provision of District infrastructure.
However, such benefit is incidental to the benefit to property within the
District resulting from the District's CIP, which is designed solely to meet
the needs of property owners within the District. Properties outside the
District do not depend upon the District's CIP to obtain, or to maintain,
their development entitlements. This fact alone clearly distinguishes the
special benefits which District properties receive compared to those
properties lying outside of the District’'s boundaries.

Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology

For special assessments to be valid under Florida law, there are two
requirements. First, the properties assessed must receive a special benefit
from the improvements paid for via the assessments. Second, the
assessments must be fairly and reasonably allocated to the properties
being assessed.

If these two characteristics of valid special assessments are adhered to,
Florida law provides some latitude to legislative bodies, such as the
District's Board of Supervisors, in approving special assessments.
Indeed, Florida courts have found that the mathematicai perfection of
calculating special benefit is likely impossible. Only if the District's Board
was to act in an arbitrary, capricious, or grossly unfair fashion would its
assessment methods be overtumned.



2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

CIP Plan of Finance
Infrastructure Installation

The District will install its public infrastructure and improvements on a
phased basis, as outlined in more detail in the “Towne Park Community
Development District Engineer's Report”, dated November 2014
("Engineer’s Report”), as prepared by Landmark Engineering & Surveying
Corporation (“District Engineer”). Although the District will install its
infrastructure in two phases, the CIP is designed to operate as a system,
with improvements implemented during the first phase benefitting
properties located within the second phase, and improvements
implemented during the second phase also benefiting the properties within
the first phase. The estimated costs of the District's CIP are presented in
Table 2.

Bond Requirements

The District intends to finance the majority of its CIP by issuing bonds.
These bonds will be issued in several series, as development progresses
within the District. A number of component funds will comprise the
total principal of the bonds to be issued by the District. These funds
may include, but are not limited to, acquisition and construction,
capitalized interest, debt service reserve, underwriter's discount, and
issuance costs. An estimate of the bond issuance required to fund the
District’'s CIP is found in Table 3.

As bonds are issued by the District, Fishkind will issue supplemental
assessment methodology report(s) detailing the particulars of each
specific bond issue. The supplemental report(s) will detail the terms,
interest rates, and costs associated with a specific series of bonds. The
suppiemental report(s) will also detail the specific bond debt service
assessments for properties that have been assessed to secure each bond
issuance.

Assessment Methodology
Assessment Foundation

The assessment methodology associated with the allocation of the costs
of the CIP is a four-step process. First, the District Engineer determines



3.2

the costs for the District's infrastructure and related improvements.
Second, an estimate of the amount of bonds required to finance the
infrastructure improvements is calculated. Third, the District Engineer
outlines which parcels benefit from the provision of infrastructure and
improvements. Finally, the as-financed costs of the infrastructure and
related improvements are allocated to the benefiting properties based on
the approximate relative benefit each unit receives as expressed by that
property’'s Equivalent Residential Unit (“ERU”) Factor.

In allocating special assessments to benefiting property, Florida
governments have used a variety of methods including, but not limited to,
front footage, area, trip rates, equivalent residential units, dwelling units,
and acreage. Fishkind has determined that an assessment methodology
based on equivalent residential unit ("ERU") values is appropriate. These
ERU values equate the benefit received by a stated amount of such
particular land use category to the benefit received by a typical single-
family residence. The use of ERU values to estimate the benefit derived
from infrastructure improvements is recognized as a simple, fair, and
reasonable method for apportioning benefit. ERU values are a commonly
accepted method for calculating special benefit assessments in Florida.
Here, Fishkind has chosen to assign an ERU value of 1.0 to each
planned single-family residential fot and a 0.65 ERU for each planned
muiti-family residential unit. A lower ERU value for the multi-family
development is appropriate here as the average size of the multi-family units
will be smaller and more densely developed than the planned single-family
residences. These physical characteristics of the muiti-family development
ptanned for the District indicate that these units will receive a lesser benefit
from the District's CIP when compared to the planned single-family
residences. For example, the proportionate length of roadway needed to
serve each multi-family unit is less than the length required to serve single-
family residences. Additionally, the smaller land area required for each
multi-family unit will produce less stormwater runoff than each single-family
lot, and so each multi-family unit will have a reduced impact on the District’s
stormwater facilities, when compared to a single-familly lot.

Assignment of Assessments

The CIP cost estimates are outlined in Table 2 and described in detail in
the Engineer's Report. The maximum amount of bonds required to fund
the CIP costs has been calculated and is shown in Table 3. The bond
principal and related annual debt service assessments will then be
apportioned among the development planned for the District on the basis of



3.3

ERU values, as outlined in Table 4. The resulting bond principal and related
annual debt service assessment for each lot planned for the District are
shown in Table 5. Table 5 becomes important as the land within the
District is platted, as specific bond debt service assessments will be
assigned to the individual platted lots at that time.

One or more future supplemental assessment methodology reports will
outline the precise bond debt service assessments assigned to the lands
within the District. If the lands within the District are unplatted, bond debt
service assessments will initially be assigned to the undeveloped
developable land within the District on an equal per-acre basis. The
assessments for each platted lot (a platted single-family lot will be referred
to herein as a “Development Unit") will be assigned to each Development
Unit when a parcel is initially platted.

True-Up Mechanism

In order to ensure that the District’'s bond debt will not build up on the
unplatted land within the District, the District shall periodically apply a
“true-up” test. Initially, bond debt service assessments will be allocated to
each acre within the District, on an equal per-acre basis. As property
is platted, “true-up” or density reduction payments may become due based
upon the amount of bond debt assessments initially assigned. For
example, as outlined in Table 3, it is estimated that $50,000,000 in bond
principal will be allocated to the developable lands within the District at
the time of issuance. This $50,000,000 in principal will initially be allocated
equally to all 584.8 acres located within the District, resulting in $85,499 in
bond principal assessment per acre. The bond principal true-up test shall
be applied at the completion of the platting of 50%, 75%, 90%, and 100%
of the developable acreage within the District. Should it be determined at
one of these platting benchmarks that the bond principal remaining per
undeveloped acre exceeds the $85,499 threshold, the owner of the land
at the time of platting will be required to make a true-up payment to
the District sufficient to reduce remaining bond principal per acre to the
permissible $85,499 level. It is the responsibility of the landowner of record
of the affected parcel to make or cause to be made any required true-up
payments due. This true- up obligation runs with the land within the
District. The District will not release any liens on property for which true-
up payments are due until provision for such payment has been
satisfactorily made.

In the event that additional land not currently subject to the assessments



4.0

5.0

is developed in such a manner as to receive special benefit from the
District's CIP, it is contemplated that this Methodology will be re-applied to
include such new parcels. The additional land, as a result of applying this
Methodology, will be allocated an appropriate share of the bond debt
service assessments, while all then-assessed parcels will receive a
relative adjustment in their assessment levels.

Contribution of District Infrastructure and/or Improvements

The costs of the District's CIP will likely be funded by two mechanisms.
The first mechanism is the issuance of special assessment bonds. The
second mechanism is the contribution of funds or CIP components to the
District (“Contribution"). Propeity owners within the District will have the
opportunity to make such a Contribution upon approval by the District.

A District property owner's Contribution will give rise to assessment credits
that can be applied by the property owner to reduce or eliminate bond
debt service assessments that would otherwise be assigned to lands within
the District to fund the costs of the CIP. Prior to a property owner reducing
or eliminating bond debt service assessments through a Contribution, it
must be shown that the improvements funded or contributed by the
property owner are a component of the CIP, as outlined in the Engineer's
Report. The property owner will be permitted to apply assessment credits
equal to the value of the Contribution plus the costs of financing the
improvement(s) that would otherwise have been incurred by the District if
the District were required to issue bonds to fund or acquire the
improvement(s) (such that the property would not be responsible for bond
financing costs if the Contribution was made prior to the District's
issuance of special assessment bonds). A property owner possessing
assessment credits due to a Contribution will, in the District's discretion,
have the opportunity to use the assessment credits to adjust bond debt
service assessment levels of Development Units.

Preliminary Assessment Roll

The table below outlines the maximum bond principal assessment per
developable acre for the lands within the District. The legal description of
the Jand included within the District's boundaries is found in Exhibit "A”,
below.



Preliminary Assessment Roll

Bond Bond Bond Gross Bond Gross

Principal Principal Annual Annual

Assessment Assessment Assessment Assessment

Description Acreage per Phase per Acre per Phase(1) per Acre(1)
See Exhibit "A" 584.8 $50,000,000 $85,499 $4552,217 $7.784

(1) Valuesinclude a 7.0% gross-up to account tor the tees of the County Property Appraiser and Tax Collector and
the statutory early paymant discount,



EXHIBIT “A”
DESCRIPTION OF LAND WITHIN THE DISTRICT

Phase 2;

THAT PART OF SECTIONS 8 & 9, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, POLK
COUNTY, FLORIDA MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGIN AT
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 9 AND RUN THENCE N-89°58'07"-E
ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 9, 1865.81 FEET; THENCE N-
00°01'63"-W, 247.65 FEET; THENCE N-00°41'07"-E, 178.59 FEET; THENCE N-65°58'09"-
W, 132.26 FEET; THENCE N-58°19'08"W, 210.85 FEET. THENCE N-61°10'05"-W, 134.05
FEET, THENCE S-81°49'54"-W, 50.47 FEET; THENCE N-57°05'32"-W, 104.75 FEET;
THENCE S-48°54'17"-W, 18.23 FEET; THENCE ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE
EAST HAVING A RADIUS OF 1360.46 FEET, A CHORD OF 274.53 FEET AND A
CHORD BEARING OF N-37°45'56"-W THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 11°34'54" AN
ARC LENGTH OF 275.00 FEET; THENCE S-56°05'06"-W, 50.03 FEET; THENCE ALONG
A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE NORTH HAVING A RADIUS OF 1010.00 FEET, A CHORD
OF 269.29 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF S-65°09'55"-W THROUGH A CENTRAL
ANGLE OF 15°19'20" AN ARC LENGTH OF 270.10 FEET; THENCE S-72°49'35"-W,
209.24 FEET; THENCE S-23°51'50"-W, 268.62 FEET; THENCE N-66°08'10"-W, 160.00
FEET; THENCE S-23°51'50"-W, 20.00 FEET; THENCE N-66°0810"-W, 115,00 FEET;
THENCE N-88°32'43"-W, 138.19 FEET; THENCE N-89°56'52"-W, 137.01 FEET TO THE
WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 9; THENCE N-00°07'16"-E ALONG SAID WEST
BOUNDARY, 1646.83 FEET, THENCE N-90°00'00"-W, 80.00 FEET; THENCE N-
00°07'16"-E, 387.68 FEET TO THE RIGHT OF WAY OF WEST PIPKIN ROAD; THENCE
N-89°59'64"-W ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY, 982.20 FEET; THENCE S-36°31'55"-W
ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE LAKELAND LINDER REGIONAL AIRPORT
APPROACH SURFACE, 3224.55 FEET TO A POINT OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF
THE SOUTHWEST % OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE S-89°56'41"-E ALONG SAID
SOUTH BOUNDARY, 321.04 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE
SOUTHEAST % OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE S-89°56'35"-E ALONG THE
SOUTHERN BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHEAST % OF SAID SECTION 8, 2655.16 FEET
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

Phase 3:

Parcel 232917-000000-031000:
NW1/4 LESS SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF NW1/4 & NW1/4 OF SW1/4 & W1/4 OF NE1/4 OF
SWi1/4

Parcel 232917-000000-010000:
NE1/4 & SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF NW1/4 & E3/4 OF NE1/4 OFSW1/4

Parcel 232917-000000-023080:
N 330 FT OF W1/2 OF SE1/4 LESS E 990 FT BEING LOT 88 UNRE WOODHAVEN

Parcel 232917-000000-042120:

BEG 175 FT E OF SW COR OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SEC N 365 FTW 175 FT N 976.32
FTE 497.61 FTS 43769 FTW 447.61 FT S 488.67 FT E 175 FT S 415 FT W 50

FT TO POB LESS RD R/W



Parcel 232917-000000-042070:
BEG 225 FT E OF SW COR SE1/4 OF SW1/4 N415 FTW 175 FT N 488.67 FT E 447.61
FT S904.03FT TO S LINE SEC W 272.61 FT TO POB LESS RD RIW

Parcel 232917-000000-044110:
E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4

Parcel 232917-000000-044140:
E1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SEC LESS N 208.75 FT OF S 238.75 FT OF W
208.75 FT & LESS RD R/IW

Parcel 232917-000000-042110:
BEG SW COR OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SEC E ALONG S SECLINE 1775 FTN 365 FT W
175 FT STO POB LESS RD R/W



APPENDIX

ASSESSMENT TABLES



APPENDIX TABLE t
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DISTRICT LAND USE PLAN
ADOPTED MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Estimated Start

Development Phase (1) Description Date
Phase I Single-Family Lot 2015
Phase I Single-Famiiy Lot 2016
Phase (I Multi-Famity Unit 2016
Total

(1) Phase [ ofthe overall P.U.D. is complete and notincluded within the boundaries of the District.

Master Assmt. Methodology Fishkind and Associates, Inc.

Estimated

Completion Date

2016
2018
2018

Number of

Lots/Units

207
1.431
450

2,088

Appendix Table 1



APPENDIX TABLE 2

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

CIP COST ESTIMATES
ADOPTED MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Estimated Costs,

Infrastructure Component

Stormwater Management
Utilities (Water and Sewer)
Roadways

Entry Features and Signage
Amenities

Contingency

Totals

Master Assmt, Methodology

Phase |l

$3,654,000
$1,363,000
$1,305,000
$750,000
$1,000,000
$700,000

$8,772,000

Estimated Costs.

Phase Ill

$11,088,000
$4,136,000
$3,960,000
$1,450,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000

$26,134,000

Fishkind and Assaociates, Inc.

Total Costs, afl

Phases

$14,742,000
$5,499,000
$5,265,000
$2,200,000
$4,000,000
$3,200,000

$34,906,000

Appendix Table 2



APPENDIX TABLE 3
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ESTIMATED BOND FINANCING DETAILS
ADOPTED MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Bond Fund Value (1)
Construction/Acquisition Fund $34,906,000
Debt Service Reserve $2,906,500
Capitalized Interest $10,937,500
Costs of Issuance (Including Underwriter's Fee) $1,200,000
Contingency $50,000
Total Bond Principal $50,000,000
Average Annual Interest Rate: 7.50%
Term (Years): 30

Capitalized Interest Through: November 1, 2017
Capitalized Interest (Months): 35

Maximum Net Annual Debt Service: $4,233,562

(1) The values shown are estimated and subject to change. Future supplemental assessmentmethodology report(s) will outiine the actual details of the District's bond issuance(s).
J

Master Assmt. Methodology Fishkind and Associates, Inc. Appendix Table 3



APPENDIX TABLE 4
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ERU VALUE ASSIGNMENTS
ADOPTED MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

ERU Value per ERU Values, all % of ERUs per
Phase Planned Lots/Units Lot/Unit Lots/Units Category
Phase Il Single-Family 207 1.0 207 10.7%
Phase Il Single-Family 1,431 1.0 1,431 74.1%
Phase Il Multi-Famity 450 065 293 15.2%
Totals 2,088 1,931 100.0%

(1) Gross assessments represent the assessment placed on the County taxroll each year, if the District elects to use the Uniform Method of collecting non-ad valorem assessments
authorilzed by Chapter 197 of the Florida Statutes. Gross assessment include an 7.0% gross-up to account for the fees of the County Propesiy Appraiser and Tax Coliector and the

statutory early payment discount.

Master Assmt. Methodology Fishidnd and Associates, Inc. Appendix Table 4



APPENDIX TABLE 5
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ESTIMATED MAXIMUM BOND ASSESSMENTS

ADOPTED MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Phase Planned Lots/Units
Phase Il Single-Family 207
Phase Il Single-Family 1,431
Phase Il Multi-Family 450
Totals 2,088

% of ERUs per
Phase Category
Phase Il Single-Family 10.7%
Phase Ill Single-Family 74.1%
Phase Il Multi-Family 15.2%
Totals 100.0%

% of ERUs per
Category
10.7%

74.1%

15.2%

100.0%

Bond Net Annual

Assmt./Category
$453,948
$3,138,165

$641,449
$4,233,562

Bond Principal

Assmt/ Category

$5,361,305
$37,062,937

$7575.758
$50,000.000

Bond Net Annual

Bond Principal

Assmt. per
Lot/Unit

$25,900
$25,900
$16,835

Bond Gross
Annual Assmt./

Bond Gross
Annual Assmt./

Assmt. per Lot/Unit

$2,193
$2,193
$1,425

Category (1)
$488,117
$3,374,371

$689.730
$4,552,217

Unit (1)
$2,358
$2,358
$1.533

(1) Gross assessments represent the assessment placed on the County tax roll each year, if the District elects to use the Uniform Method of collecting non-ad valorem assessments
authorized by Chapter 197 of the Florida Statutes. Gross assessments include an 7.0% gross-up to account for the fees of the County Property Appraiser and Tax Collector and the

statutoiy earily payment discount.

Master Assmt. Methodology

Fishkind and Associates, Inc.

Appendix Table 5



FISHKIND

& ASSOCIATES

SUPPLEMENTAL
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY
(SERIES 2016 BONDS,
ASSESSMENT AREA 1)

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

June 3, 2016

Prepared for:

Members of the Board of Supervisors,

Towne Park Community Development District
Prepared by:

Fishkind & Associates, Inc.

12051 Corporate Boulevard
Orlando, Florida 32817




SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY
SERIES 2016 BONDS, ASSESSMENT AREA 1
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

June 3, 2016

1.0

1.1

Introduction
Purpose

This Supplemental Assessment Methodology (Series 2016 Bonds,
Assessment Area 1), dated June 3, 2016 ("Supplemental Methodology"),
operates pursuant to the District's “Adopted Master Assessment
Methodology” dated January 21, 2014 ("Methodology"). The
Methodology provides a system for the allocation of non-ad valorem
special assessments securing the repayment of bond debt planned to be
issued by the Towne Park Community Development District (“District”) to
fund beneficial public infrastructure improvements and facilities. The
Methodology has two goals: (1) quantifying the special benefits received
by properties within the District as a result of the instaliation of the
District’'s improvements and facilities, and (2) equitably allocating the
costs incurred by the District to provide these benefits to properties in the
District.

The District plans to implement a capital improvement program ("CIP”) that
will allow for the development of property within the District. The District
ptans to fund the first phase of its CIP through the issuance of the Series
2016 Special Assessment Revenue Bonds (“Series 2016 Bonds”). The
Series 2016 Bond debt will be repaid from the proceeds of non-ad valorem
special assessments levied by the District's Board of Supervisors. These
special assessments will serve as liens against properties within the
boundary of the District that receive a special benefit from the first phase
of the CIP. This Methodology is designed to conform to the requirements
of Chapters 170, 190, and 197 of the Florida Statutes with respect to
special assessments and is consistent with our understanding of the case
law on this subject.



1.2

1.3

14

Background

The District includes approximately 584.8 gross acres of property located
within the City of Lakeland, Florida. The District is generally located to the
south of West Pinkin Road, to the west of Yates Road, and to the north of
Ewell Road within the City of Lakeland. At build-out, the Districtis expected
to contain 1,638 single-family lots, 450 multi-family units, recreation
areas, parks/conservation, and related infrastructure.

Special Benefits and General Benefits

Improvements undertaken by the District create both special benefits and
general benefits to property owners located within and surrounding the
District. However, the general benefits to the public at large are incidental
in nature and are readily distinguishable from the special benefits which
accrue to property located within the District. It Is the District's CIP that
enables properties within the District's boundaries to be developed.
Without the District's CIP, there would be no infrastructure to support
development of land within the District. Without these improvements
development of property in the District would be prohibited by law.

There is no doubt that the general public and certain property owners
outside the District will benefit from the provision of District infrastructure.
However, such benefit is incidental to the benefit to property within the
District resulting from the District's CIP, which is designed solely to meet
the needs of property owners within the District. Propetties outside the
District do not depend upon the District's CIP to obtain, or to maintain,
their development entitlements. This fact alone clearly distinguishes the
special benefits which District properties receive compared to those
properties lying outside of the District's boundaries.

Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology

For special assessments to be valid under Florida law, there are two
requirements. First, the properties assessed must receive a special benefit
from the improvements pald fotr via the assessments. Second, the
assessments must be fairly and reasonably allocated to the propetties
being assessed.

If these two characteristics of valid special assessments are adhered to,
Florida law provides some latitude to legislative bodies, such as the



2.0

2.1

2.2

23

District’'s Board of Supervisors, in approving special assessments.
Indeed, Florida courts have found that the mathematical perfection of
calculating special benefit is likely impossible. Only i the District's Board
was to act in an arbitrary, capricious, or grossly unfair fashion would its
assessment methods be overturned.

CIP Plan of Finance

Plan of Finance Overview

The first phase of the District's CIP will provide a special benefit to certain
lands referred to at the project level as “Phase 2," which lands are described
in the attached Exhibit "A." The land representing Phase 2 and described in
Exhibit “A” is referred to in this Supplemental Methodology as “Assessment
Area 1," which contains approximately 147.97 gross acres. Thus, all lands
located within Assessment Area 1 will initially be assessed to secure the
repayment of the Series 2016 Bonds. The land use plan for the Assessment
Area 1 is found in Table 1 (all tables are found in the attached Appendix).

Infrastructure Instaltation

The District will install its public infrastructure and improvements on a
phased basis, as outlined in more detail in the “Towne Park Community
Development District Engineer's Report', dated November 2014
("Engineer's Report"), as prepared by Landmark Engineering & Surveying
Corporation ("District Engineer”). The estimated costs of the portion of the
CIP that specially benefits Assessment Area 1 (“Assessment Area
1 CIP") are presented in Table 2. The Assessment Area 1 CiP is planned
to primarily be funded with the proceeds of two bond issuances, the Series
2016 Bonds and a later bond issuance occurring in 2017 or thereafter.

Bond Requirements

The District intends to finance its Assessment Area 1 CIP via the issuance
of two series of bonds. The Series 2016 Bonds are the first of the two
planned issuances. A number of component funds will comprise the
total principal of the Series 2016 Bonds. These funds includeacquisition
and construction, capitalized interest, debt service reserve, and issuance
costs. The details of the Series 2016 Bonds, funding a portion of the
Assessment Area 1 CIP, are found in Table 3.



3.0

4.0

Assessment Methodology — Assignment of Series 2016 Bonds
Assessments

The Assessment Area 1 CIP cost estimates are outlined in Table 2
and described in detail in the Engineer's Report. The sizing of the Series
2016 Bonds, funding a portion of the Assessment Area 1 CIP, is found in
Table 3. The Series 2016 Bonds assessments will initially be assigned to
the land within Assessment Area 1 (described in Exhibit “A") on an equal
per-acie basis. Series 2016 Bonds assessments will be assigned to
individual lots as those lots are platted. The Series 2016 Bonds
assessments will be fully assigned to the tirst 148 platted lots located within
Assessment Area 1. As shown in Table 1, more than 148 lots are planned
for Assessment Area 1. However, it is planned that lots platted within
Assessment Area 1 after the initial 148 will be subject to assessments to
secure a future District bond issuance funding the balance of Assessment
Area 1 CIP costs. The Series 2016 Bonds principal and related annual debt
service assessment for the initial unplatted acreage and for each of the first
148 platted lots within Assessment Area 1 are shown in Table 4. Table 4
becomes important as the land within the District is platted, as specific
Series 2016 Bonds debt service assessments will be assigned to the
individual platted lots at that time.

True-Up Mechanism

in order to assure that the District’s debt will not build up on the unplatted
land within Assessment Area 1 (described in Exhibit “A"), the District shall
conduct the following true-up test at the time of the approval of each plat
within Assessment Area 1. The test is that the debt per acre remaining on
the unplatted land is never allowed to increase above the initial maximum
debt per acre level. Initially, the maximum level of debt peracre is calculated
as the par amount of the Series 2016 Bonds divided by the number of gross
acres within Assessment Area 1. For example, suppose Assessment Area
1 contained 10 developable acres and the District issued $1,000,000 in
bonds to fund the first portion of the Assessment Area 1 CIP. In this
example, every time Assessment Area 1 property is platted, the debt on the
remaining Assessment Area 1 lands after the plat is recorded must remain
at or below $100,000 per developable acre. If not, the District would require
a density reduction payment so that the $100,000 per acre level is not
breached. If all of Assessment Area 1 is included within a single plat



indicating more than 148 fots, all $1,000,000 in bonds would be allocated to
the 148 lots possessing the lowest Parcel ID numbers.

In the event that additional land not currently subject to Series 2016 Bonds
assessments is developed in such a manner as to receive special
benefit from the District's Assessment Area 1 CIP, it is contemplated that
this Methodology will be re-applied to include such new parcels. The
additional land, as a result of applying this Methodology, will be allocated
an appropriate share of the Series 2016 Bonds debt service
assessments, while all then-assessed parcels will receive a relative
adjustment in their assessment levels.

5.0 Preliminary Assessment Roll
The table below outlines the initial Series 2016 Bonds principal
assessments per developable acre for the lands within Assessment Area 1.
Series 2016 Bonds assessments will be assigned to individual residential lots
when the lands within Assessment Area 1 are developed, as addressed in
Section 3.0 above. The legal description of the land included within
Assessment Area 1 is found in Exhibit “A”, below.
Preliminary Assessment Roll
Bond Gross Bond Gross
Bond Principal Bond Principal Annual Annual
Assessment, all Assessment per Assessment, all Assessment per
Assessment Area 1 Assessment Assessment Assessment
Description Acreage Lands Area 1 Acre Areallands (1) Area 1 Acre (1)
See Exhibil "A" 147.97 $2,960.000 $20.004 $225.954 $1.527

(1) Values include a 7.0% gross-up to account for the fees of the County Property Appraiser and Tax Collector and the statutory early payment

discount.



EXHIBIT “A”
DESCRIPTION OF ASSESSMENT AREA 1 LANDS
TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 2A

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING WITHIN SECTIONS 8 AND 9, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, CITY
OF LAKELAND, POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND A REPLAT OF A PORTION OF TRACT B AND ALL OF
TRACT COF TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A PLAT BOOK 140, PAGE 33, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS
OF POLKCOUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP
29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 89°51'10" W, ALONG THE SOUTH
BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, A DISTANCE OF 1027.56 FEET; THENCE N
00°08'50" W, A DISTANCE OF 107.61 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADUS OF 430.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 25°35'50" E, A
DISTANCE OF 373.55 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF
386.42 FEETTOA POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY,
HAVING A RADIUS OF 980.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 45°58'59" E, A DISTANCE OF
183.04 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARCOF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 183.30 FEET
TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE S 67°38'22" E, A DISTANCE OF 71.68 FEET; THENCE S
22°21'38" W, A DISTANCE OF 150.00 FEET; THENCE S 49°00'48" W, A DISTANCE OF 73.23 FEET;
THENCES 25°02'17" E, A DISTANCE OF 110.00 FEET; THENCE N 64°57'43" E, A DISTANCE OF 60.23
FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS
OF 80.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 43°39'41" E, A DISTANCE OF 58.12 FEET; THENCE
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 59.48 FEET TO A POINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE N 22°21'38" E, A DISTANCE OF 31.49 FEET; THENCE S 67°38'22" E, A DISTANCE
OF50.00 FEET; THENCE S 22°21'38" W, A DISTANCE OF 15.58 FEETTO THE POINT OF CURVATURE
OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH
BEARS S30°30°24" E, A DISTANCE OF 39.86 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE
LEFT, ADISTANCE OF 46.14 FEETTO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 83°22'26" E, A DISTANCE OF
81.27 FEET; THENCE N 22°21'38" E, A DISTANCE OF 634.33 FEET; THENCE N 30°59'55" W, A
DISTANCE OF 328.67 FEET; THENCE N 26°38'07" E, A DISTANCE OF 21.84 FEET TO THE POINT OF
CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 595.00 FEET AND A
CHORD WHICH BEARS N 11°53'28" W, A DISTANCE OF 741,22 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF
SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 800.17 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N
50°25'04" W, A DISTANCE OF 296.39 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 705.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 70°18'39" W,
A DISTANCE OF 479.78 FEET, THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE
OF 489.55 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 89°47'45" W, A DISTANCE OF 83.50 FEET TO
THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 435.00 FEET
AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 89°57'18" W, A DISTANCE OF 3.78 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC
OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 3.78 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE N
36°19'40" E, A DISTANCE OF 436.78 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF
PIPKIN ROAD; THENCE N 89°47'51" E, ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF
982.20 FEETTOA POINT ON A NORTHERLY PROJECTION OF THE WEST BOUNDARY OF TOWNE
PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 140, PAGE 33 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF
POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 00°05'14" E, ALONG SAID NORTHERLY PROJECTION AND THE
WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A, A DISTANCE OF 118.00 FEET; THENCE




N 89°47'57" E, A DISTANCE OF 27.73 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF
WHITE EGRET LANE PER SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A AND THE BEGINNING A NON-
TANGENTIAL CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET
AND A CHORD WHICHBEARSS 17°45'18" E, A DISTANCE OF 28.04 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC
OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, AND SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 28.13 FEETTO
A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 200.00
FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 18°39'31" E, A DISTANCE OF 49.83 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE
ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, AND SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 49.96
FEETTO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE S 89°47'57" W, ON A NON-RADIAL LINE, A DISTANCE OF
52.11 FEETTO APOINT ON THE AFOREMENTIONED WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK
ESTATES PHASE 1-A; THENCE S 00°05'14" E, ALONG SAID WESTBOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 195.68
FEET, THENCE N 89°47'45" E, ALONG A SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES
PHASE 1-A, A DISTANCE OF 80.00 FEET; THENCE S 00°04'55" E, ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY OF
SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A, A DISTANCE OF 1646.83 FEET; THENCE N 89°50'53" E,
ALONG A SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A, A DISTANCE OF
136.98 FEET; THENCE S 88°44'58" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 138.19
FEETTO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF TRACT C OF SAID TOWNE PARKPHASE 1-A; THENCE N
23°39'35" E, ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID TRACT C, A DISTANCE OF 180.00 FEET TO THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT C; THENCE S 66°20'25" E, ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF
SAID TRACT C, A DISTANCE OF 275.00 FEETTO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT C; THENCE
N 23°39'35" E, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A, A
DISTANCE OF 108.62 FEET; THENCE N 72°37'20" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A
DISTANCE OF 209.24 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY,
HAVING A RADIUS OF 1010.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 64°57'40" E, A DISTANCE OF
269.29 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT AND ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 270.10 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE N 55°52'41" E,
ALONG A NON-TANGENTIAL LINE AND SAID SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 50.03 FEET,
TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY,
HAVING A RADIUS OF 1360.46 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 37°58'11" E, A DISTANCE OF
274.53 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 275.00 FEET
TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE N 48°42'02" E, ON A NON-RADIAL LINE AND SAID SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 18.23 FEET; THENCE S57°17'47" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 104.75 FEET; THENCE N 81°37'40" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 50.47 FEET; THENCE S 61°22'20" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 134,05 FEET; THENCE S 58°31'23" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 210.85 FEET; THENCE S 66°10'24" E, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY, ADISTANCE OF 132.26 FEET; THENCE S 00°28'53" W, ALONG THE WESTERLY
BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-A, A DISTANCE OF 178.59 FEET; THENCE S
00°14'08" E, ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 247.65 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST,
POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 89°45'52" W, ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF
1865.81 FEETTO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

LESS AND EXCEPT TRACT LS-1 AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 1-AAS
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 140, PAGE 33 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA.

THE ABOVE PARCEL CONTAINING 65.06 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

TOGETHER WITH THE FOLLOWING PARCEL:



TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 28

BEING A PARCEL OF LAND LYING WITHIN SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, POLK
COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARCTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

FOR A POINT OF REFERENCE COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 8 AND
PROCEED S 89°51'10" W, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 1027.56 FEET
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 26
(BLOCK 4) OF TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 2A PER PLATBOOK___, PAGE___ OF THE PUBLIC
RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 89°51'10" W, CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTH
BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 1627.60 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4
OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE S 89°51'04" W, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY THEREOF, A DISTANCE
OF 321.04 FEET; THENCE N 36°19'40" E, LEAVING SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 2787.77
FEET TO THE MOST SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 20 (BLOCK 1) OF SAID TOWNE PARK
ESTATES PHASE 2A AND THE MOST WESTERLY CORNER THEREOF; SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE
BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A
RADIUS OF 435.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 89°57'18" E, A DISTANCE OF 3.78 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, AND ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID
TOWNE PARK PHASE 2A, A DISTANCE OFf 3.78 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N
89°47'45" E, CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 2A, A
DISTANCE OF 83.50 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY,
HAVING A RADIUS OF 705.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 70°18'39" E, A DISTANCE OF
479.78 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 489.55 FEET
TO APOINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S50°25'04" E, A DISTANCE OF 296.39 FEET TO THE POINT OF
CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 595.00 FEET AND A CHORD
WHICH BEARS S 11°53'28" E, A DISTANCE OF 741.22 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE
TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 800.17 FEETTO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 26°38'07" W, A
DISTANCE OF 21.84 FEET; THENCE S 30°59'55" E, A DISTANCE OF 328.67 FEET; THENCE S 22°21'38"
W, ADISTANCE OF 634.33 FEETTO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF WAY OF NORTH EGRET LANE DEDICATED
PER SAID TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 2A; THENCE N 83°22'26" W, ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF WAY, A
DISTANCE OF 81.27 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY,
HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 30°30'24" W, A DISTANCE OF
39.86 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THERIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 46.14 FEET TO
A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N 22°21'38" E, A DISTANCE OF 15.58 FEET; THENCE N 67°38'22"
W, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF WHITE IBIS ROAD
DEDICATED PER SAID TOWNE PARK PHASE 2A; THENCE S 22°21'38" W, A DISTANCE OF 31.49 FEET
TO APOINTOF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 80.00
FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 43°39'41" W, A DISTANCE OF 58.12 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE
ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 59.48 FEETTO APOINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE
$64°57'43" W, A DISTANCE OF 60.23 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF TRACT D PER SAID
TOWNE PARK PHASE 2A; THENCE N 25°02'17" W, A DISTANCE OF 110.00 FEET; THENCE N
49°00'48" E, A DISTANCE OF 73.23 FEET; THENCE N 22°21'38" E, A DISTANCE OF 150.00 FEET;
THENCE N 67°38'22" W, ADISTANCE OF 71.68 FEET THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF SAID
TRACT D; SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLYWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 980.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH
BEARS S 45°58'59" W, A DISTANCE OF 183.04 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO
THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 183.30 FEET TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE
CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 430.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
25°35'50" W, A DISTANCE OF 373.55 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT,




A DISTANCE OF 386.42 FEET; THENCE S 00°08'50" E, A DISTANCE OF 107.61 FEETTO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE PARCEL CONTAINING 82.91 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND TOGETHER WITH THE PARCEL
DESCRIBED ABOVE ASTOWNPARK ESTATES PHASE 2A, COLLECTIVELY CONTAINING 147.97 ACRES,
MORE OR LESS.



APPENDIX
ASSESSMENT TABLES



APPENDIX TABLE 1

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
ASSESSMENT AREA 1 LAND USE PLAN
SERIES 2016 SUPPL. ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Development Phase (1) Description
Phase2A Singie-Family Lot
Phase 28 Single-Family Lot
Total

(1) Phase 1 of the overall P.U.D. for the project is complele and not included within the boundaries of the Districl. Phase 2A and 2B collectiveiy comprise the area referred to herein as

"Assessmerl Area 1 ¥

Suppl. Assmi. Methodology

Estimated Start

2016
2017

Fishklixd and Assaciates. Inc.

Estimated
Date Completion Date

2017
2018

Number of

L ots/Units

148
130

278

Appendix Table 1



APPENDIX TABLE 2

TOWNEPARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
PHASE 2 CIP COST ESTIMATES

SERIES 2016 SUPPL. ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Estimated Costs.

Infrastructure Component Assessment Area 1
Stormwater Management $3.654,000
Utilit es (Water and Sewer) $1,363,000
Roadways $4.305,000
Entry Features and Signage $750.000
Amenities $1,000,000
Contingency $700,000
Totals $8,772,000

Suppl. Assmt. Methodology Fishkind and Assoclates, Inc. Appendix Table 2



APPENDIX TABLE 3
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SERIES 2016 BONDS DETAILS
SERIES 2016 SUPPL. ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Bond Fund

Construction/Acaqutisition Fund (2)

Debt Service Reserve

Capitalized interest

Costs of Issuance (Including Underwriter's Fee)
Contingency

Total Bond Principal

Average Annual Interest Rate:
Term (Years):

Capitalized Interest Through:
Capitalized Interest (Months):
Maximum Net Annual Debt Service;

(1) The values shown are estimaled and subject to change. Fulure supplementtal assessmenl methodology report(s) will outline the actusl details of the Oistricl's bond issuanca(s)

{2} The funds raised by the Dislrict's Series 2016 Bonds may te insufficient to fully fund the Assessment Area 1 CIP. If bond funds are insufficient, one or more preperty owner will fund

Value (1)
$2.454,960
$210,138
$63.303
$231.600
$0
$2,960,000

5.58%

30

November 1, 2016
12

$210,137.50

the balance of the Assessment Area 1 CIP costs pursuant lo one or more complelion agreemenl.

Suppl. Assmt. Methodology

Fishkind and Associates, Inc.

Appendix Table 3



APPENDIX TABLE 4

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SERIES 2016 BONDS ASSESSMENTS

SERIES 2016 SUPPL. ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Series 2016 Bond Series 2016

Series 2016 Bond Series 2016 Bond Net Annual Bond Net

Number of Assessment Principal Assmt..all  Principal Assmt. Assmt., all Acres Anpual Assmt.

Property Description (1) Area 1 Acres (1) Acres [1) per Acre (1) (1)) per Acre (1)
Assessment Area 1 147.97 $2.960.000 $20,004.05 $210.137 .50 $1.420.14

Lots Necessary to
Absorb Series 2016  Series 2016 Bond Series 2016 Bond

Bonds Assessments Principal Assmt Principal Assmt.

Property Description (1) {1 148L0ts (1) per Lot (1)
Assessment Area 1 148 $2.960,000 $20.000
Lots Necessary to Series 2016 Bond Series 2016
Absorb Series 2016  Series 2016 Bond Series 2016 Bond Gross Annual Bond Gross
Bonds Assessments Net Annual Assmt., Net Annual Assmt. Assmt., 148 Lots Annual Assmt.
Property Description (1) (1)} 148 Lots (1) per Lot (1) (1)(2)  perlLot (1){2)
Assessment Area 1 148 $210.137.50 $1,419.85 $225,954.30 $1,526.72

(1)Assessments will in Initially be assigned to the acreage located within Assessment Area 1 on an egual per-acre basis. As lols are platied within Assessmenl Area 1, Series 2016 Bond
assessments will be assigned to thefirst 148 (ots thal are plalled within Assessment Area 1. Additional lots plaited within Assessmeni Area 1, following the platting of the initial 148 lols
subject lo Series 2016 Bond assessmenls, will be assessed to secure the repaymeri of a fulure series of bonds. likely isstied in 2017 or Jater

{2) Gross assessments represenl the assessment placed on the County lax roll each year, [f the Disirictelects to use the Unitorm Method of collecting non-ad valorem assessments
authorized by Chapter 197 of the Florida Statses, Grossassessments include an 7.0% gross-up lo account for the fees of the CountyProperty Appraiser and Tax Colleclor and the
slalulory early paymenlt discount

Suppt. Assmi. Methodology Fishkind and Associales, Inc. Appendix Table 4






Towne Park
Community Development District

Resolution 2019-16



RESOLUTION 2019-16

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TOWNE
PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SETTING FORTH
THE SPECIFIC TERMS OF THE DISTRICT’S SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
BONDS, SERIES 2019 (ASSESSMENT AREA 3B PROJECT);
CONFIRMING THE DISTRICT’S PROVISION OF IMPROVEMENTS;
CONFIRMING THE SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEER’S REPORT AND
THE SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY REPORT;
CONFIRMING, ALLOCATING AND AUTHORIZING THE
COLLECTION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SECURING THE
ASSESSMENT AREA 3B BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE
APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS; PROVIDING FOR THE
SUPPLEMENTATION OF THE IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK;
PROVIDING FOR THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF SERIES 2019
SPECIAL  ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS,
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Towne Park Community Development District (“District™) has
previously indicated its intention to undertake, install, establish, construct or acquire certain
public improvements and to finance such public improvements through the imposition of special
assessments on benefited property within the District and the issuance of bonds; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (*Board™) has previously adopted, after
notice and public hearing, Resolution 2015-17, relating to the imposition, levy, coliection and
enforcement of such special assessments; and

WHEREAS, pursuant lo and consistent with the terms of Resolution 2015-17, this
Resolution shall set forth the terms of bonds actually issued by the District, and apply the
adopted special assessment methodology to the actual scope of the project to be completed with
a series of bonds and the termns of the bond issue; and

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2019, the District entered into a Bond Purchase Contract, whereby
it agreed to sell $5,485,000 of its Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2019 (Assessment Area 3B
Project) (the **Assessment Area 38 Bonds™'); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with Resolution 2015-17, the District desires to set
forth the particular terms of the sale of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds and to confirm the liens
of the levy of special assessments securing the Assessment Area 3B Bonds.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:



SECTION1. AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION. This Resolution is adopted pursuant
to the provisions of Florida law, including Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, and

Resolution 2015-17.

SECTION2. FINDINGS. The Board of Supervisors of the Towne Park Community
Development District hereby finds and determines as follows:

(a)  On January 21, 2015, the District, after due notice and public hearing, adopted
Resolution 2015-17, which, among other things, equalized, approved, confirmed and levied
special assessments on property benefiting from the improvements authorized by the District.
That Resolution provides that as each series of bonds is issued to fund all or any portion of the
District’s improvements, a supplemental resolution will be adopted to set forth the specific terms
of each series of the bonds and certifying the amount of the liens of the special assessments
securing any portion of the bonds, including interest, costs of issuance, the number of payments
due, any True-Up amounts and the application of receipt of any Truc-Up proceeds.

(b) The Towne Park Community Development District Third Supplemental
Engineer's Report Phase 3B (Assessment Area 3B, dated July 2019, attached to this Resolution
as Exhibit A (the “Engineer’s Report™), identifies and describes the presently expected
components of the infrastructure improvements of the District (the “Assessment Area 3B
Project”), to be financed all or in part with the Assessment Area 3B Bonds (the
“Improvements™), and the estimated costs of the Assessment Area 3B Project as $5,540,000.
The District hereby confirms that the Assessment Area 3B Project serves a proper, essential and
valid public purpose. The Engineer’s Report is hereby approved, adopted, and confirmed. The
District ratifies its use in connection with the sale of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds.

(c) The Amended and Restated Master Assessment Methodology, dated March 8,
2018 (the” Master Report™), as supplemented by that Supplemental Assessment Methodology
Report, Phase 3B, Series 2019 Bonds, dated July, 2019 (the “Supplemental Report™” and,
together with the Master Report, the “Assessment Report”), attached to this Resolution as
Composite Exhibit B, applies to the Improvements and the actual terms of the Asscssment Area
3B Bonds. The Assessment Report is hereby approved, adopted and confirmed. The District
ratifies its use in connection with the sale of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds,

(d)  The Assessment Area 3B Project will specially benefit certain property within the
District, a legal description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C (“Assessment Area 3B™).
It is reasonable, propcr, just and right to assess the portion of the costs of the Assessment Area
3B Project financed with the Assessment Area 3B Bonds to the specially benefited properties
within the District as set forth in Resolution 2015-17, and this Resolution.

SECTION3. CONFIRMATION OF MAXIMUM ASSESSMENT LIEN FOR ASSESSMENT
AREA 3B BONDS. As provided in Resolution 2015-17, this Resolution is intended to set forth the
terms of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds and the final amount of the liens of the special
assessments securing those bonds.



(a) The Assessment Area 3B Bonds, in a par amount of $5,485,000, shall bear such
rates of interest and maturity as shown on Exhibit D attached hereto. The final payment on the
Assessment Area 3B Bonds shall be due on November 1, 2050. The estimated sources and uses
of funds of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds shall be as set forth in Exhibit E. The debt service
due on the Assessment Area 3B Bonds is set forth on Exhibit F attached hereto.

(b)  The lien of the special assessments securing the Assessment Area 3B Bonds on
Assessment Area 3B (the “Assessment Area 3B Assessments™), shall be the principal amount
due on the Assessment Area 3B Bonds, together with accrued but unpaid interest thereon, and
together with the amount by which annual assessments are grossed up to include early payment
discounts required by law and costs of collection. The Assessment Area 3B Bonds are secured
solely by the lien against Assessment Area 3B.

SECTION4. ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS SECURING THE ASSESSMENT AREA 3B
BONDS.

(a) The Assessment Area 3B Assessments for the Assessment Area 3B Bonds shall
be allocated in accordance with Composite Exhibit B, which allocation shall initially be on an
acreage basis and further allocated as lands are platited. The District’s Supplemental Report is
consistent with the District’s Master Report. The Assessment Repoit, considered herein, reflects
the actual terms of the issuance of the District’s Assessment Area 3B Bonds. The estimated
costs of collection of the Assessment Area 3B Assessments for the Assessment Area 3B Bonds
are as set forth in the Assessment Report.

(b) The lien of the Assessment Area 3B Assessments securing the Assessment Area
3B Bonds includes all property within Assessment Area 3B, and as such land is ultimately
defined and set forth in any plats, certificates of occupancy or other designations of developable
acreage.

(c) Taking into account capitalized interest and eamings on certain funds and
accounts as set forth in the Master Trust Indenture, dated June 1, 2016, and the Fourih
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated August 1, 2019 (together, the “Indenture”), the District
shall begin annual collection of the Assessment Area 3B Assessments for the Assessment Area
3B Bonds debt service payments using the methods available to it by law. Debt service payments
and semi-annual installments of interest are reflected on Exhibit F. The Assessment Area 3B
Bonds include an amount for capitalized interest through May 1, 2020.

(d)  Anowner of property subject to the Assessment Area 3B Assessments may pay in
whole or in part the principal balance of such Assessment Area 3B Assessments at any time if
there is also paid an amount equal to the interest that would otherwise be due on such prepaid
amount on the next succeeding interest payment date, or, if prepaid during the forty-five (45) day
period preceding such interest payment date, to the interest payment date following such next
succeeding interest payment date.

(e) An owner of property subject to the levy of Assessment Area 3B Assessments
may pay the entire balance of the Assessment Area 3B Assessments remaining due, without



interest, within thirty (30) days after the related Assessment Area 3B Project has been completed
or acquired by the District, and the Board has adoptad a resolution accepting such Assessment
Area 3B Project pursuant to Chapter 170.09, Florida Statutes. This provision is subject to
waiver by the owner of property at any time prior to or after the issuance of the Assessment Area

3B Bonds.

(N The District hereby certifies the Assessment Area 3B Assessments for collection
and directs staff to take all actions necessary to meet the time and other deadlines imposed by
Polk County and Florida law for collection. The District intends, to the extent possible and
subject to entering into the appropriate agreements with the Polk County Tax Collector and Polk
County Property Appraiser (or other appropriate Polk County, Florida officials) to collect the
Assessment Area 3B Assessments on platted lands contained within a plat or certificate of
occupancy using the Uniform Method in Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. The District intends, to
the extent possible, to directly bill, collect and enforce the Assessment Area 3B Assessments on
lands not included within an approved plat or certificate of occupancy unless in any year, the
District determines it to be in its best interest to collect such assessments using the Uniforin
Method in Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. The District Manager shall prepare or cause to be
prepared each year an assessment roll for purposes of effecting the collection of the Assessment
Area 3B Assessments and present same to the District Board as required by law. The District
Manager is further directed and authorized to take all actions necessary to collect special
assessments on property using methods available to the District authorized by Florida law in
order to provide for the timely payment of debt service.

SECTIONS. APPROVAL OF TRUE-UP PROCESS AND APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP
PAYMENTS. Pursuant to Resolution 2015-17, there may be required from time to time certain
True-Up payments. As parcels of land are included in a plat or certificate of occupancy, the
Assessment Area 3B Assessments securing the Assessment Area 3B Bonds shall be allocated as
set forth in Resolution 2015-17, this Resolution. and the Assessment Report, including, without
limitation, the application of the True-Up process set forth in the Assessment Report.

Based on the final par amount of $5,485,000 in Assessment Area 3B Bonds, the True-Up
calculations will be made in accordance with the process set forth in the Assessment Report.
The District shall apply all True-Up payments related to the Assessment Area 3B Bonds only to
the credit of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds. All True-Up payments, as well as all other
prepayments of assessments, shall be deposited into the accounts specified in the Indenture
goveruing the Assessment Area 3B Bonds.

SECTION6. IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK. Immediately following the adoption of this
Resolution these Assessment Area 3B Assessments as reflected herein shall be recorded by the
Secretary of the Board of the District in the District’s Improvement Lien Book. The Assessment
Area 3B Assessments or assessments against each respective parcel shall be and shall remain a
legal, valid and binding first lien on such parcel until paid and such lien shall be coequal with the
lien of all state, county, district, municipal or other governmental taxes and superior in dignity to
all other liens, titles, and claims.



SECTION7. OTHER PROVISIONS REMAIN IN EFFECT. This Resolution is intended to
supplement Resolution 2015-17, which remains in full force and effect. This Resolution and
Resolution 2015-17 shall be constiued to tlhhe maximum extent possible to give full force and
effect to the provisions of each resolution. All District resolutions or parts thereof in actual
conflict with this Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed.

SECTION 8.  ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District's Secretary is hereby directed to
record a Notice of Assessment Area 3B Special Assessments securing the Assessment Area 3B
Bonds in the Official Records of Polk County, Florida, or such other instrument evidencing the
actions taken by the District.

SECTIONY. SEVERABILITY. If any section or part of a section of this resolution be
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or pait of a
section of this resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that
such other section or part of a section of this resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon
the section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 10. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective upon its
adoption.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8t day of August, 2019.

ATTEST: TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Secretary/Assistant Secretary o Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
Exhibit A: Third Supplemental Engineer's Report Phase 3B (Assessment Area
3B, dated July 2019
Composite Exhibit B: Amended and Restated Master Assessment Methodology, dated

March 8, 2018 (the"” Master Report”), as supplemented by that
Supplemental Assessment Methodology Report, Phase 3B, Series
2019 Bonds, dated July, 2019

Exhibit C: Legal Description of Assessment Area 3B
Exhibit D: Maturities and Coupons of Assessment Area 3B Bonds
Exhibit E: Sources and Uses of Funds for Assessment Area 3B Bonds

Exhibit F: Annual Debt Service Payment Due on Assessment Area 3B Bonds



Exhibit A

TOWNE PARK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

THIRD SUPPLEMENT AL ENGINEER'S REPORT

PHASE 3B (Assessment Area 38)

PREPARED FOR:
BOARD OF SUPERVISCRS
TOWNE PARK

COMMUNITY DEVELCPMENT DISTRICT

PREPARED BY:

ABSOLUTE ENGINEERING. INC.

Engineering Business Na. 28358

JUNE2018



hil.

TOWNE PARK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INFROBUCTION: s s s st moniormm s o LU e 0 6o B R e i sigiiigt o i

RER RS E ANDI CHBIPE. 5y oo resangasens s atessssisnsass onsoaene sopssasesaginsns ieaai ssiine s ostiass sfasssse gasiode saseaod

PREPGSELAMPRONMEMBNIE: -+ s et rh e o b e el sars i iodhe it s ot it s Wi e dunspbe - o2 47g 28"

PERMITTING ...

....................................................................................................................................

....................................................................................................................................



LIST OF TABLES & EXHIBITS

TABLE 1 — Land Use Summary Within the District

TABLE 2 — Summary of Opinion of Probable Costs

TABLE 3 - Phasing References

EXHIBIT 1 — Map of Phase 38

EXHIBIT 2 — Legal Description of Phase 38

EXHIBIT 3 — Phasing Exhibit



TOWNE PARK
THIRD SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEER'S REPORT
PHASE 3B (Assessment Area 3B}

INTRODUCTION

The Towne Park Community Development District {the "District” or the "CDD") is located south
of West Pipkin Road and north of Ewell Road. just east of County Line Road. in the City of
Lakeland. Polk County, Florida. The District currently contains approximately 587 acres, and
is expected to consist of 1,453 single family and/or multi-family residential units, recreation
and amenity areas, parks. and associated infrastructure.

The CDD was established under City of Lakeland Ordinance No. 14.051, which was passed
by the City Council on November 3, 2014. The COD willown and operate the roadways and
stoomwater managemeni facilities, as well as the landscape. irgatien, signage, and
recreational facilities within the Community, The CDD will acquire the property and

improvements from the Developer at the lower of cost or fair market value.

improvements and facilities financed. acquired, and/or constructed by the COD will be
required to conform to regulatory requirements of the City of Lakeland, Polk County,
Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD), and other agencies with regulatory
jurisdiction over the development. An overall estimate of probable cost is provided in Table

2 of this report.

The development plan prepared by the CDD reflects the present intentions of the CDD. |t
should be noted that the location of proposed facilities and improvements may be adjusted
during the final design, permitling, and implementation phases. 1t should also be noted that
these modifications are nol expected to diminish the benefits received by the Towne Park
Community {the “"Community"), The CDD reserves the right to make reasonable adjustments
to the development pian to meet applicabte regulatory requirements of agencies with
jurisdiction over the development, while maintaining comparable levels of benefits to the
community served by the improvemenis. Changes and modifications are expected as

changes in regulatory criterio are implemented.



H.

Implementation of any proposed facilities or improvements outlined in this report requires
written approval from the CDD's 8oard of Supervisors. Estimated costs outlined in this report
were based on best available information, which includes but is not limited to previous
experience with similar projects. Actual costs could be different than estimates because final

engineering and specific field conditions may aftect construction costs.

All roadway improvements, sidewalks. and storm drainage collection systems (from the curb
inlets o their connection to the Stormwater ponds) within the Community will be owned and
maintained by the CDD. Water distribution and wastewater collection systems (gravity lines,
force mains. and lift stations} will be dedicated to CHy of Lakeiand for ownership and

maintenance.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this report is to provide engineering support to fund improvements in Phases
38 of the Community. Phase 3B is currently designed and being permitted for 277 single family
residential units and their associated infrastructure. This report will identity the proposed
capitalimprovements to be constructed or acquired by the District along with an opinion of

probable cost.

Thisreport should be reviewed in conjunction with the Master Engineer's Repoti.

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

The infrgstruciure Improvements for Phase 3B Include the following;

stermwater Management Facilities

Stormwater management facilities consisting of storm conveyance systems and retention
ponds are contained within the District boundaries and will be owned and operated by
the District. Stormwater runoff is collected via roadway curb and gutter to storm inlets,
which are connected by storm culverts. The storm culverts convey the runoff into the
proposed detention ponds for water quality treatment and attenuation. The proposed

stormwater systems will utilize wet detention for biological poilutant assimilation o achieve

2



water quality treatment. The design criteria for the District's stormwater management
systems is reguiated by the City of Lakeland. Polk County and SWFWMD.

FEMA Community Panel No. 12105C-0460G (dated 12/22/2016) demonsirates that the
property is located within Flood Zones A & X. Floodpiain compensation will be required for
any fil placed within Fiood Zone A. Addllionally, there are existing wellands on site that have

been delineated and approved by the appropriate regulatory agencies for such purposes.

During the construction of stormwater management facilities, utilities and roadway
improvements. the site contractor wil be required to adhere to a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan {SWPPP] as required by FDEP as deliegated by the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA). The SWPPP will be prepared to depict for the contractor the proposed
locations of required erosion controi consisting of staked turbidity barriers along the down
gradient side of any proposed construction activity and adjacent to the wetland edges
and the perimeters. The site contractor wiil be required to provide the necessary reporting
onvarious forms associated with erosion control. its maintenance and any rainfall events that

occur during construction activity.

Readways

The proposed local public roadway sections will be owned by the District and ore to
be 50' R/W with 20' of asphait and Miami curb and gutter on both sides. The proposed
roadway section will consist of stabilized subgrode. crushed concrete or cement treated
base and asphailt wearing surface. The proposed curb is to be 2' wide and placed along
the edge of the proposed roadway section for purposes of protecting the integtity of the
pavement and also to provide stormwater runoff conveyance to the proposed
stormwoter inlets. Roadway underdrains may be provided as necessary to control

groundwater and protect the roadway base material.

The proposed raadways will require signage and pavement markings within the public
rightsof-way, as well as street signs depicting streel name identifications and block
numbers, which will be utilized by the residents and pubiic. It is intended thal the CDD will

bond all public roadway improvements.



Water.and Wastewater Facilitias

A potable water system inclusive of water main, gate valves, fire hydrants and
appurtenances will be installed for the Development. The water service provider will be the
City of Lakeland Public Utilities. The water system will be a 'looped’ system consisting
of ¢ diameter PVYC and DIP water lines. These facilities will be Installed within the proposed
public rights-of-way within the District. The water system will provide the potable

{domestic) and fire protection services which will serve the entire District.

A domestic waslewater collection system consisting of gravity sanitary sewer mains and
sewer laterals will be installed. The gravity sanitary sewer mains will be 8" diameter PVC, The
gravity sanitary sewer lines will be placed inside of the proposed public rights-of-way. under
the proposed pavedroadways. Branching off from these sewer lines will be laterals to serve
Ihe individual lots. An existing pump station constructed in Phase 3A wlilserve

Phase 3B.

Reciaimed water is not avaitable for this site. A nirrigation well to be funded by the District will
be installed onsite to provide irigation within the public right of way. Any water, sewer,

or reciaim water pipes or facilities ptaced on private property will not be publicly funded.

Entox feglures £ landscaping & Jalaation / Amenities;
District improvements will include entty features a! the primary access points on Medulla
Road. These feaiures will include signage identifying the community. as well as buffer walls,

fencing. landscaping and inigation fo enhance the entrance. The District will own, operate

and maintain these features.

The Dislricl will provide streetscape along the local collector roads as requited by the City
of Lakeland Land Development Code. Landscaping and imigation will also be provided
within the local cotlector road rights-of-way and other common areas provided throughout
the Community. The District will maintain the streetscape, landscape, and irigation

systems are they are placed into service.

There are several tracts within the Community that ore reserved for recreational use.

4



Anticipated deveiopment includes a clubhouse with paved parking area, swimming pool,
multi-purpose fields. tennis courts, multi-purpose fields, paorks and open spaces. The
District witl operate and maintain the public facilities constructed within these areas.

Miscellgnegus

Upon completion of each phase of these improvements, inspection / certifications will be
obtained from SWFWMD, the Poik County Health Department {water distribution system),
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP. wastewater collection) and the City of

Lakeland.

The stormwater improvements, roadways, water and wastewater facilities, entry
features, amenities. landscaping and irrigation, mitigation area(s), and certain permits
and professional fees as described in this report, are being financed by the District with the
intention of benefiting all of the developable real property within this phase. The construction
and maintenance of the proposed public improvements will benefit the Development for

the intended use as a mixed use planned development.

PERMITTING

All required construction permits for Phase 38 have not yet been obtained, including
SWFWMD Environmental Recourse Permil (ERP). There are no proposed impacts to Army
Corps of Engineer (ACOE} jurisdictional wetlands within the project boundaries, therefore no

permits are required from that agency.

Following is a summary of required permits obtained and pending for the construction of the

public infrastructure improvements for the District:

Permils / Approvals Approval / Expected Date
Zoning Approval (Lakeland) PUD 17-066
Preliminary Plat {Lakeland) _ Expected June 2019
SWFWMD ERP 43043355.001
Construction Permits {Laketand) Expected June 2019
FDEP Water Expecied June 2019
FDEP Sewer Expected June 2019




CONCLUSION

It is our professional opinion that the public infrostructure costs for the District provided in this
report ore reasonable to complete the construction of the infrastiucture. Furthermore, the
public infrastructure improvements will benefit and add value to lands within the District at

least equal to the costs of such improvements.

The Opinion of Probable Costs of the infrastructure isonly an estimate and is not a guaranteed
maximum price. The estimated costs are based upon unit prices currently experienced on
an ongoing and similar basis for work in Polk County. Furthermore, the quantities are a
derivative of line items from specific construction documents and construction contracts as
of this dale. However, labor marke!, future costs of equipment, materials, changes to the
regulatory permitling agencies activity, and the actual consiruclion processes employed by
ihe chosen site contractor are beyond the engineer's control. Due lo this inherent
opportunity for changes (upward or downward) in the construction costs, the total, final

construction cost may be more orless than this estimate.

Based upon the presumption that the Project construction continues in a timely manner, il is
our professional opinion thot the proposed public improvements when constructed and built
in substantial conformance with the approved pians and specifications, can be completed
and used for their intended function. Be advised thot we have utilized historical costs and
direct unit costs trom site contractors and consultants in Polk County, which we believe to be
necessaryin order to facilitate eslimated costs associated with the Opinion of Probable Costs.
Based upon the information above, il is our professional opinion that the acquisition and

construction costs of the proposed project conbe completed at the cost as stated.



TOWNE PARK
Community Development District

Table 1 ~ Land Use Summary Within The District Boundaries

Distribution by Land Use ™

Land Use TOTAL (acres) Percentage
Stormwater Ponds 1 8.8 26.4 %
Residential ] 4348 61.2%

| Ciommercial ) _ 0 | 4] %_ :
Wetiand / Conservation 48 6.8 %
Racreation / Open Space S T
TOTAL - 71.08 100.0 %

Distribution by Lot Size @

Phase SF Lots MF Unite TOTAL Percentage
TOTAL 277 0 277 ' 100.0 %

Notes:

1 Figures are approximate; Areas may change upon final layout
2. Lot widths subject to change



TABLE TWO
TOWNE PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Summary of Opinion of Probable Cost

Number of Lots 22?

Infrasructure ¢ _Ph_u_Ti_ﬂ _
Stormwater Management “/7XsHe) S 1,037,578
Jutitities {(Water, Sewer, & Street Lighting) e $ 1,375,188
Roadway'! $ 1,917,850
Entry Feature & Signage'” $ 486,775
Contingency S 722,609
ToTaL $ 5,540,000 |

1. Infrastructure consists of roadway improvements, Stormwater
management facilities, master sanitary sewer lift station and
utilities, entty feature, landscaping and signage, and neighborhood
parks. Any land acquisitions or improvements purchased by the
District will be made at the lower of cost or fair market value.

2. Stormwater does not include grading associated with building
pads for initial construction and in conjunction with home
construction.

3. Includes Stormwater pond excavation. Does not include costof
transporting fill to, or use of fill on, privately owned land.

4. Includes sub-grade, base, asphalt paving, curbing, and civil/site
engineering. All roadways will be public and accessible by public.

5. Includes subdivision infrastructure and civil/site engineering.

6. Estimatesare based on 2018 costs.

7. Includes entry features, signage, hardscape, landscape,
irrigation and fencing.

8. CDD will enter into 3 Lighting Agreement with Lakeland Electric
for the street light poles and lighting service. Only undergrounding
of wires on public right-of-way, utility easements and on District land
will be financed by the District.



TABLE 3: Phasing References

| .
| "Master” Supplemental Engineer’s Reports Bond Documents
Hamlltan Phasing Map Phasing ! {Sub-Phasing) (Assessment Area References)
| Towne Park Estates Phase 2A Phase2A Towne Park Estates 2A
e First Supplemental Engineer’s Report Phase 2A e Partof Assessment Area 1 per First Supplemental
& 2B (Assessment Area 1), dated May 12, 2016 Trust Indenture (Series 2016)
Towne Park Estates Phase 28 ~ Phase 2B Towne Park Estates 28
ﬁ | e First Supplemental Engineer’s Report Phase 2A o Part of Assessment Area 1 per First Supplemental
o - & 28 (Assessment Area 1), dated May 12, 2016; | Trust Indenture {Series 2016)
and | » Partof Assessment Area 28 per Second
v Second Supplemental Engineer’s Report Phase | Supplemental Trust Indenture (Sefies 2018)
28 & 3A (Assessmment Area 2), dated February |
- B 2018
Riverstone Phase 1 Phase 3A Riverstone Phase 1
= Second Supplemental £ngineer’s Report Phase s PartofAssessment Area 3A per Third Supplemental
2B & 3A (Assessment Area 2), dated February Trust Indenture (Series 2018) '
| 2018
' Towne Park Estates South
e Map attached to Second Supplemental
= Engineer’s Report Phase 28 & 3A (Assessment
o ‘ Area 2), dated February 2018
[}
- £ — .
| Riverstone Phase 2 oy Phase3B Construction Began 2019 and Pending issuance
[ ® Third Supplemental Engineer’s Report Phase 3B
{Assessment Area 3B), dated May 2019
|
Riverstone Phases 3 & 4 T8D | TBD
Riverstone Phases 5 & 6 T8D T

L

| TBD

1 per Preliminory Engineer’s Report dated November 2014, as amended by that First Amendment to the Moster engineer’s Report, dated March 2018




SKETCH & DESCRIPTION — NOT A SURVEY

8oaQ
POINT OF BECINNG 100 4 -
N BISII2° € Mo 3¢ | [ e CORNER OF NE 3/4 SEC 17 3
) ?8 P B N eyer £ 152747 8.9
—— ] Ly Ny e [ i
N BORY OF MW 1/4 OF SEC 17 17 | 17 " EORY OF E 1/4 oF SEC 17 p—— 17| 16 )
3 27053 ]
.
E
4
|e
g
,‘
Iz
'__-
-]
g
= i
-v’-.
52 :
B2 s 17 17 17) 16
~ e gy @‘ = ==~ @
17 | 17 = ;‘ nl:: u-.-‘ 3 ‘al? 16
IINE AE CURVE TABLE
WEf | DRECTION | LDV OWRVES | RADKUS | CHORD GEATING | CHORD LENGTH | ARC LBMGM | DELTA
U | s283r2r w| 17008 ¢l | 000" | s 20028'10° w 27458 2209%" | 4118%0°
L | Nersyw" w|3s.07 c2 | 200000' [ s 3348'01" W 508,60 50797 | w3300
LS | s 2748'3¢° W | 20865 c3 | S4500' | S 1@0r14" € 68.61" @7 |12
L4 | S 450608° E | 40.08' c4 TO00 | S i116'28° W e0.@2’ 81.73' | 4710'08"
5 | S 13090 E | 3087 €9 | 1000,00'| S 0%0°28" W 66931 880,00 | sy’
18 | Sora2'1s” E| 80.37 8 | 1500.00' [ S BYE5'53° W 250,41 2500 | FUW
17 | S 103'46°E| 022
B[S 15483 w | e9.00'
W | N 7740700 W | 2237
L10 | S 383700" W | 1420°
LIl | S 6305°43° w| 48.40'
U2 | S 6205'46° W | 4.0t LEGEND:
P R) = RADAL
L3 [ s 2707 E | AW é’&z ';0':]"”"""
T = BOUNDARY
L4 | s ess 2 w | no.oo i
L5 | s ssoa14™ € | 12180° R/AW = RIGHT-OF ~WAY
VHAMILTON RIVERSTONE — POD 2
% ) ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, INC. POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA
o o= 3 —— SETTE e TOE NLLEER | fat. 28 o |\7az=2 STEET|
, TEL (813) 250+3536
Toupa, FLORDK 35600 LogTo1s  Fax (e sensess |17-28-23  |03550.0001 As sHowN  lo2/07/208 | 2/2




SKETCH & DESCRIPTION — NOT A SURVEY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, POLK COUNTY,
FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

FOR A PQINT QF BEGINNING COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
SAID SECTION 17 AND PROCEED N 89' 52' 43" E. ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY THEREOF, A
DISTANCE OF 1527.47 FEET; THENCE S 00" 12' 15" E, LEAVING SAJO BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF
270.S3 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS
OF 390.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BE&RS S 20° 26’ 10" W, A DISTANCE OF 274.95 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 280.99 FEET TO A POINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE S 41° 04' 35" W, A DISTANCE OF 650.38 FEET TO A ROINF OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY. HAVING A RADIUS OF 2000.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
33 48' 01" W. A DISTANCE OF 506.60 FEET: THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT,
A DISTANCE OF 507.97 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 26° 31' 27" W, A DISTANCE OF
179.05 FEET; THENCE N 80' 32' 49" W, A DISTANCE Of 315.07 FEET: THENCE S 22' 48’ 34" W, A
DISTANCE OF 206.65 FEET; THENCE S 45 06' 09” E, A DISTANCE OF 49.06 FEET; THENCE S 13* 05’
43" E, A DISTANCE OF 50.97 FEET. THENCE S O7 42' 14" E. A DISTANCE OF 80.32 FEE(; THENGE S
10" 30' 46" E. A DISTANCE OF 43.22 FEET: THENCE S 15° 48' 43" W, A DISTANCE OF 69.86 FEET:
THENCE N 72° 40" 08" W, A DISTANCE OF 28.38 FEET; THENCE S 38' 37 00" W. A DISTANCE OF
14.20 FEET; THENCE S 63" 05° 43" W, A DISTANCE OF 46.40. FEET; THENCE S 82' 05" 46™ W, A
DISTANCE OF 94.01 FEET: THENCE S 18" 12' 43" E, A DISTANCE OF 46.39 FEET; THENCE S 66° 16'
22" W, A DISTANCE Of 110.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON—TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 345.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 18° 01' 14" E, A
DISTANCE OF 68.61 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF
68.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A COMPOUND CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING
A RADIUS OF 75.00 FEET ANO A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 11° 16' 28" W, A DISTANCE OF 60.02 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE Of 61.75 FEET TO THE END OF
SAID CURVE; THENCE S 55° 08 14" E, ALONG A NON-RADJAL LINE, A DISTANCE OF 121.80 FEET TO
THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF
1090.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 70" 50' 28" W, A DISTANCE OF 669.31 FEET; THENCE
ALONG THE ARC OF SAJD CURVE TO THE RIGHF, A DISTANCE OF 680.30 FEET TO A POINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE S 88' 43’ 15" W, A DISTANCE OF 416.21 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1500.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
83 55' 5B" W, A DISTANCE OF 250.41 FEEF; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT,
A DISTANCE OF 250.70 FEEl TO THE END OF SAID CURVE:; THENCE N 10' 5%' 198" W, ALONG A
RADIAL LINE, A DISTANCE OF 314.09 FEET. THENCE N 27 34' 01" E. A DISTANCE OF 1799.57 FEET;
THENCE N 00° 08' 48" W, A DISTANCE OFf 678,08 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 17; THENCE N 89° 5%' 12" E, ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY,
A DISTANCE OF 374,34 FEET TO THE PQINIOF BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE PARCEL CONTAINING 88.03 ACRES, MORE OR LESS

Acron J. Murphy, PSM Date

Florida Professicnal Surveyor & Mapper No. 6768

for Hamilton Engineering and Surveying, Inc.
Certificote of Autherization No, LB7013

S VHAMILTON RIVERSTONE — POD 2
IFM EHOINCEAING & SURVEYING, INC. POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA
r; R WG Y ﬁm? SLALE ATE TEET
YAuon FLomDA 13000 oy e (ash eaoiame |17-29-23  |03550.0001 AS SHOWN  |oz2/07/2018 | 1/2




EXHIBIT

1.8 BOUNOMY OF TOWNE PARK COD

»
1000
_PIPKIN ROAD [} | [ ] 500
[
TOWNE PARK ESTATES
PHASE 2A 0
g
& BOUNDARY OF
TOWNE PARK ESTATES TOWNE PARK COD
PHASE 2B

TOWNE PARK ESTATES
PHASE 2A

1827

RIVERSTONE PHASE S & 6
UNPLATTED LAND

'BOUNDARY OF TOWNE PARK CDD

RIVERSTONE  PHASE 1

L
”%u BOUNOARY OF TOWNE PARK COD

BOUNDARY OF TOWNE PARK CODD

17| 18

RIVERSTONE PHASE 3 & 4

BOUNDARY OF TOWNE PARK COD lT‘j‘

= TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 2A
PIAT BOOK 163, PAGE 47

= TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 28

RIVERSTONE PHASE |

RIVERSTONE PHASE 2

1"=1000"

18| 17 1 n|w
19 20 /. BOUNDARY OF w20
TOWNE PARK COD
= RIVERSTONE PHASE 3 & 4
HAMILTON TOWNE PARK CDD
ENGNEERING & SURVETING, INC. CITY OF LAKELAND, POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA
.. oy dcim TOS RUKTEER 1 -5 RIYE" 3140
Taibn FLONDA S3e00  1BI0TS  Fax (o) 280-ssoe |8/8/17—29-23 |03550.0002 as sHowN  |os/22/208 |11




Composite Exhibit B

FISHKIND

& ASSOCIATES

PRELIMINARY AMENDED &
RESTATED MASTER
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

March 8, 2018

Prepared for:

Members of the Board of Supervisors,
Towne Park Community Development District

Prepared by:

Fishkind & Associates, Inc.
12051 Corporate Boulevard
Ortando, Florida 32817




PRELIMINARY AMENDED & RESTATED
MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

March 8, 2018

1.0

1.1

Introduction
Purpose

This “Preliminary Amended & Restated Master Assessment Methodology"”
dated March 8, 2018 (“Methodology"), effectively amends and restates the
District's “Adopted Master Assessment Methodology” dated January 21,
2014 (*Adopted Methodology™) in order to reflect additional infrastructure
improvements not included in the Adopted Methodology. The
Methodology provides a system for the allocation of non-ad valorem
special assessments securing the repayment of bond debt planned to be
issued by the Towne Park Community Development District (“District”) to
fund beneficial public infrastructure improvements and facilities. The
Methodology has two goals: (1) quantifying the special benefits received
by properties within the District as a result of the installation of the
District's improvements and facilities, and (2) equitably allocating the
costs incurred by the District to provide these benefits to properties in the
District.

The District plans to implement a capital improvement program (“CIP") that
will allow for the development of property within the District. The District
plans to fund the maijority of its CIP through bond debt financing. This bond
debt will be repaid from the proceeds of non-ad valorem special
assessments levied by the District's Board of Supervisors. These special
assessments will serve as liens against properties within the boundary
of the District that receive a special benefit from the first phase of the CIP.
This Methodology is designed to conform to the requirements of
Chapters 170, 190, and 197 of the Florida Statutes with respect to special
assessments and is consistent with our understanding of the case law on
this subject.



12

1.3

14

Background

The District includes approximately 584.8 gross acres of property located
within the City of Lakeland, Florida. The District is generally located to the
south of West Pinkin Road, to the west of Yates Road, and to the north of
Ewell Road within the City of Lakeland. At build-out, the District is expected
to contain 1,638 single-family lots, 450 multi-family units, recreation
areas, parks/conservation, and related infrastructure. The legal description
of the land inciuded within the District's boundaries is found in Exhibit "A."
The land use place for the District is found in Table 1 (all tables are found
in the attached Appendix.)

Special Benefits and General Benefits

Improvements undertaken by the District create both special benefits and
general benefits to property owners located within and surrounding the
District. However, the general benefits to the public at large are incidental
in nature and are readily distinguishable from the special benefits which
accrue to property located within the District. it is the District's CIP that
enables properties within the District's boundaries to be developed.
Without the District's CIP, there would be no infrastructure to support
development of land within the District. Without these improvements
development of property in the District would be prohibited by law.

There is no doubt that the general public and certain property owners
outside the District will benefit from the provision of District infrastructure.
However, such benefit is incidental to the benefit to property within the
District resulting from the District's CIP, which is designed solely to meet
the needs of property owners within the District. Properties outside the
District do not depend upon the District’s CIP to obtain, or to maintain,
their development entitlements. This fact alone clearly distinguishes the
special benefits which District properties receive compared to those
properties lying outside of the District's boundaries.

Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology

For special assessments to be valid under Florida law, there are two
requirements. First, the properties assessed must receive a special benefit
from the improvements paid for via the assessments. Second, the
assessments must be fairly and reasonably allocated to the properties
being assessed.



2.0

2.1

2.3

If these two characteristics of valid special assessments are adhered to,
Florida law provides some latitude to legislative bodies, such as the
District's Board of Supervisors, in approving special assessments.
Indeed, Florida courts have found that the mathematical perfection of
calculating special benefit is likely impossible. Only if the District's Board
was to act in an arbitrary, capricious, or grossly unfair fashion would its
assessment methods be overturned.

CIP Plan of Finance
Infrastructure Installation

The District will install its public infrastructure and improvements on a
phased basis, as outlined in more detail in the “Towne Park Community
Development District Master Engineer’s Report” dated November 2014, as
amended by the First Amendment dated March 2018, (together, the
‘Engineer’s Report”), as prepared by Hamilton Engineering & Surveying,
Inc. (“District Engineer”). Although the District will install its infrastructure in
multiple phases, the CIP is designed to operate as a system, with
improvements impiemented during initial phases benefiting properties
within subsequent phases and improvements implemented in later phases
benefitting properties within initial phases. The estimated costs of the
District's CIP are presented in Table 2.

Bond Requirements

The District intends to finance the majority of its CIP by issuing bonds.
These bonds will be issued in several series, as development progresses
within the District. A number of component funds will comprise the total
principal of the bonds to be issued by the District. The funds may include,
but are not limited to, acquisition and construction, capitalized interest, debt
service reserve, underwriter’s discount, and issuance costs. An estimate of
the bond issuance required to fund the District's CIP is found in Table 3.

As bonds are issued by the District, Fishkind will issue supplemental
assessment methodology report(s) detailing the particulars of each specific
bond issue. The supplemental report(s) will detail the terms, interest rates,
and costs associated with a specific series of bonds. The supplemental
report(s) will also detail the specific bond service assessments for
properties that been assessed to secure each bond issuance



3‘0

3.1

Assessment Methodology

Assessment Foundation

The assessment methodology associated with the allocation of the costs of
the CIP is a four-step process. First, the District Engineer determines the
costs for the District’s infrastructure and related improvements. Second, an
estimate of the amount of bonds required to finance the infrastructure
improvements is calculated. Third, the District Engineer outlines which
parcels benefit from the provision of infrastructure and improvements. Finally,
the as-financed costs of the infrastructure and related improvements are
allocated to the benefiting properties based on the approximate relative
benefit each unit receives as expressed by that unit's Equivalent Residential
Unit ("ERU") Factor.

In allocating special assessments to benefiting property, Florida governments
have used a variety of methods including, but not limited to, front footage,
area, trip rates, equivalent residential units, dwelling units, and acreage.
Fishkind has determined that an assessment methodology based on
equivalent residential unit (“ERU") values is appropriate. These ERU values
equate the benefit received by a stated amount of such particular land use
category to the benefit received by a typical single-family residence. The use
of ERU values to estimate the benefit derived from infrastructure
improvements is recognized as a simple, fair, and reasonable method for
apportioning benefit. ERU values are a commonly accepted method for
calculating special benefit assessments in Florida. Here, Fishkind has chosen
to assign an ERU value of 1.0 to each planned single-family residentiai lot and
a 0.65 ERU for each planned multi-family residential unit.

A lower ERU value for the multi-family development is appropriate here as the
average size of the multi-family units will be smaller and more densely
developed than the planned single-family units. These physical characteristics
of the multi-family development planned for the District indicate that these
units will receive a lesser benefit from the District's CiP when compared to the
planned single-family units. For example, the proportionate length of roadway
needed to serve each multi-family unit is less than the length required to serve
single family units. Additionally, the smaller land area required for each multi-
family unit will produce less stormwater runoff than each single-family lot, and
so each multi-family unit will have a reduce impact on the District's stormwater
facilities, when compared to a single-family unit.



3.2 Assignment of Assessments

33

The CIP cost estimates are outlined in Table 2 and described in detail in the
Engineer's Report. The maximum amount of bonds required to fund the CIP
costs has been calculated and is shown in Table 3. The bond principal and
related annual debt service assessments will then be apportioned among the
development pfanned for the District on the basis of ERU values, as outlined
in Table 4. The resulting bond principal and related annual debt service
assessment for each lot planned for the District are shown in Table 5. Table
5 becomes important as the land within the District is platted, as specific bond
debt service assessments will be assigned to the individual platted lots at that
time.

One or more future supplemental assessment methodology reports will outline
the precise bond debt service assessments assigned to the lands within the
District. If the lands within the District are unplatted, bond debt service
assessments will initially be assigned to the undeveloped developable land
within the District on an equal per-acre basis. The assessments for each
platted lot (a platted single-family lot will be referred to herein as a
“Development Unit") will be assigned to each Development Unit when a parcel
is initially platted.

True-Up Mechanism

In order to ensure that the District’s bond debt will not build up on the unplatted
lad within each phase, the District shall periodically apply a "true-up” test.
Initially, District bond debt shall be allocated to each phase as outlined in
Table 3. This bonds debt shall, prior to platting, be allocated equally to each
of the developable acres within each phase. As property is platted, “true-up”
or density reduction payments may become due based upon the amount of
bond debt assessments initially assigned to each phase. For example, as
outlined in Table 3, it is estimated that $50,000,000 in bonds principal will be
allocated to the developable lands within the District at the time of issuance.
This $50,000,000 in principal will initially be allocated equally to all 584.8 acres
located within the District, resulting in $85,499 in bond principal assessment
per acre.



4.0

The bonds principal true-up test shall be applied at the completion of the
platting of 50%, 75%, 90%, and 100% of the developable acreage within the
District. Should it be determined at one of these platting benchmarks that the
bond principal remaining per undeveloped acre exceeds the $85,499
threshold, the owner of the land at the time of platting will be required to make
a true-up payment to the District sufficient to reduce remaining bond principal
per acre to the permissible $85,499 level It is the responsibility of the
landowner of record of the affected parcel to make or cause to be made any
required true-up payments due. This true-up obligation runs with the land
within the District. The District will not release any liens on property for which
true-up payments are due until provision for such payment has been
satisfactorily made.

In the event that additional land not currently subject to the assessments is
developed in such a manner as to receive special benefit from the CIP, it is
contemplated that this Methodology will be re-applied to include such new
parcels. The additional land, as a resuit of applying this Methodology, will be
allocated an appropriate share of the special assessments, with all previously-
assessed parcels receiving a relative adjustment in their assessment levels.

Contribution of District Infrastructure and/or Improvements

The costs of the District's CIP will likely be funded by two mechanisms. The
first mechanism is the issuance of special assessment bonds. The second
mechanism is the contribution of funds or CIP components to the District
("Contribution"). Property owners within the District will have the opportunity
to make such a Contribution upon approval by the District.

A District property owner's Contribution will give rise to assessment credits
that can be applied by the property owner to reduce or eliminate bond debt
service assessments that would otherwise be assigned to lands within the
District to fund the costs of the CIP. Prior to a property owner reducing or
eliminating bond debt service assessments through a Contribution, it must be
shown that the improvements funded or contributed by the property owner are
a component of the CIP, as outlined in the Engineer’'s Report. The property
owner will be permitted to apply assessment credits equal to the value of the
Contribution plus the costs of financing the improvement(s) that would
otherwise have been incurred by the District if the District were required to
issue bonds to fund or acquire the improvement(s) (such that the property
would not be responsible for bond financing costs if the Contribution was



made prior to the District's issuance of special assessment bonds). A property
owner possessing assessment credits due to a Contribution will, in the
District's discretion, have the opportunity to use the assessment credits to
adjust bond debt service assessment levels of Development Units.

5.0 Prellminary Assessment Roll

The table below outlines the maximum bond principal assessment per
developable acre forthe lands within the District. The legal description of the
land included within the District is found in Exhibit “A”, below.

Preliminary Assessment Roll

Bond BondGross BondGross

Bond Principai Anpual Annual

Principal Assessment Assessment Assessment

Description Acreage Assessment per Acre (1) per Acre {1}
See Exhibit "A" 5848  $50.000.000 $85.499 $4.552.217 $7784

{1) Values include a 7 0% gross-up to account for the fees of the County Property Appraiserand Tax Collector and
tise statutory early payment discount.



EXHIBIT “A”
DESCRIPTION OF LAND WITHIN THE DISTRICT

Phase 2:

THAT PART OF SECTIONS 8 & 9, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, POLK
COUNTY, FLORIDA MORE PART{CULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGIN AT
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 9 AND RUN THENCE N-89°58'07"-E
ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 9, 1865.81 FEET; THENCE N-
00°01'63"-W, 247.65 FEET, THENCE N-00°41'07"-E, 178.59 FEET; THENCE N-65°58'09"-
W, 132.26 FEET; THENCE N-58°19'08"W, 210.85 FEET; THENCE N-61°10'05"-W, 134.05
FEET; THENCE S-81°49'64"-W, 50.47 FEET; THENCE N-57°05'32"-W, 104.75 FEET,;
THENCE S-48°564'17"-W, 18.23 FEET; THENCE ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE
EAST HAVING A RADIUS OF 1360.46 FEET, A CHORD OF 274.53 FEET AND A
CHORD BEARING OF N-37°45'56"-W THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 11°34'64" AN
ARC LENGTH OF 275.00 FEET; THENCE S-56°05'06"-W, 560.03 FEET; THENCE ALONG
A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE NORTH HAVING A RADIUS OF 1010.00 FEET, A CHORD
OF 269.29 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF S-65°09'65"-W THROUGH A CENTRAL
ANGLE OF 15°19'20" AN ARC LENGTH OF 270.10 FEET; THENCE S-72°49'35"-W,
209.24 FEET,; THENCE S-23°51'50"-W, 26862 FEET, THENCE N-66°08'10"-W, 160.00
FEET; THENCE S-23°51'60"-W, 20.00 FEET; THENCE N-66°08'10"-W, 115.00 FEET;
THENCE N-88°32'43"-W, 138.19 FEET; THENCE N-89°66'52"-W, 137.01 FEET TO THE
WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 9; THENCE N-00°07'16"-E ALONG SAID WEST
BOUNDARY, 1646.83 FEET; THENCE N-90°00'00"-W, 80.00 FEET; THENCE N-
00°07'16"-E, 387.68 FEET TO THE RIGHT OF WAY OF WEST PIPKIN ROAD; THENCE
N-89°69'64"-W ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY, 982.20 FEET; THENCE S-36°31'65"-W
ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE LAKELAND LINDER REGIONAL AIRPORT
APPROACH SURFACE, 3224.55 FEET TO A POINT OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF
THE SOUTHWEST %42 OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE S-89°56'41"-E ALONG SAID
SOUTH BOUNDARY, 321,04 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE
SOUTHEAST % OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE S-89°56'35"-E ALONG THE SOUTHERN
BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHEAST % OF SAID SECTION 8, 2655.16 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Phase 3:

Parcel 232917-000000-031000:

NW1/4 LESS SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF NW1/4 & NW1/4 OF SW1/4 & W1/4 OF NE1/4 OF
SWi1/4

Parcet 232917-000000-010000:

NE1/4 & SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF NW1/4 & E3/4 OF NE1/4 OFSW1/4

Parcel 232917-000000-023080:

N 330 FT OF W1/2 OF SE1/4 LESS E 990 FT BEING LOT 88 UNRE WOODHAVEN
Parcel 232917-000000-042120:

BEG 175 FT E OF SW COR OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SEC N 365 FT W 175 FT N 976.32
FTE49761FTS 437.69FTW447.61FT S 48867 FTE175FTS415FTWS0FTTO
POB LESS RD RAW



Parcel 232917-000000-042070:

BEG 225 FT E OF SW COR SE1/4 OF SW1/4 N 415FT W 175 FT N 488.67 FT E 44761
FTS 90403 FTTOS LINE SECW 272.61 FT TO POB LESS RD RW

Parcel 232917-000000-044110:

E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4

Parcel 232917-000000-044140.

E1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SEC LESS N 208.76 FT OF S 238.75 FT OF W
208.75FT & LESS RD RW

Parcel 232917-000000-042110:

BEG SW COR OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SECE ALONG S SEC LINE 175FTN 365 FTW 175 FTS TO POB
LESSRD R/W



APPENDIX
ASSESSMENT TABLES



APPENDIX TABLE 1

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
DISTRICT LAND USE PLAN

FIRST AMENDMENT - MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Estimated Start
Development Phase {1) Description Date
Phase Il Single-Family Lot 2015
Phase {lI Single-Family Lot 2016
Phase I Muilti-Family Unit 2016
Total

(1) Phase | of the overalt P.U.D. is complete and not included within the boundaries of the District

Master Assmt. Methadology Fishkind and Associates, Inc.

Estimated

Completion Date

2016
2018
2018

Number of

Lots/Units

207
1,431
450

2,088

Appendix Table 1



APPENDIX TABLE 2

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

CIP COST ESTIMATES

FIRST AMENDMENT - MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Infrastructure Component

Offsite Improvs & PH 3 Master Bivd
Stormwater Management
Utilities (VWater and Sewer)

Roadways

Entry Features and Signage

Amenities
Contingency

Totals

Master Assmt. Methodology

Estimated Costs,

Phase Il

$0
$3,654,000
$1,363,000
$1,305,000
$750,000
$1.000,000
$700,000

$8,772,000

Estimated Costs,

Phase lll

$4.443,450
$15,649,500
$5.333,200
$5.059.800
$860.000
$1,600,000
$1,980,000

$34,925,950

Fishkind and Associates, Inc.

Total Costs, all

Phases

$4,443 450
$19,303,500
$6,696,200
$6,364,800
$1,610,000
$2,600,000
$2.,680,000

$43,697,950

Appendix Table 2



APPENDIX TABLE 3

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
ESTIMATED BOND FINANCING DETAILS

FIRST AMENDMENT - MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Bond Fund Value {1}
Construction/Acquisition Fund $43,697,950
Debt Setvice Reserve $2,906.500
Capitalized Interest $2,192,969
Costs of issuance (Including Underwriter's Fee) $1.200.000
Contingency 32581
Total Bond Principal $50,000,000
Average Annuat! Interest Rate: 7.50%
Tenn (Years): 30

Capitalized Interest Through: November 1, 2017
Capitalized Interest (Months): 35

Maximum Net Annual Debt Service: $4.233.562

{1) The values shown are estimated and subject to change. Future suppiemental assessmentmethadoaiogy epoit(s) will outline the actual dewits of the District's bond issuance(s)

Master Assmt. Methodology Fishkind and Associates, Inc. Appendix Table 3



APPENDIX TABLE 4
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ERU VALUE ASSIGNMENTS
FIRST AMENDMENT - MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

ERU Value per ERU Values, all % ofERUs per

Phase Planned L ots/Units Lot/Unit Lots/Units Category
Phase |l Single-Family 207 1.0 207 10.7%
Phase |ll Single-Family 1,431 1.0 1.431 741%
Phase Ill Multi-Family 450 0.65 293 15.2%
Totals 2,088 1,931 100.0%

(1} Gross assessments represent the assessment placed on the County tex roll each year, if the District elects to use the Uniforrn Method of collecting non-ad valorem assessments
authorized by Chapter 197 of the Florida Statutes. Gross assessments include an 7.0% gross-up to account for the fees of the County Propeity Appraiser and Tax Collector and the

statutosy early payment discount.

Master Assmt. Methodology Fishkind and Associates, Inc. Appendix Table 4



APPENDIX TABLE §

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
ESTIMATED MAXIMUM BOND ASSESSMENTS
FIRST AMENDMENT - MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Phase Planned Lots/Units
Phase Il Single-Family 207
Phase {ll Single-Family 1.431
Phase Ill Muiti-Family 450
Totals 2,088

% of ERUs per
Phase Category
Phase Il Single-Family 10.7%
Phase Il Single-Family 74.1%
Phase {1l Multi-Family 15.2%
Totals 100.0%

% of ERUs per
Cateqory
10.7%

74.1%

15.2%

100.0%

Bond Net Annual

Bond Principal
Assmt./ Cateqgory

$5,361305
$37,062,937

$7,575.758
$50,000,000

Bond Net Annual

Bond Principal
Assmt per
Lot/Unit
$25,900
$25,900
$16,835

Bond Gross
Annual Assmt./

Assmt./Category Assmt. per Lot/Unit

$453,948
$3.138,165

$641,449
$4,233,562

$2,193
$2,193
$1.425

Category (1)
$488,117
$3.374,371

$689,730
$4,552,217

Bond Gross
Annual Assmt./

Unit (1)
$2,358
$2,358
$1.533

(1) Grass assessments represent the assessment p:aced on the County tax roll each year, if the District elects ta use the Uniform Method of collecting non-ad valorem assessments
authorized by Chapter 197 of the Florida Statutes. Grass assessments include an 7.0% gross-up to account for the fees of the County Property Appraiser and Tax Collector and the

statutory early payment discount.

Master Assmt. Methodology

Fishkind and Associates, Inc.

Appendix Table 5



pfm

SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT
METHODOLOGY REPORT,
PHASE 3B, SERIES 2019 BONDS

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

July 2019

Prepared for:

Members of the Board of Supervisors,
Towne Park Community Development District

Prepared on July 22, 2019

PFM Financial Advisors LLC
12051 Corporate Boulevard
Qriando, FL 32817




SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY REPORT,
PHASE 3B, SERIES 2019 BONDS
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

July 22, 2019

1.0

1.1

1.2

Introduction
Purpose

This Supplemental Assessment Methodology (Phase 3B), dated July 22, 2019 ("Supplemental
Methodology”) provides a system for the allocation of non-ad valorem special assessments securing the
repayment of bond debt planned to be issued by the Towne Park Community Development District
("District*) to fund beneficial public infrastructure improvements and facilities. This Supplemental
Methodology operates pursuant to the District's "Amended and Restated Master Assessment
Methodology", dated March 8, 2018 (“Amended Methodology”) which replaced the District's “Adopted
Master Assessment Methodology® dated Januaty 21, 2015 (‘Methodology”).

The Supplemental Methodology applied herein has two goals: (1) identifying the special benefits received
by properties within the District as a result of the installation of the District's improvements and facilities,
and (2) reasonabily allocating the costs incurred by the District to provide these benefits to properties in
the Disliict. The District has implemented a capita! improvement program (“CiP“) that will allow for the
development of property within the District. The District plans to fund the majority of its CIP through bond
debt financing. This bond debt will be repaid from the proceeds of non-ad valorem speciat assessments
levied by the District's Board of Supervisors. These special assessments will seive as liens against
properties within the boundary of the Oistrict that receive a special benefit from the CIP. This
Supplemental Methodology is designed to conform to the requirements of Chapters 170, 190, and 197
of the Florida Statutes with respect to special assessments and is consistent with our understanding of
the case law on this subject.

Background

The District includes approximately 586 gross acres of propeity located within the City of Lakeland,
Florida. The District is generally located to the south of West Pipkin Road, to the west of Yates Road,
and to the north of Ewell Road within the City of Lakeland. At build-out, the District is expected to
contain 1,453 residential units, recreation areas, parks/conservation, and related infrastructure.



1.3

1.4

The District previously issued its Series 2016 Special Assessment Revenue Bonds to fund
infrastructure specially benefiting Phase 2A within the Dislrict's *Assessment Area 1". The District
previously issued its Series 2018 Special Assessment Revenue Bonds to fund infrastructure specially
benefiting Phases 2B and 3A within the District. The District now desires to issue the Special
Assessment Revenue Bonds, Serles 2019 {‘Series 2019 Bonds"} to fund the infrastructure specially
benefiting the propeities within Phase 38 (described in Exhibit “A®). The land use plan for Phase 3B
within the District is found in Table 1.

Table 1. Summary of Phase 3B Land Plan

Development Phase Number of Single-Family Lots
Phase 38 - Rlverstone Ph 2 7

Source: Absclute Engineering, inc.
Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology

In our experiience, there are two primary requirements for special assessments to be vaiid under Florida
law. First, the properties assessed must receive a special benefit from the improvements paid for via
the assessments. Second, the assessments must be fairly and reasonably allocated to the properties
being assessed. If these two characleristics of valid special assessments are adhered to, Florida law
provides some latitude to legislative bodies, such as the District's Board of Supervisors, in approving
special assessments. Indeed, Florida courts have found that the mathematical perfection of calcuiating
special benefit is likely impossible. Our research suggests that only if the District's Board was to act in
an arbitrary, capricious, or grossly unfair fashion would its assessment methods be overturned.

Speclal Benefits and General Benefits

improvements undertaken by the District create both special benefits and general benefits to property
owners located withint and surrounding the District. However, in our opinion, the general benef'ts to the
public at large are incidental in nature and are readily distinguishable from the special benefits which
accrue to property located within the District. It is the District's CIP that enables properties within the
District's boundaries to be developed. Without the District's CIP there would be no infrastructure to
support development of land within the District. Without these improvements, development of property
in the District would not be permitted.



2.0

21

The new infrastructure improvements included In the CIP create bath: (1) special benefits to the
developable propeity within the District and (2) general benefits to properties outside the District.
However, as discussed below, these general benefits are incidental in nature and are readily
distinguishable from the special benefits which accrue to the developable property within the District.
The CIP described in the District Engineer's Report enables the developable propeity within the District
to be developed. Without the CIP, there wou!d be no infrastructure to suppoit development of the
developable property within the District.

CIP Plan of Finance
Infrastructure Installation

The Districtis installing its public infrastructure and improvements on a phased basis. as outlined in more
detail in the “Towne Park Community Development District Third Supp!emental Engineer's Repoit Phase
38 (Assessment Area 3B)’, dated July 2019 (*Engineer’s Report’), as prepared by Absolute Engineering,
Inc. {‘District Engineer’). As outlined in the Engineers Report, the District plans to install the
infrastructure necessary to serve the lands within Phase 3B. The District infrastructure and
improvements for Phase 38 are designed to serve and specially benefit the lands within Phase 38
(“Phase 3B Project”). The estimated costs of the Phase 38 Project are presented in Table 2.

Table 2. Summary of Phase 38 CIP

Infrastructure Component Estimated Costs, Phase 38
Stormwater Management $1.037.578
Utilities (water, sewer & strest lighting) $1.375,188
Roadway $1.917.850
Entry Feature & Signage $488,775
Contingency $722,609
Totals $5,540,000

Source: Absolule Engineeling, Inc.



22

Bond Requirements

The District intends to finance the majority of its CIP by issuing bonds. These bonds are being issued in
several series, as development progresses within the District. The District's Series 2019 Bonds will fully
or partially fund the costs of the Phase 3B Project. The Series 2019 Bonds will be supported by
assessments Imposed solely to properties located within Phase 3B.

The details of the Series 2013 Bonds issuance required to fund the Phase 3B Project is found in Table
3. Asshownin Table 3, the Series 2013 Bonds include several componentfunds typical of similar bonds,
including funds to pay capitalized interest, establish a debt service reserve, and pay the costs of issuance
associated with the Series 2013 Bonds.

Table 3. Estimated District Bond Financing Details (1)

Bond Fund Valus (2)

Construction Acquisition Fund $4,673,079
Originat Issuers Discount -§10,104
Debt Service Reserve $335,844
Capitalized interest $173,364
Costs of Issuance (Including Underwriter's Fee) §292,610
Contingency $0
Estimatad Bonds Principal $5,485,000
Average Annual Coupon Rats: 4.52%
Term (Years): 30
Maximum Net Annual Debt Service: $335844
Maxlmum Gross Annual Debt Service (3): $361,122

{1)  Source: Diatrict Underwriter
(2) Thevaiues stiown sre estunated and subjecl lo change
{3} Includes a 7.0% gioss-up lo accuont for the fees of tile Counly Piopery Appraiser and

Tax Collector and ie statutory earty paymenl disceunl



3.0

31

32

Assessment Methodology
Assessment Foundation

The assessment methodology associated with the allocation of the costs of the CIP is a four-step
process. First, the District Engineer determines the costs for the District's infrastructure and related
improvements. Second, an estimate of the amount of bonds requlred to finance the infrastructure
improvements is calculated. Third, the District Engineer outlines which parcels benefit from the provision
of infrastructure and improvements. Finally, the as-financed costs of the infrastructure and related
improvements are allocated to the benefiting properties based on the approximate relative benefit each
unit receives as expressed by that unit's Equivalent Residential Unit (“ERU”) Factor.

In allocating special assessments to benefiting property, Florida governments have used a variety of
methods including, but not imited to, front footage, area, tiip rates, equivalent residential units, dwelling
units, and acreage. PFM Financial Advisors LLC (‘PFM FA" and/or “Assessment Consultant’) has
determined that an assessment methodology based on equivalent residential unit (*ERU") values is
appropriate. These ERU values equate the benefit received by a stated amount of such particular land
use category to the benefit received by a typical single-family residence. The use of ERU vaiues to
estimate the benefit derived from infrastructure improvements is recognized as a simple, fair, and
reasonable method for apportioning benefit. ERU values are a commonly accepted method for
calculating special benefit assessments in Florida. Here, the Assessment Consultant has chosen to
assign an ERU vaiue of 1.0 to each single-family lot.

Allocation of Specific Assessments

The CIP cost estimates are outlined in Table 2 and described in detail in the Engineer's Report. The
details of the Series 2019 Bonds issuance required to fund the District's CIP is shown in Table 3. The
principal and related assessments to secure the Serles 2019 Bonds will be allocated among the 277 lots
planned for Phase 3B within the District. The resulting bonds principal and refated annual debt service
assessments assigned to each lot within the District are shown in the corresponding Tabie 4. Table 4
becomes important as the land within the District is piatted, as specific bond debt service assessments
will be assigned to the individual Development Units (as thatterm is defined below) at this time.



Table 4. Summary of Allocation of Bond Principal and Annual Debt Service

Bond Principal

Aliocation/  Bond Principal

Unit Type Unit Count ERUs/Unit Total ERUs Category  Attocatlon/Unit

Singte Family Lots 277 1.00 277.00 $5.485,000 $16,801
Bond Net Bond Net Bond Gross
Anoual Annve| Anpugl
Agsessment/ Assessment/  AsseasmentiUnlt
Unit Type Catagory Unit (W)
Single Family Lots $335,844 $1,212 $1,304

33

34

Sourcs; PFM Financial Adviscrs LLC

(1} Includes a 7.0%gioss-up lo accounl for the fees of lha County Propeily Aporaiser and Tax Callector antd the slalutory eaily paymenl discount
Assignment of Specific Assessments

The Series 2019 bond assessments for Phase 3B will initially be assigned to the lands within Phase 38
on an equal per acre basis. The assessments for Phase 3B will be equally divided among the lots within
that phase, as property is initially platted. The final assignment of bond debt to a specific lot does not
take place until the land containing that lot is platted (a platted single-family lot will be referred to herein
as a "Development Unit”). The specific bond debt assessment that is assigned to platted Development
Units will be detailed in a future assessment lien roll, in accordance with the principles and allocations
set forth in this Methodology.

True-Up Mechanism

In order to ensure that the District's bond debt will not build up on the unplatted land within the District,
the District shall periodicatly apply a ‘true-up” test. Initially, the Series 2019 Bonds assessments shall
be allocated across Phase 3B within the District. This bond debt shall, prior to platting, be allocated
equally to each of the undeveloped developable acres within the District. As property within the District
is platted, ‘true-up” or density reduction payments may become due based upon the amount of bond
debt assessments initially assigned to the District. For example, as outlined in Table 3, it is estimated
that $5,485,000 in bonds principal will be atlocated to Phase 3B at the time of issuance. This $5,485,000
in bonds principal is expected to be allocated equally to the 277 lots planned for the District at the time
the lots are platted. However, should it happen at the time of platting that only 276 lots have been
identified inthe plat, the owner of the District lands at the time of platting will be required to make a true-
up payment to the District equal to the bonds principal assessment assigned to one single-family
residence. The bonds principal true-up test shali be applied at the completion of the platting of 50%,
75%, 90%, and 100% of the gross acreage within Phase 3B of the District. It is the responsibility of the
landowner of record of the affected parcelto make or cause to be made any required true-up payments



Q

4.0

due. This true-up obligation runs with the land within the District. The District will not release any liens
on property for which true-up payments are due until provision for such payment has been satisfactorily
made. The true-up thresholds forthe lands within Phase 3B of the District are found in Table 5.

Table 5. Series 2019 Bonds, Phase 3B True-Up Thresholds

Category 50% 5% 0% 100%
Developed Acres 44.02 66.02 79.23 88.03
Undeveloped Acres 44.02 2201 8.80 0.00
Debt per Undeveloped Acre $62.308 $62.308 $62,308 $62,308

Source, PFFM Finangial Advisors LLC

In the event that additional land not currently subject lo the assessments required to repay the deblt
associated with the District is developed in such a manner as to receive special benefit from District
improvements, it is contemplated that this Methodology will be re-applied to include such new parcels.
The addltional land, as a result of applying this Methodology, will be allocated an appropriate share of
the special assessments, whife all then-assessed parcels will receive a relative adjustment in their
assessment levels.

Contribution of District Infrastructure and/or Improvements

The costs of the District's CIP wil likely be funded by two mechanisms. The first mechanism is the
issuance of special assessment bonds. The second mechanism is the contribution of funds or CIP
components to the District {“Contribution”). Property owners within the District will have the oppoitunity
to make such a Contribution upon approval by the District,

A District property owner's Contribution will give rise to assessment credits that can be applied by the
property owner to reduce or eliminate bond debt service assessments that would otherwise be assigned
to lands within the District to fund the costs of the CIP. Prior to a property owner reducing or eliminating
bond debt service assessments through a Contribution, it must be shown that the improvements funded
or contributed by the property owner are a component of the CIP, as outlined in the Engineer’s Report.
The property owner will be permitted to apply assessment credits equal to the value of the Contribution
plus the costs of financing the improvement(s) that would otherwise have been incurred by the District if
the District were required to issue bonds to fund or acquire the improvement(s) (such that the property
would not be responsible for bond financing costs if the Contribution was made prior to the District's
issuance of special assessment bonds). A property owner possessing assessment credits due to a
Contribution will, in the District's discretion, have the oppoitunity to use the assessment credits to adjust
bond debt service assessment levels of Development Units.



5.0 Assessment Roll

Table 6 outlines the estimated bond principal assessment per acre for the lands within the District. A
description of the land within the District, which will be assessed to secure the repayment of the District's
bonds, is found in Exhibit “A*, below. The assessments shall be paid in not more than thiity {30) annual

installments.
Table 6. Assessment Ro!l Summary
Serles 2019
Bond Series2019 Baonds  Series 2019
Seriea 2019  Principal  Series 2019 Bonds Net Gross Bonds Gross
Bondg Asgess Bonds Net Annual Annusl Annual
Acreage Principal entper Annual Assessment Assessment Assessment
Description (1}  Assessment Acre Ass n perAcre (2] perAcre{2}
Phase 38 - Exhibit A 88.03 $5.485,000 $62.308 $335,844 $3,815.11 $361,122 $4,102

(1) Sowice, Absoiule Ergueering, LLC
(2) Valuesinciudes 7 0% gross-up to account for the fees of the County Property Appiaiser and Tax Collector and the stalulory eally paymen! discotinl
Source: PFM Fingngial Advisors LLG



EXHIBIT “A”
DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT LANDS, PHASE 38

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH. RANGE 23 EAST, POLK COUNTY,
FLORIOA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
SAID SECTION 17 AND PROCEED N 89" 52" 43 E, ALONG THE NORNY BOUNDARY THEREOF, A
DISTANCE OF 1527.47 FEET; THENCE S O 12' 15" €, LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF
270.53 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVAIURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE MORTHWESTERLY. KAVING A RADIUS
OF 350,00 FEET ANO A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 20° 26' 10° W, A DISTANCE OF 274.95 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAIO CURVE TD THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 280 99 $£EY TO A POINT OF
TANCENCY; THENCE S 41" 04’ 35" W, A DISTANCE OF 650.38 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVAYURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, MAVING A RADIUS OF 2000.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
33 48" 01™ ¥/, A DISTANCE OF %06.60 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF S&ID CURVE TO THE |EFT,
A DISTANCE OF S07.97 FEET TO A POINI OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 26° 3%° 27 W, A DISTANCE OF
179.05 FEET: THENCE N 80" 32° 49° W, A DISTANCE OF 315.07 FEEM: THENCE S 22" 48' 34° W, A
DISTANCE OF 208.85 FEET; THENCE S 45° 06' 09" €, A DISTANCE OF 49.06 FEET; THENCE S 13 05'
43° E, A DISTANCE OF 50.97 FEEl; THENCE S 07" 42' 14" E, A DISTANCE OF 80.32 FEET: THENCE S
10° 30° 48° E. A DISTANCE OF 43.22 FEET; THENCE S 15 49° 43° W, A DISTANCE OF 89.88 FEEI;
THENCE N 7Z 40° OB” W, A DISTANCE OF 28.38 FEET; THENCE S 38 37 00" W, A DISI'ANCE OF
14,20 FEET, THENCE S 63 05 43" W, A DISTANCE OF 46.40 FEEr; THENCE S B2' 05" 46" W, A
OISTANCE OF 94.01 FEET: THENCE $ 18' 12° 43° E, A DISTANCE OF 46.39 FEET; THENCE S 68" 16'
22° W, A DISTANCE OF 110.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHWESTERLY. HAVING A RADIUS OF J345.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 18° 01° 14° €, A
DISTANCE OF B8.81 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO ™HE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF
68.72 FEEf TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A COMPOUND CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, MAVING
A RADIUS Of 78,00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 11" 16°' 28° W. A DISTANCE OF €0.02 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 61.75 FEEr TO THE END Of
SAID CURVE, THENCE S 55" 0B' 14° E, ALONG A NON—RADIAL LINE, A DISTANCE OF 121.80 FEET TO
THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, MAVING A RADIUS OF
1090.00 FEET ANO A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 70° 50° 2B W. A DISTANCE OF 668.31 FEET; THENCE
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE 10 THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 88030 FEET TO A POINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE S B8 43' 15" W, A DISTANCE OF 416.21 FEET 70 A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASIERLY. HAVING A RADIUS OF 150000 FEET ANO A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
83" 55' 58" W. A DISTANCE OF 250.4%1 FEEr; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT,
A DISTANCE OF 25070 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE N 10° 51' 19" W, ALONG A
RADIAL LINE., A DISTANCE OF 314.09 FEET: THENCE N 27 34’ 01" E. A DISTANCE OF 1799.57 FEET;
THENCE N 00" 08' 48" W, A DISTANCE OF 678.08 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH BOUNOARY OF
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 17; THENCE N 89" 51' 12" E. AIONG SAIC NORTH BOUNDSRY,
A DISTANCE OF 374.334 FEET TO THE PQINT OF BEGINMNING,

THE ABOVE PARCEL CONTAINING B88.03 ACRES, MORE OR LESS



Exhibit C: Legal Description of Assessment Area 3B

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A P'ARCEL OF VANO LYING IN SECTIONN 17, TONNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EASM, POIK COLMIY,
£LORIOA SEINC WORT PARYICUIARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

FOR A POINT QF BEGINNING COMMENCE AT FHE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THME NORTHESST 1/4 QF
SAID SECTIMN 17 AND PROCEEO N BT" 52 437 E, ALONC TME NORIH HOUNOANY WIERZ(E.
DISTANCE OF 1927.47 FEET. THENCE S 00" 12' 1S” £, LEAVING SAI) BOUNDAAY. A DISTNIGE OF
27053 FEET TO A DOINT OF CURVAIURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESIERMLY. HAVING A RADILS
OF 39000 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 30" 28" 107 W, A DISTANCE OF 27495 FEET,

THENCE NONG 'HE ARC DT SA'0 CURVE 10 THE RIGHI. A DISTANCE O 280 9% ¢EEl TO A POINT &F
TANGENCY; THENCE S 41" 04" 35" W, A BISTANCE OF %50 38 FEET 1O A POIMT OF CURVATURE OF A
CUHVE COMCAVE SUUIHEASYEALY, MaVING A RADIUS QF 200000 FEET AND A CHORO WHICH BEARS S
33" 48 017 W, a DISTANCE QF 30660 FEET, THEHCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE 1€ TWE LEFI,
A OISTWNCE OF 507.97 FEET 16 A BOINT OF TANSENCY: THEINGE S 200 3)° 27" w, A DISIANCE OF
179.05 FEET. THENCE M BT 32° 49° W. A CISTANCE OF )1507 FEST, THENCE S 27 48° 34" W A
OiSIANGE OF 208.55 FEET, THEMGE S 4% ©5° V8™ £ A OISIANCE OF 4906 FEEY, THENCE S 137 LS
43" €, A DISTANCE QF SO 7 FLET! THEWCE S 07 42" 14" E, A ISIANCL OF 60 32 FECI. THENCE &
|0 50° 480° £, 4 DISIANGL OF 452% 'EET, THENCE S 19 49° 437 W, A DISTANGE OF 6B 86 FEEI.
THENCLC N 72° 40" 08" W. A DISTANCE Or 28.38 FEET: THENCE S 38 37° Q0 W, A DISIANCE OF
16.20 TESH TMENGE S 6° 03" 47 W. A DISTANCE UF 48 40 FELT, TRENWE S 87 05 46° W, A
DISTANCE OF 94 01 FE(T, NIENCE S 14 12" 43" E. A DISTANCE Of 46.39 FEET. IMERCE S 65° |8
22" W, A OISIANCE. OF 110,00 FEEY TO THE BECINNING OF A NON=IANCENTIAL CURVE CONGAVE
SOUTHWE STERLY, HAMING A RADIUS OF J45CQ FEEF AND A CHORD WHICKR BEARS S 14 01 14° ¢ »
DISTANCE OF 8861 FEET: THENCE A.ONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A. DISIANCE OF
60 72 FECT Ty WHE POMT ¢f CURVATURE OF A COMPOUND CURVE CONCAVE MORTHWESIERIY, HUAVING
A RADIVE OF 25,00 FEET AND A GHORD WHICHM BEARS S N1* 18° 28" W, A OISTANCE OF 00,02 FEFV,
THENCE ALONC TME ARC OF SAID CURWE TO THE RIGHY, A OISTANCE OF 81,23 FERT 170 THE END OF
SAJD CURVE, THENCE S 35" 06 14” E, ALOMG A M®M-RADIAL LINE, A DISTANCE OF 121,60 FEET TO
THE BEGIUNING OF A HON-TANGEWTIAL CURVE CONCAYE NORTHWESTEALY., HAVING A RAOWUS OF
109000 FEET AND A CHORE WHICH BEWS S 7¢° 90° 2B™ W, A QISIANCE OF 86D 3t FEXT, TNENGE
ALUNG THE ARC DF SAWD CURVE 10 THE RICHI, A DISTANCE G 680,30 FLET 10 A AONINT OF
TANCENCY; HENCE S 88 431" 15° W, A OISTANCE Of ¢1821 FEET TO a POINT OF CURVAILRE OF A
CURVE OCONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, MAVING A RADIUS OF 1500 00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
B8 S5 58° W. A DISTANCE OF 25041 FEET; THENCE AIONG THE ARC OF SalD CURVE TO THE (EIT
A DISTANGE OF 25070 FEET TO ThE €NO OF SAID CURVE. THENCEZ N 107 5V 197 W, alONG A
RADIAL LINE. A CISTANCE QF 31405 FECT. THINGE N 27 34° 017 E, A DISTANCE OF 179957 FEE7,
THEWCE ¢/ OO DB ¢0° W, 4 OISTANGE OF 67308 FEET TQ A POIMT ON THE NORIH BOUNDARY OF
THME NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAtD SECTIDN 17, THENCE N BF 51° 127 € ALONG SAID NORTH @OUNDARY
A OISYANCE OF 374 34 FEET 70 TIE POINY QF BEGUNING,

1IE ASOVE PARCEL LUMIAINING 88U3 ACRES. MORE OR LESS



Exhibit D: Maturities and Coupons of Assessment Area 3B Bonds
BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

Towne Park CDD 2019
Specil Assesomens Boads Senes 2019

Dated Daze 0§12 2019
Delsvery Date 68122019
Last Maturny }3 012050
Arbetrage Yaeld +511165%
Twse tatesest Cou: (TIC) 1677915%
Net lnterest Cost ONIC) 46322934,
AllBTIC 4967709%
Avernge Coupon 4519673
Average Life (years) 19395
Dusanco of Issue {yrass) 12359
Pas Amonat 5.183.00000
Bond Proceeds 5.474.89605
Tow! tnteres 4.808.082 61
NetInteresn 4.927.88636
Tosal Debr Serxace 10 29308261
Llaxmim Annua! Debr Sence 335,343 76
Average Anouial Debt Servace 335.067 34
Undzrwriter's Fees (pec $1000)
Average Takedown
OiherFee 20 000000
Total UnderwTner's Discount 20000000
BidPce 976157389
Bas Avesage Average
Bond Camponent Value Prce Coupon afe
Term 1 305.00000 90 699 3 500% 3364
Terml 725.0000¢ 100 VOO 4 000° 8 326
Teim3 1.495,000 00 99.105 4375% L6004
Term 1 2.870.000 00 140.000 46250, 36178
5185000 Q0 19 395
Alltn Aibitoge
TIC TIC Yied
Par Value 15.+485.000.00 5.485.00000 2.485.00000
= Accrued Tulerest
= Diemunan {Discount) -10.103 95 -10.10395 10103958
- 'oderwter's Discouan -109.700 00 -109.7(10 00
- Cont of Isswance Exgense -18291000
- Odier Andounts
Targer Value 5.363,196 05 5,182,286 03 $.47.0.896 05
Tosger Date 087122019 08122019 0812 2019

Yield 4.677915% 4967709°, 4511165,



Exhibit E: Sources and Uses of Funds lor Assessment Area 3B Bonds

SOURCES AND USES OF RiiNDS
Towne Pak CDD 2019
Spectal Assesunent Bonds Series 2019
Sourees:
Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 5.455.000.40
Origans| Isstac Discotunt .10.103 95
5.474 396,05
Uses
OtherFond Deposits:
DSRF [MADS wth release) 31584376
Capitiluzed Interest Fuod (Flicough 31 20) 173.363 63
50%.107.39
Delovery Date Expeases:
Cos ofIssuiance 182.910.00
Undznweirer’s Disconiot 109.700 00
29261000
Other Uses of Funds
Constienon Fuud 3671078 66

5.474.896 G5




Exhibit F: Annual Debt Service Payment Due on Assessment Area 3B Bonds

Jub22.20t9 1039 am Piepased by DBC Fanance (Fenance 8 001 Toure Park COD 2019 TP.7P) Page 4

BOND DEBTSERVICE

Towne Park €D 2619
Specnl Assesement Bonds Senes 2019

Penod Aaaua)
Eudme Prasipal Coupon Interest Debt Sesvice Debi Senvee
11812019 5187925 5287923 52879 2%
05012020 120-184.38 120434 38
110}:2020 120-184 38 120184 38 240968 76
05012031 95.000 3.500% 120434 38 21548438
18072021 11882] 88 11881 88 334306 26
05015202 95000 3 500%. 118 821 88 *138118E
11/04:2022 117159138 117.159 38 3301181 26
05/012023 100.000 35000 117.1:9 38 21715938
11/852023 115,409 38 {[540938 132 g 76
05012024 105,000 3 500% 115.409 38 220.409 3R
11:01/2024 113.571 88 113,571 38 333981 26
057012025 110.900 4 000% 111.571.98 223,37 88
110172025 115.371.88 11137188 1345943 /6
05012026 115000 4000% 111,37188 226.57188
11012026 109.071.88 109.071 98 315 413 6
05012027 120,000 4000% 10307] 88 279071 88
1400172027 106.671.8% 106.671 88 3343 ¢
05-01:2028 120.000 +000% 106,67188 26,671 89
11:01:2028 104.271 88 10427} 88 30.943 76
057012029 123.000 4000°% 10427188 32920 83
11101:2029 101,771.88 101,77) 88 331043 '6
057012030 135,000 1000°, 101,771.88 236.771 5%
1101°2030 99.071 88 99.071 58 235841 76
05-0142031 130.000 4.375% 99.071.88 239,071 88
10041203 96.009.38 96.00938 335181 26
08012032 145,000 4375% 96.009.38 241.009 3%
1 1°01 2032 92,837.50 9283750 13381588
05012033 150.000 4.375% 92.83750 24283750
11/81:2033 89.55615 89.556 15 332393 1S
050112034 160,00 4375% 89.55625 239,356 25
1100172034 86.056.25 36,056 29 335.612 50
05/03/2035 165.000 4.375% 86.05624 251,056 23
11:01°2033 82,446 88 852440 88 33550313
05'002036 170,000 4.375% 82.44689 252.446 68
11002006 78.728.13 78728 13 131,075 08
05:01 2037 {80000 4.315% 1872813 15871813
1103°2037 74.790 63 74.73063 333,518 76
03012038 190.000 43789 4.790.63 161.790.63
11012038 70634 38 70.634 38 335424 01
0501 2039 195,000 4.315% 70.634.38 265.634.38
1.1'012039 66.368 75 66.168 75 3200 13
05:01°2040 105,000 4.635% 6636875 371368 75
1101 2040 61.628 12 61.625.13 332996 38
0501 o4 213.000 48252 6162813 2761626 13
11012061 56,6565 56,630 25 33328418
05012042 325,000 -3615% 56.656.25 281.686 %
1iC12032 5145313 51453 13 333.109 38
0501 2043 235900 4625% S1.45313 186,353 13
1101 2043 46018 75 46 019 75 332,471 88
05:¢1 204 243.000 623% 46.018.75 291.018 75
114012044 40333 13 1035313 331.371 88
05'012015 260.000 4.625% 10.353.13 300.353 13
117012045 34.34063 14.310 63 333.693 76
05012046 270,000 4 5255, 34.340 63 303.340 63

11012046 28.096.88 28.096 88 332,137 5%



BOND DEBT SERVICE

Tonne PAkCDD 2019
Special Assessment Bonds, Senes 1019

Period Anaual

Eudiip Pruwerpal Coupon huercst Debi Sence Debt Service
0501 2047 285.000 4625% 28096 38 313.096 86
1101 2047 21506 25 21.506 25 234603 13
0501208 205,000 $625% 2150625 316,506 5
13101 2048 14,6418 14,684 38 334.19063
05012048 110.000 4625% 14,684,138 334034 38
1101 2049 7.515 63 7.51563 33220041
05'91 2050 138000 4 625% 51363 33251563
11401 2050 332505 83

5485000 4.808,0826f  30.193.082 63 10.323.082 81







Towne Park
Community Development District

Collateral Assignment and Assumption of
Development Rights Relating to the Assessment
Area 3B Project



This instrument was prepared by and (This space reserved for Clerk)
upon recording should be returned (o:

Roy Van WyKk, Esq.

Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.

1 19 South Monroe Street, Suite 300
Tallahassee. Florida 32301

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS RELATING TO THE
ASSESSMENT AREA 3B PROJECT

THiS COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
RELATING TO THE ASSESSMENT AREA 3B PROJECT (“Assignment™) is made this 12™ day of
August, 2019, by and between (collectively, the “Parties™):

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statires, being
situated in the City of Lakeland, Polk County, Florida, with a mailing address of
c/o PFM Group Consulting, LLC, 12051 Corporate Boulevard, Orlando, Florida
32817 (the “District™), and

HIGHLAND SUMNER, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, the developer and
owner of certain lands within the District, with a mailing address of 346 East
Central Avenue, Lakeland, Florida 33880, and its successors and assign$ (the
“Developer™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of the real property within the District as more
particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein (**Assessment Area
3B™); and

WHEREAS, the District proposes to issue its $5,485,000 Towne Park Community
Development District Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2019 (Assessment Area 3B Project)
(“Assessment Area 3B Bonds™), to finance certain improvements which will benefit all of
Assessment Area 3B; and

WHEREAS, among the security for the repayment of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds are
the debt special assessments levied against Assessment Area 3B (“Assessment Area 3B
Assessments’’); and

WHEREAS, the Parties intend that Assessment Area 3B will be platted and fully
developed into a total of 277 single family residential units (“Lots”), and the Lots will be

!

Riverslone/Assessment Area 3B/Collaleral Assignment



ultimately owned by homebuilders or end users, unrelated to the Developer or its affiliated
entities (“Development Completion™), as contemplated by the Amended and Restated Master
Assessment Methodology, dated March 8, 2018, as supplemented by that Supplemental
Assessment Methodology Report, Phase 3B, Series 2019 Bonds, dated July, 2019 (together, the
“Assessment Report™), all of such Lots and associated improvements being referred to herein as
the “Development’’; and

WHEREAS, the Development, which is being partially financed with the proceeds of the
Assessment Area 3B Bonds is described as “Phase 3B™ in the Third Supplemental Engineer’s
Report Phase 3B (Assessment Area 3B), dated July 2019 (the “Engineer’s Report™), and is
referred to as the “Assessment Area 3B Project”; and

WHEREAS, in the event of default in the payment of the Assessment Area 3B
Assessments securing the Assessment Area 3B Bonds, or in the payment of a Tiue-Up
Obligation (as defined in the Agreement between the Towne Park Community Development
District and Highland Sunmer, LLC Regarding True-Up as to Assessment Area 3B Assessmenrs,
dated August 12, 2019), or in the event of any otber Event of Default (as defined herein), the
District requires, in addition to the remedies afforded the District under the Masrer Trust
Indenture dated as of June 1, 2016 (tbe “Master Indenture”), as supplemented by that Fourth
Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of August 1, 2019 (the *Fourth Supplemental Indenture”
and, together witly the Master Indenture, the “Indenture”), pursuant to which the Assessment
Area 3B Bonds are being issued, and the other Agreements being entered into by Developer
concurrent herewith with respect to the Assessment Area 3B Bonds and the Assessment Area 3B
Assessments (the Indentures and Agreements being refeired to collectively as (the *“Bond
Documents™), and such remedies being referred to collectively as (the “Remedial Rights™),
certain remedies with respect to the Development Rights (defined below) in order to complete or
enable a third party to complete development of the Assessment Area 3B Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual
covenants of the Parties, the receipt and sufficiency ef which are hereby acknowledged, the
Parties agree as follows:

l. RECITALS. Therecitals stated above are true and correct and by this reference are
incorporated herein and form a material part of this Agreement.

Z COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Assignment, Developer hereby
collaterally assigns to the District, to the extent assignable, all of Developer’s
development rights, permits, entitlements and work product relating to development of
Assessment Area 3B Project, and Developer’s rights as declarant of any property owner
or homeowner association with respect to Assessment Area 3B Project (collectively. the
“Development Rights"), as security for Developer’s payment and petformance of all of
its obligations arising under the Bond Documents, including, without limitation, payment
of the Assessment Area 3B Assessments levied against the Assessment Area 3B Project
that is owned by Developer, its successors and assigns, and any True-Up Obligation. The
Development Rights shall include, without limitation, the items listed in subsections (i)

2
Riverstone/Assessment Arca 3B/Collateral Assignment



through (viii) below as they pertain to development of the Assessment Area 3B Project,
but shall specifically exclude any portion of the Development Rights which relate solely
to (x) Lots which bave been or are conveyed to honmiebuilders unaffiliated with the
Developer or homebuyers effective as of such conveyance, or (y) any portion of
Assessment Area 3B Project which has been transferred, dedicated and/or conveyed, or is
in the future conveyed, to the City of Lakeland, Florida (the “City”), the District, any
utility provider, governmental or quasi-governmental entity, any homeowner’s or
property owner’s association or other governing entity or association as may be required
by applicable permits, approvals, plats or entitlements or regulations affecting the
District, if any, in each case effective as of such transfer, conveyance and/or dedication,
as applicable:

(i) Zoning approvals, density approvals and entitlements, concurrency
and capacity certificates, and development assignments;

(i) Engineering and construction plans and specifications for grading,
roadways, site drainage, storm water drainage, signage, water distribution, waste
water collection, recreational facilities and other improvements;

(iii)  Preliminary and final site plans and plats;

(iv)  Architectural plans and specifications for recreational buildings
and other improvements to the developable property within the District;

{v) Permits, approvals, resolutions, variances, licenses, and franchises
granted by governmental authorities, or any of their respective agencies, for or
affecting the Assessment Area 3B Project or the construction of improvements
within Assessment Area 3B Project, or off-site to the extent such off-site
improvements are necessary or required to complete the Assessment Area 3B
Project,

(vi) Contracts with engineers, architects, land planners, landscape
architects, consultants, contractors, and suppliers for or relating to the
construction of the Assessment Area 3B Project or the construction of
improvements within Assessment Area 3B Project;

(vii)  All prepaid impact fees and impact fee credits; and

(viit)  All future creations, changes, extensions, revisions, modifications,
substitutions, and replacements of any of the foregoing.

{b)  This Assignment is not intended to and shall not impair or interfere with
the development of the Assessment Area 3B Project, including, without limitation,
Developer’s contracts with homebuilders, if any, and end users (collectively, “Sales
Contracts”), and shall only be inchoate and shall become an effective and absolute.
assignment and assumption of the Development Rights, from time to time, only upon the
District’s exercise of its rights hereunder upon a failure of Developer to pay the

3
Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Collateral Assignment



that:

Assessment Area 3B Assessments levied against the portion of Assessment Area 3B
owned by Developer, from time to time, failure of Developer to satisfy a True-Up
Obligation, or any other Event of Default hereunder. The District shall not be deemed to
have assumed any obligations associated with the Development Rights unless and until
the District exercises its rights under this Assignment, and then only to the extent of such
exercise.

(c) If this Assignment has not become absolute, it shall automatically
teriminate upon the earliest to occur of the following events: (i) payment in full of the
principal and interest associated with the Assessment Area 3B Bonds; (ii) Development
Completion; (iii) transfer of any Development Rights to the City, the State, the District,
any utility provider, any other govetnmental or quasi-governmental entity, or any
homeowners’ or property owner’s association but only to the extent of such transfer; or
(iv) transfer of any portion of Assessment Area 3B Project to an unaffiliated homebuilder
or end user but only as to such portion transferred, from time to time.

% WARRANTIES BY DEVELOPER. Developer represents and warrants to the District

(a) Developer is not prohibited under any agreement with any other person or
under any judgment or decree from the execution, delivery and performance of this
Assignment.

(b) No action has been brought or threatened which would in any way
interfere with the right of Developer to execute this Assignment and perform all of
Developer’s obligations herein contained.

(c) Any transfer, conveyance or sale of the Assessment Area 3B Project shall
subject any and all affiliates or successors-in-interest of Developer as to the Assessment
Area 3B Project or any portion thereof, to this Assignment to the extent of the portion of
the Assessment Area 3B Project so conveyed, except to the extent described in Section 2
above.

4, COVENANTS. Developer covenants with the District that for so long as this

Assignment shall remain in effect pursuant to the terms hereof:

(a) Developer will use reasonable, good faith efforts to (i) fulfill, perform, and
observe each and every material condition and covenant of Developer relating to the
Development Rights, and (ii) give notice to District of any default with respect to any of
the Development Rights.

(b) The Development Rights include all of Developer’s rights to modify the
Development Rights, to terminate the Development Rights, und to waive or release the
performance or observance of any obligation or condition of the Development Rights;
provided, however, that this Assignment does not and shall not (i) pertain to lands outside
of the District not relating or necessary to developmenl of the Assessment Area 3B
Project, or (ii) limit Developer’s right, from tire to time, to modify, waive or release the

4

Riverstone/Assessmeni Area 3B/Collateral Assignment



Development Rights, subject to Section 4(c) below and Developer’s obligations under the
Bond Documents.

(c) Developer agrees not to take any action that would decrease the
development entitlements to a level below the amount necessary to support the then-
outstanding Assessment Area 3B Assessments or would materially impair or impede the
ability to achieve Development Completion.

5. EVENTS OF DEFAULT. Any breach ot Developer’s warranties contained in Section
3 hereof, any breach of covenants contained in Section 4 hereof which is not cured within sixty
(60) days after receipt of written notice thereof, or any breach of Developer under any other
Bond Documents, which default is not cured within any applicable cure period, will constitute an
“Event of Default”, under this Assignment.

6. REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT. Upon an Event of Default, or the transfer of title to
any portion of Assessment Area 3B Project owned by Developer to the District or its designee
pursuant to a judgment of foreclosure entered by a court of competent jurisdiction or a deed in
lieu of foreclosure to the District or its designee or the acquisition of title to such property
through the sale of tax certificates, the District may, as the District’s sole and exclusive remedies
under this Assignment, take any or all of the following actions, at the District’s option:

(a) Perform or cause to be performed any and all obligations of Developer
relating to the Development Rights and exercise or cause to be exercised any and all
rights of Developer therein as fully as Developer could;

(b)  Initiate, appedr in, or defend any action arising out of or affecting the
Development Rights; and,

(c) Further assign any and all of the Development Rights to a third party
acquiring title to the Assessment Area 3B Project or any portion thereof from the District
or at a District foreclosure sale.

% AUTHORIZATION IN EVENT OF DEFAULT. In the Event of Default, Developer
does hereby authorize and shall direct any party to any agreements relating to the Development
Rights to tender performance thereunder to the District upon written notice and request from the
District. Any such performance in favor of the District shall conslitute a full release and
discharge to the extent of such performance as fully as though made directly to Developer.
Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary set forth in this Assignment, no
exercise by the District or the District’s rights under this Assignment shall operate to release
Developer from its obligations under this Assignment.

8. ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS. In the event that any Party is required to enforce
this Assignment by court proceedings or otherwise, then the Parties agree that the substantially
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other(s) all fees and cests incurred,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate
proceedings.

Riverstone/Asscssmenl Area 3B/Collateral Assignment



5 AUTIIORIZATION. The execution of this Assignment has been duly authorized by
the appropriate body or official of the Parties; the Parties have complied with all the
requirements of law; and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and
provisions of this instrument.

10.  NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this
Agreement {“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail,
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows:

A. If to the District:  Towne Park Community Development District
12051 Corporate Boulevard
Orlando, Florida 32817
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300
Post Of fice Box 6526
Tallahassee, Florida 32314
Attn: Roy Van Wyk

B. If to Developer: Highland Sumner, LLC
c/o Heath Construction
and Management, LLC
346 East Central Avenue
Lakeland, Florida 33880
Attn: Warren K. Heath II

With a copy to: Straughn & Turner, P.A.
255 Magnolia Avenue SW
Lakeland, Florida 33880
Attn: Richard E. Straughn

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the
place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.
If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be
regarded as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the Developer may deliver
Notice on behalf of the District and the Developer. Any Party or other person to whom Notices
are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or
address Lo which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to
the Parties and addressees set forth in this Agreement.

1. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Assignment has been negotiated fully
between the Parties as an arm’s length transaction. Both Parties participated fully in the

6

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Collateral Assignment



preparation of this Assignment and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a dispute
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Assignment, both Parties are deemed to
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be
interpreted or construed against either the District or the Developer.

12. TuIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. The Parties herelo agree that the trustee under the
Indenture (“Trustee™), on behalf of the bondholders, shall be a direct third-party beneficiary of
the terms and conditions of this Assignment and entitled to cnforce Developer's obligations
hereunder at the direction of the bondholders owning more than 50% of the aggregate principal
amount of the applicable Assessment Area 3B Bonds then outstanding. The Trustee shall not be
deemed by virtue of this Assignment to have assumed any obligations or duties.

13.  AMENDMENT. This Assignment may be amended by an instrument in writing
executed by all of the Parties hereto, but only with the written consent of the Trustee acting at the
direction of bondholders owning more than 50% of the aggregate principal amount of the
applicable Assessment Area 3B Bonds then outstanding with respect to amendments having a
material effect on the District’s ability o pay debt service on the Assessment Area 3B Bonds.

14, MISCELLANEOUS. Unless the context requires otherwise, whenever used herein,
the singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender
shall include all genders. The terms “person” and *“party” shall include individuals, firms,
associations, joint ventures, partnerships, estates, trusts, business trusts, syndicates, fiduciaries,
corporations, and all other groups and combinations. Titles of paragraphs contained herein are
inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way define, limit, extend, or
describe the scope of this Assignment or the intent of any provisions hereunder. This Assignment
shall be construed under Florida law.

1S.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Assignment and the provisions contained
herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.
Each party consents that the exclusive venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this
Assignment shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, in and for Polk County, Florida.

16.  PuBLIC RECORDS. The Developer understands and agrees that all documents of
any kind provided to the District in connection witb this Assignment may be public records and
treated as such in accordance with Florida law.

17.  SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions
of this Assignment shall not affiect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this
Assignment, or any part of this Assignment not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

18.  LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Assignment shall
be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory
timited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida
Legislature in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other law, and nothing in this Assignment
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would
otherwise be barred by sovereign immunity or by other operation of law.

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Collateral Assignment



19. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this
Assignment are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction
of any of the provisions of this Assignment.

20. COUNTERPARTS. This instrument may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall constitute an original, and such
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and
acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single
copy of this document to physically form one document.

(Remainder of this page left intentionally blank)

Riverstone/Asscssment Area 3B8/Collateral Assignment



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer and the District have caused this Assignment to be
executed and delivered on the day and year first written above.

WITNESSES: HIGHLAND SUMNER, LLC,
a Florida limited liability company
By: Heath Constiuction and
Management, LLC
Its: Manager

Warren K. (“Rennie”) Heath II, Manager

{Print Name]

(Print Name]

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __ -
2019, by Warren K. (“*Rennie™) Heath II, as Manager of Heath Construction and Management,
LLC, Manager of Highland Sumner, LLC. He is personally known 10 me or has produced
{type of identification) as identitication.

NOTARY PUBLIC. STATE OF FLORIDA

(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of
Notary Public)

Riverstone/Assessment Area 38/Collateral Assignment



WITNESSES: TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
D. Joel Adams
[Print Name] Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
[Print Name]
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of

2019, by D. Joel Adams, as Chairperson of the Board of Supervnsors of the Towne Park
Community Development District. He is personally known to me or has produced
(type of identification) as identification.

NOTARY PUBLIC. STATE OF FLORIDA

(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of
Notary Public)

Exhibit A:  Legal Description of the Assessment Area 3B

10
Riverstone/Assessment Arca 3B/Coliateral Assignment



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description of Assessment Area 3B

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Collateral Assignment



EXHIBIT “A”
DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT LANDS, PHASE 3B

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A PARCEl. OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST. PDLIK COUNTY,
FLORIDA. BEING MORE PARTICULARIY DESCRIBED AS FOU.OWS:

FOR A POINT OF BEGINMING COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
SAID SECVION 17 AND PROCEED N B3" 52° 43" E, ALONG TME NORTH BOUNDARY THEREOF, A
DISTANCE OF 1527.47 FEET; TENCE S 00° 12' 35" E, LEAVING SAJD BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE Of
270.53 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE DF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWBSTERLY. HAVING A RADIUS
OF 3%0.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 20" 26° t0™ W, A DISTANCE Of 274.95 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHF, A DISTANCE OF 280.99 FEET TO A POINT OF
TANGENCY: THENCE S 41° 04° 35" W, A DISTANCE OF 65038 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVARURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, MAVING A RADIUS OF 2000.00 FEEFT AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
33 48° 01" w, A DISTANCE OF 506.60 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT.
A DISTANCE OF 507,97 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCCY, THENCE S 26° 31° 27" W, A DISTANCE OF
179.@% FEET; THENCE N BO' 32' 49 W, A DISTANCE OF 315.@7 FEET; THENCE S 22" 48' 34" W. A
DISTANCE Of 206.65 FEET; THENCE S 45° 06° 09" E, A DISTANCE OF 49.06 FEET; THENCE S 15 05
43" E, A DISTANCE OF 50.97 FEEF; THENCE S 07° 42' 14° E, A DISTANCE OF 80.32 FEEF; TMENCE S
10" 30° 46™ E. A DISTANCE OF 43.22 ITET; THENCE S 15 49" 43" W, A DISTANCE CF 689.86 FEET;
THENCE N 72 40° 0B W. A DISTANCE OF 28.3B FEET; THENCE S 38 37' 00" W, A DISTANCE OF
14.20 FEET; THENCE S 63 0%' 43" W, A DISTANCE OF 46,40 FEET: THENCE S BZ 05' 46" W, A
DISTANCE OF 94.01 FEEY: THENCE S 18 12° 43" E, A DISTANCE OF 46.39 FEET; IHENCE S 66' 16’
22" W, A DISYANCE OF $10.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-~TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 34500 FEEl ANO A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 18° O1' 14" E, A
DISTANCE OF 68.6! FEET, THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGMT, A DISTANCE OF
68.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A COMPOUND CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING
A RADIUS OF 75.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH HEARS S 11° 16° 28" W. A DISTANCE OF €0.02 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO TME RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF &1.75 FEET TO THE END OF
SAID CURVE; THENCE S 55 08' 14" E, ALONG A NON-RABIAL LINE. A DISTANCE OF 121.80 FEET TO
THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF
9090.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 70° 50° 28" W, A DISTANCE OF 669.31 FEET: THENCE
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 6B80.30 FEET TO A POINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE S 88 43' 15” W, A DISTANCE OF 416.21 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY. HAVING A RADIUS OF 1500.00 FEEY AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
83' 55 58" W, A DISTANCE OF 250.41 FEEr: THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT,
A DISTANCE OF 250.70 FBElN TO THE END OF SAID OURVE; THENCE N 10" 6t' 197 W, ALONG A
RADIAL LINE. A DISTANCE OF 314.09 FEET; THENCE N 27° 34° 01" € A DISTANCE OF 1799.37 FEET:
THENCE N 00" OB’ 48" W, A DISTANCE OF 678.08 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 17: THENCE N B9' 51' 32" E, ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY,
A DISTANCE OF 374.34 FEET TO THE PQINI OF BEGINNING.

TME ABOVE PARCEL CONFAINING 88.03 ACRES, MORE OR LESS






Towne Park
Community Development District

Agreement By and Between the District and
Highland Sumner, LLC, Regarding the Acquisition
of Work Product, Improvements, and Real
Property



AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND HIGHLAND SUMNER, LLC,
REGARDING THE ACQUISITION OF WORK PRODUCT,
IMPROVEMENTS, AND REAL PROPERTY

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 12™ day of August, 2019,
by and between (collectively, the “Parties”):

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being
situated in the City of Lakeland, Polk County, Florida, with a mailing address of
c/o PFM Group Consulting, LLC, 12051 Corporate Boulevard, Orlando, Florida
32817 (the “District”); and

HIGHLAND SUMNER, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, the developer and
owner of certain lands within the District, with a mailing address of 346 East
Central Avenue, Lakeland, Florida 33880, and its successors and assigns (the
“Developer™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was established for the purposes of planning, financing,
constructing, acquiring, operating and/or maintaining certain public infrastructure, as authorized
by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the District has adopted an improvement plan for the planning, design,
acquisition, construction, and installation of various infrastructure improvements, facilities, and
services (the “[mprovements’) within the District, and the anticipated cost thereof, as described in
that certain Pyeliminary Engineer's Report, dated November 2014, as amended by that First
Amendment to the Master Engineer's Report, dated November 2014, and supplemented by that
Third Supplemental Engineer's Report Phase 3B (Assessment Area 3B), dated July 2019 (together,
the “Engineer’s Report”), attached hereto as Composite Exhibit A and incorporated herein by
reference. and

WHEREAS, the Developer is the owner and developer of certain lands located within the
boundaries of the District known as “Assessment Area 3B” within which a portion of the District
Improvements will be located (the “Assessment Area 3B Project™); and

'WHEREAS, the District intends to finance all or a portion of the Improvements through the
anticipated issuance of its Towne Park Community Development District Special Assessment
Bonds, Series 2019 (Assessment Area 3B Project) (the “Assessment Area 3B Bonds”); and

WHEREAS, because the Assessment Area 3B Bonds have not yet been issued. the District

has not had sufficient monies on hand to allow the District to fund the cost of preparation of the
necessary surveys, reports, drawings, plans, permits, specifications, and related documents which

Riversione/Assessment Area 3B/Acquisilion Agreemeni |



would allow the timely commencement and completion of construction of the Improvements (the
“Work Product™); and

WHEREAS, the District acknowledges the Developer’s need to have the Lmprovements
constructed in an expeditious and timely manner in order to develop the Assessment Area 3B
Project; and

WHEREAS, the District agrees that it will not have sufficient monies to proceed with either
the preparation of the Work Product or the commencement of construction of the Improvements
described in Compeosite Exhibit A until such time as the District has closed on the sale of the
Assessment Area 3B Bonds; and

WHEREAS, to avoid a delay in the commencement of the construction of the Improvements,
the Developer has advanced, tunded, commenced, and completed and/or will complete certain
work to enable the District to expeditiously provide the Improvements; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to commence the acquisition of certain Work Product and
the Improvements, and accept assignment of certain agreements regarding the same, and

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the acquisition of the Work Product and/or Improvements,
the Developer desires to convey to the District interests in real property sufficient to allow the
District to own, operate, maintain, constiuct, or install the Improvements, if any such conveyances
are appropriate, and such conveyances shall be in fee simple, perpetual easement, or other interest
as may be in the best interests of the District (the “Real Property™); and

WHEREAS, the Developer and the District desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth
the process by which the District may acquire the Work Produoct, Improvements, and/or Real
Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants
of the Parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the District and the
Developer agree as follows:

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and
correct and by this reference are incorporated herein and form a material part of this Agreement.

SECTION 2. WORK PRODUCT. The District agrees to pay the lesser of actual cost
incurred by the Developer or fair market value, for preparation of the Werk Product in accordance
with the provisions of this Agreement. The Developer shall provide copies of any and all invoices,
bills, receipts, or other evidence of costs incurred by the Developer for the Work Product. The
Parties agree to cooperate and use good faith and best efforts to undertake and complete the
acquisition process contemplated by this Agreement on such date as the Parties may jointly agree
upon (the “Acquisition Date”). The Parties agree that separate or multiple Acquisition Dates may
be established for any portion of the acquisitions contemplated by this Agreement. The District
Engineer shall review all evidence of cost and shall certif'y Lo the District’s Board of Supervisors
(the “Board™) the total actual amount of cost, which, in the District Engineer’s sole opinion, is

Riverstone/ Assessment Area 3B/Acquisitlion Agreement 2



reasonable for the Work Product. The District Engineer’s opinion as to cost shall be set forth in
an Engineer’s Certificate which shall accompany the requisition for the funds from the trustee
(“Trustee™) for the Assessment Area 3B Bonds. In the event that the Developer disputes the
District Engineer’s opinion as to cost, the District and the Developer agree to use good faith efforts
to resolve such dispute. If the Paities are unable to resolve any such dispute, the Parties agree to
Jointly select a third-party engineer whose decision as to any such dispute shall be binding upon
the Parties. Such decision by a third-party engineer shall be set forth in an Engineer’s Affidavit
which shall accompany the requisition for the funds from the Trustee. The Parties acknowledge
that the Work Product is being acquired for use by the District in connection with the constrtiction
of the Improvements.

A. The Developer agrees to convey to the District, and solely to the extent
permitted by the terms of the Work Product, the Work Product upon payment of the sums
determined to be acceptable by the District Engineer and approved by the District’s Board
pursuant to and as set forth in this Agreement.

B. The Developer agrees to release to the District all right, title, and interest
which the Developer may have in and to the above described Work Product, as well as all
common law, statutory, and other reserved rights, including all copyrights in tbe Work
Product and extensions and renewals thercof under United States law and throughout the
world, and all publication rights and all subsidiary rights and other rights in and to the
Work Product in all forms, mediums, and media, now known or hereinafter devised;
provided, however, that the District agrees and acknowledges that the Developer shall
retain the right, title and interest to use the Work Product, and the District shall grant the
Developer a license to use the Work Product to the extent reasonably required by the
Developer in eonnection with the ownership, construction, development, and management
of the Assessment Area 3B Project or other lands owncd by Developer to which such Work
Product pertains. To the extent determined necessary by the District, the Developer shall
use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all releases from any professional providing
services in connection with the Work Product to enable the District to use and rely upon
the Work Product. Such releases may include, but are not limited to, any architectural,
engineering, or other professional services.

C. Except as otherwise separately agreed by the Parties with respect to any
particular acquisition of Work Product, and without intending to modify any of the other
terms of this Agreement, any conveyance of Work Product shall be on an “AS-IS” basis,
and without any representation or warranty from the Developer to the District in respect
thereto.

D. The Developer agrees to make reasonable good faith efforts, but without
imposing any requirement on Developer to pay for additional warranty rights on behalf of
the District, to provide or cause to be provided to the District, either by assignment or
directly from such third parties as may be necessary and desirable to the mutual satisfaction
of the Parties hereto, a warranty that the Work Product is fit for the purposes to which it
will be put by the District, as contemplated by the Engineer’s Report.

Riverstone:/Assessment Area 3B/Acquisition Agreement 3



E. The District agrees to allow the Developer access to and use of the Work
Product without the payment of any fee by the Developer. However, to the extent the
Developer’s access to and use of the Work Product causes the District to incur any cost or
expense, such as copying costs, the Developer agrees to pay such cost or expense.

SECTION 3. IMPROVEMENTS. The Developer has expended certain funds on behalf of
the District relating to the Improvements. The District agrees to acquire or otherwise reimburse
the Developer for those portions of the Improvements which have been commenced or completed
prior to the issuance of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds. When a portion of the Improvements is
ready for conveyance by the Developer to the District, the Developer shall notify the District in
writing, describing the nature of the improvement. its general location, and its estimated cost.
Developer agrees to provide, at or prior to the Acquisition Date, the following: (i) documentation
of actual costs paid; (ii) insti'uments of conveyance such as special warranty bills of sale or such
other instruments as may be reasonably requested by the District; and (iii) any other releases,
indemnifications, or documentation as may be reasonably requested by the District. Any real
property interests necessary for the functioning of the Improvements to be acquired under this
paragraph shall be reviewed and conveyed in accordance with the provisions of Section 5 herein.
The District Engineer in consultation with District Counsel shall determine in writing whether the
infrastiucture to be conveyed is a part of the Improvements contemplated by the Engineer’s Report,
and if so, shall provide Developer witb a list of items necessary to complete tbe acquisition. Each
such acquisition shall also be subject to the engineering review and certification process described
in Section 2 above. The District Manager shall determine, in writing, whether the District has,
based on the Developer's estimate of cost, sufficient unencumbered funds to acquire the
improvement.

A. All documentation of any acquisition (e.g., bills of sale, receipts,
maintenance bonds, as-builts, evidence of costs, deeds or easements, etc.) shall be to the
reasonable satisfaction of the District. If any item acquired is to be conveyed to a third-
paity governmental entity, then the Developer agrees to cooperate and provide such
certifications, warranties, representations or other items as may be required by that
governmental entity, if any.

B. The District Engineer shall certify as to the actual cost of any improvement
built or constructed by or at the direction of the Developer, and the District shall pay no
more than the actual cost incurred, or the fair market value of the improvement, whichever
is less, as determined by the District Engineer.

C. The Developer agrees to cooperate in the transfer of any permits to the
District or another governmental entity with maintenance obligations for any
Improvements conveyed pursuant to this Agreement.

D. Nothing herein shall require the District to accept any Work Product and/or
Improvements unless the District Engineer, in his or her professional opinion, is able to
certify that, in addition to any other requirements of law: (i) the Work Product and/or
Improvements are as set forth in the Engineer’s Report; (ii) the price for such Work Product
and/or Improvements is equal to or less than each of (a) the cost actually paid to develop

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Acquisilion Agreement 4



and/or install the Work Product and/or Improvements by the Developer and (b) the
reasonable fair market value of the Work Product and/or Improvements; (iii} as to Work
Product, the Work Product is capable of being used for the purposes intended by the
District, and, as to any Improvements, the Improvements were installed in accordance with
their specifications, and are capable ot performing the functions for which they were
intended; and (iv) as lo any Lmprovements, all known plans, permits and specifications
necessary for the operation and maintenance of the Improvements are complete and on file
with the District, and have been transferred, or are capable of being transféerred, to the
District for operations and maintenance responsibilities.

SECTION 4. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACTS. The District may accept the assignment of
certain contracts. Such acceptance is predicated upon: (i) each contractor providing a bond in the
form and manner required by Section 255.05, Florida Statutes, or the Developer providing
adequate alternative security in compliance with Section 255.05, Florida Statutes, if required; and
(ii) receipt by the District of a release from each general contraclor acknowledging each
assignment and the validity thereof, acknowledging the furnishing of the bond or other security
required by Section 255.05, Florida Statutes, if any, and waiving any and all claims against the
Districtarising as a result of or connected with such assignment. Until such time as the Assessment
Asea 3B Bonds are aclually issued, the Developer agrees to provide such funds as are nceded by
the District to make all payments for any such assigned contracts when and as needed by the
District.

SECTION 5. CONVEYANCE OF REAL PROPERTY.

A. Comveyance. In the event that real property interests are to be conveyed by
the Developer and acquired by the District in connection with the acquisition of the
Improvements, and as mutually agreed upon by the District and the Developer, then in such
event, the Developer agrees that it will convey to the District at or prior to the Acquisition
Dale by a special warranty deed, or non-exclusive easement, as reasonably acceptable to
the District together with a metes and bounds or other legal description, the Real Property
upon which the Improvements are constructed or which are necessary for the operation and
maintenance of, and access to the Improvements. The Parties agree that in no event shall
the purchase price for the Real Property exceed the lesser of the actual cost to the Developer
or the value of an appraisal obtained by the District for this purpose. The Parties agree that
the purchase price shall not include amounts attributable to the value of improvements on
the Real Property and other improvements serving the Real Property thathavebeen, or will
be, funded by the District. The District may determine in its reasonable discretion that fee
title is not necessary and in such cases shall accept such other interest in the lands upon
which the Improvements are constructed as the District deems reasonably acceptable.
Such special waitanty deed or other instrument shall be subject to a reservation by
Developer of its right and privilege to use the area conveyed to construct any Improvements
and any future improvements to such area for any related purposes (including, but not
limited to, construction traffic relating to the construction of the development) not
inconsistent with the District’s use, occupation or enjoyment thereof. The Developer shall
pay thecost for recording fees and documentary stamps required, if any, for the conveyance
of the lands upon which the Improvements are constructed. The Developer shall be

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Acquisilion Agreement 5



responsible for all taxes and assessments levied on the lands upon which the Improvements
are constructed until such time as the Developer conveys said lands to the District. At the
time of conveyance, the District may require, at Developer’s expense, an owner’s title
insurance policy in a form satisfactory to the District. In the event the title search reveals
exceptions to title which render title unmarketable or which, in the District’s reasonable
discretion, would materially interfere with the District’s use of such lands, the District shall
not be required to accept such conveyance of Real Propeity and/or any related
Improvements or Work Product.

B. Boundary or Other Adjustments. Beveloper and the District agree that
reasonable future boundary adjustments may be made as deemed necessary and approved
by both Parties in order to accurately describe lands conveyed to the District and lands
which remain in Developer’s ownership; provided, however, that such future boundary
adjustments shall not affect the ability of the Developer to have the lots developed. The
Parties agree that any land transfers made to accommodate such adjustments shall be
accomplished by donation. However, the party requesting such adjustment shall pay any
transaction costs resulting from the adjustment, including but not limited to taxes, title
insurance, recording fees or other costs.

SECTION 6. TAXES, ASSESSMENTS, AND COSTS.

A. Taxes and Assessments on Property Being Acquired. The District is an
exempt govermmental unit acquiring property pursuant to this Agreement for use
exclusively for public purposes. Accordingly, in accordance with Florida law, the
Developer agrees to place in escrow with the Polk County Tax Collector an amount equal
to the current ad valorem taxes and non-ad valorem assessments prorated to the date of
transfer of title, based upon the expected assessment and millage rates giving effiect to the
greatest discount available for early payment.

1. If and only to the extent the property acquired by the District is
subject to ad valorem taxes or non-ad valorem assessments, the Developer agrees
to reimburse the District for payment, or pay on its behalf, any and all ad valorem
taxes and non-ad valorem assessments imposed during the calendar year in which
each parcel of property is conveyed.

2 Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the District from asserting
any rights to challenge any taxes or assessments imposed, if any, on any property
of the District.

B. Notice. The Parties agree to provide notice to the other within ten (10)
calendar days of receipt of any notice of potential or actual taxes, assessments, or costs, as
a result of any transaction pursuant to this Agreement, or notice of any other taxes
assessments or costs imposed on the property acquired by the District as described in
Subsection A above. The Developer covenants to make any payments due hereunder in a
timely manner in accordance with Florida law. In the event that the Developer fails to
make timely payment of any such taxes or costs, the Developer acknowledges the District’s

Riveistone/Assessment Area 3B/Acquisition Agrecment 6



right to make such payment. If the District makes such payment, the Developer agrees to
reimburse the District within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving notice of such payment,
and to include in such reimbursement any fees, costs, penalties, or other expenses which
accrued to the District as a result of making such a payment, including interest at the
maximum rate allowed by law from the date of the payment made by the District.

C. Tax liability not created. Nothing herein is intended to create or shall create
any new or additional tax liability on behalf of the Developer or the District. Furthermore,
the Parties reserve all respective rights to challenge, pay under protest, contest or litigate
the imposition of any tax, assessment, or cost in good faith they believe is unlawfully or
inequitably imposed and agree to cooperate in good faith in the challenge of any such
imposition.

SECTION 7. ACQUISITION IN ADVANCE OF RECEIPT OF PROCEEDS, The District and
Developer hereby agree that an acquisition by the District may be completed prior to the District
obtaining proceeds from the Assessment Area 3B Bonds (“Prior Acquisitions™). The District
agrees to pursue the issuance of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds in good faith and, within thirty
(30) days from the issuance of such Assessment Area 3B Bonds, to make payment for any Prior
Acquisitions completed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; provided, however, that in the
event Bond Counsel determines that any such Prior Acquisitions are not properly compensable for
any reason, including, but not limited to, federal tax restrictions imposed on tax-exempt financing,
the District shall not be obligated to make payment for such Prior Acquisitions. Interest shall not
accrue on theamountsowed for any Prior Acquisitions. In theeventthe District does not or cannot
issue the Assessment Area 3B Bonds within five (5) years from the date of this Agreement, and,
thus does not make payment to the Developer for the Prior Acquisitions, the Parties agree that the
District shall have no reimbursement obligation whatsoever. The Developer acknowledges that
the District intends to convey some or alt of the Improvements to the State of Florida, Polk County
and the City of Lakeland and consents to the District’s conveyance of such improvements prior to
payment for any Prior Acquisitions.

SECTION 8. DEFAULT. A default by either Party under this Agreement shall entitle the
other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the
right of damages and/or specific performance, but excluding special, consequential or punitive
damages.

SECTION 9. INDEMNIFICATION. For all actions or activities which occur prior to the
date of the acquisition of the relevant Real Property, Improvement or Work Product hereunder, the
Developer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District and its of ficers, staff, agents and
employees from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation
or other entity for injuries, death, property damage or claims of any nature arising out of, or in
connection with, the use by the Developer, its officers, agents, employees, invitees or affiliates, of
the Real Property, Improvement, or Work Product, including litigation or any appellate
proceedings with respect thereto, irrespective of the date of the initiation or notice of the claimn,
suit, etc.; provided, however, that the Developer shall not indemnify the District for a default by
the District under this Agreement or the use of such Real Property, Improvement or Work Product
by the District, its engineers, employees, contractors, or such persons’ or entities’ negligence.

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Acquisition Agrecmenl 7



SECTION 10. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that any Party is required Lo
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the Parties agree that the
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other(s) all fees and costs
incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, paralegal fees and expert witness fees, and costs for
trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings.

SECTION 11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and
complete expression of the agreement between the District and the Developer relating to the:
sub ject matter of this Agreement.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENTS. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement
between the Parties regarding the subject matier hereof and may be modified in writing only by
the mutual agreement of all Parties, and with regards to amendments having a material effect on
the payment of debt se1vice on the Assessment Area 3B Bonds, with the prior written consent of
the trustee for the Assessment Area 3B Bonds (the “Trustee™) acting atthe direction of the holders
owning a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds then
outstanding.

SECTION 13. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Districtand the Developer. The District and
the Developer have complied with all the requirements of law. The District and the Developer
have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 14. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under
this Agreement (“Notices™) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail,
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows:

A. If to the District:  Towne Park Community Development District
12051 Corporate Boulevard
Orlando, Florida 32817
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300
Post Office Box 6526
Tallahassee, Florida 32314
Attn: Roy Van Wyk

B. If to Developer: Highland Sumner, LLC
c/o Heath Construction
and Management, LLC
346 East Central Avenue
Lakeland, Florida 33880
Attn: Warren K. Heath I1

Riverstone/Assessmenl Area 3B/Acquisition Agreement g



With a copy to: Straughn & Turner, P.A.
255 Magnolia Avenue SW
Lakeland, Florida 33880
Attn; Richard E. Straughn

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day, If any
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day.
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Developer may deliver Notice on behalf of the District
and the Developer. Any Party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify
the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent
by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this
Agreement.

SECTION 15. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully
between the District and the Developer as an arm’s length transaction. All Parties participated
fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a
dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, all Parties are deemed to
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted
or construed against any Party hereto.

SECTION 16. THIR® PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of
the District and the Developer and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or
for the benefit of any third party not a format party o this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or entity other
than the District and the Developer any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this
Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions,
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole
benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Developer and their respective
representatives, successors, and assigns. Notwithstanding the [oregoing, nothing in this paragraph
shall be construed as impairing or modifying the rights of any holders of Assessment Area 3B
Bonds issued by the District for the purpose of acquiring any Work Product. Improvements and/or
Real Property. Also, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Trustee for the
Assessment Area 3B Bonds, on behalf of the owners of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds, shall be
a direct third-party beneficiary of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and shall, acting at
the direction of the bondholders owning more than 50% of an aggregate principal amount of the
applicable Assessment Area 3B Bonds then outstanding, be entitled to cause the District to enforce
the Developer’s obligations hereunder.

SECTION 17. ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement may be assigned. in whole or in part, by
either Party only upon the written consent of the other, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, and the Trustee acting on behalf of the Bondholders owning a majority of the aggregate
principal amount of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds then outstanding. Such consent shall not be

Riverslone/Assessmenl Area 3B/Acquisition Agreement Y



required in the event of a sale of the majority of the Assessment Area 3B Project then-owned by
the Developer pursuant to which the unaffiliated purchaser agrees to assume any remaining
obligations of the Developer under this Agreement. Upon the merger. amendment, or name change
of tbe District, the Agreement will be assumed by operation of law by the District's successor in
interest and no consent to such assumpftion shall be required.

SECTION 18. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State
of Florida. Each Party consents that the exclusive venue for any litigation arising out of or related
to this Agreement shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, in and for Pollk County, Florida.

SECTION 19. EFFECTIVE DATE, This Agreement shall be effective upon its executionby
the District and the Developer.

SECTION 20. TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated by the District without
penalty in the event that the District does not issue its proposed Assessment Area 3B Bonds within
five (5) years from the date of this Agreement.

SECTION 21. PuBLIC RECORDS. The Developer understands and agrees that all
documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public
records and will be treated as such in accordance with Florida law.

SECTION 22. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

SECTION 23. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory
limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida
Legislature in section 768.28, Florida Statures, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would
otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.

SECTION 24. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affiect the meaning or construction
of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 25. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts. each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such
counterparts together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. Signature and
acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single
copy of this document to physically form one document.

[Remauinder of this page left intentionally blank]

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Acquisition Agreement 10



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Paities execute this Agreement the day and year first written above.

ATTEST: TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Secretary/Assistant Secretary D. Joel Adams

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

WITNESS: HIGHLAND SUMNER LLC,

a Florida limited liability company

By: Heath Construction and
Management, LLC
[ts: Manager

Warren K. (*Rennie”) Heath I1. Manager

[Print Name]

Composite Exhibit A: Preliminary Engineer's Report dated November 2014, as amended
by that First Amendment to the Master Engineer’s Report dated
November 2014, and supplemented by that Third Supplemental
Engineer's Report Phase 3B (Assessment Area 3B) dated July
2019

Rivetstone/Assessmenl Arca 3B/Acquisition Agreement 11



Engineering & Surveying Corporation

8515 Palm River Road, Tampa, FL 33619-4316 | 813-621-7B41 | Fax 813-621-6761 | mail@lesc.com | www.lesc.com

TOWNE PARKE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT

Prepared for:

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TOWNE PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Prepared by:

LANDMARK ENGINEERING & SURVEYING CORPORATION
8515 PALM RIVER ROAD
TAMPA, FL 33619
PH: 813-621-7841

November 2014



TOWNE PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

TABLE OF CONTENTS
L. NS RODPCTICN o opd 53 557 055 P o RF 2B F 5T 3 P B B R A Ao} D310 £ o |
IL BURE S ANDA SRR, o ot sttt foais i b b oo os e o ati s o o 2
NI “THEREVELOPRMEINT .. ... o o dieassse fesd- 15t desa- iaasssss s sase e saaca s somatbs - a4-obaracsend 3
Ve THEPROIECT s s i a0 B s S by 2 i SV M e T T o e 200 2N 3
V. BROPOSED IMPRIGVEMENTS a1y 501 40 k0. L0 a8 il dcon i fon stuiosedtsnss msw il ovghissih. 4
Stormwater Management Facilities ...........cc.cciiiiiiiniiii e 4
ROTBRIVGAT b w2 o0 i rompiis 6 40 o 7000 20 2 10t b 5 o S A A SR S8 5 D 50 S A N8 49911 2)
Whitet-and BV astewater FARRMIES «.o...q- v s noniasio iare i oini gt g e s e st B et 6
CN-Sile (ANRPOVEINANTS o ST Syt o alt s AR o 37 A (e VO i 6 2 T g 7
N ISTEMBITCIUS £ . o- driter ihe o bpitan b bpsgs osgash V04 O roANT At OmradewmmL e S s 944 0 72k v e e 16202 bt 7
VL BRIV TEIING om0 D) S 8 il D 0 o e S L B s L (Y o T M gl 8
WL TRECOMMBNLDATIOMB. . o\ o.coc.sos- .o o0 g i, 0. g 00 ML B 800 T e iy e A 9
VIl  [REPORI MODIIAC AT IO Niiniumeviyrisrgpmsorrrisorapsrasni ot sessssvsbapasg s ags regmomponsgom goob s g 14 o 9

I, YRRMCL ST o . o i 5ot ot g 5 S -B A H 5 Pf E L f E0  B Tt e 10



LIST OF TABLES & EXHIBITS

TABLE | — Land Use Summary Within the District
TABLE 2 — Summary of Opinion of Probable Costs
TABLE 3 — Summary of Proposed District Facilities

TABLE 4 — Preliminary Development Schedule

EXHIBIT | - General Location Map
EXHIBIT 2 — District Boundary Map
EXHIBIT 3 — Legal Description
EXHIBIT 4 — Future Land Use Map
EXHIBIT 5 — Utility Location Map

EXHIBIT 6 — Overall Development Plan



ENGINEER’S REPORT
TOWNE PARK

INTRODUCTION

The Towne Park Comumunity Development District (the “District” or the “*CDD™) is located
south of W Pipkin road and north of Ewell Road, just east of County Line Road. in the City
of Lakeland, Polk County, Florida. The District currently contains approximately 585
acres, and is expected to consist of 2.088 single family and/or multi-family residential

units, recreation and amenity areas, parks, and associated infrastructure.

The CDD was established under City of Lakeland Ordinance No. 14-051, which was
passed by the City Council on November 3, 2014. The CDD will own and operate the
roadways and stormwater management facilities, as well as the landscape. irrigation,

signage, and recreational facilities within the Community.

Improvements and facilities financed, acquired, and/or constructed by the CDD will be
required to conform to regulatory requirements of the City of Lakeland, Polk County,
Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD). and other agencies with
regulatory jurisdiction over the development. An overall estimate of probable cost is

provided in Section 3 of this report.

The development plan prepared by the CDD reflects the present intentions of the CDD. It
should be noted that the location of proposed facilities and improvements may be ad justed
during the final design, penimitting, and implementation phases. It should also be noted
that these modifications are not expected to diminish the benefits received by the Towne
Park Community (the “Community™). Tbe CDD reserves the right to make reasonable
adjustments to the development plan to meet applicable regulatory requirements of
agencies with jurisdiction over the development, while maintaining comparable level of
benefits to the community served by the improvements. Changes and modifications are

expected as changes in regulatory criteria are implemented.

Page |



i1

Implementation of any proposed facilities or improvements outlined in this report requires
written approval from the CDD’s Board of Supervisors. Estimated costs outlined in this
repoit were based on best available infonnation. which includes but i1s not himited to
previous experience with similar projects. Actual costs could be different than estimates

because final engineering and specific field conditions may affect construction costs.

All roadway improvements. sidewalks, and storm1 drainage collection systems {from the
cwb inlets to their connection to fhe Stormwater ponds) within the Community will be
maintained by the CDD. Water distribution and wastewater collection systems (gravity
lines, force mains, and lift stations) will be dedicated to City of Lakeland for ownership

and maintenance.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose ofthis report is to provide engineering support to fund improvements in Phase
2 and Phase 3 of the Community. Phase 2 is currently approved and permitted for 207
single family residential units and their associated infrastructure, while Phase 3 is currently
planned fer up to 1,881 single family and multi-family residential units and their associated
infrastructure (no pernmit applications have been submitted for Phase 3). This report will
identify the proposed capital improvements to be constructed or acquired by the District

along with an opinion of probable cost.

Contained within this report is a description of the publi¢ infrastructure to be constructed
or acquired by the District. The District will finance, construct, operate, and maintain
specific portions of the proposed capital improvements. An assessment methodology
consultant has been retained by the Distiict, who will develop the assessment and financing

methodology to be applied to this report.

Page 2



1L

V.

The predominant portion of this report provides descriptions of the proposed public
infrastructure improvements, determination of estimated probable construction costs, and
the corresponding benefits associated with the implementation of the described
improvements. Detailed Site Construction Plans and specifications have been completed
and permitted for Phase 2. while Phase 3 is still in planning. The engineer has considered.
and in specific instances has relied upon, the information and docuumentation prepared or
supplied by others, and information that may have been provided by public entities, public
employees. the developer, site construction contractors, other engineering professionals.

land surveyors, the District Board of Supervisors, and its staft'and consultants.

THE DEVELOPMENT

The Towne Park Community will consist of up to 2.088 residential units (the
“Development™} and associated infirastricture. The Development is a planned residential
community located between West Pipkin Road and Ewell Road, just east of County Line
Road in the City of Lakeland, Polk County, Florida. The Development lies within Sections
8, 9 and 17, Township 23 South, Range 29 East, all within Polk County, Florida. The
Development received zoning approval by the City of Lakeland Planning Commission as
an R-3 District, and has an underlying Future Land Use Designation of RL (Residential-
Low). The Development will be constructed in approximately two (2) master phases, but

sub-phasing is expected.

THE PROJECT

The Project consists of public infrastructure in Phases 2 and 3. The primary portions of
the Project will entail stormwater pond construction, roadways built to an "urban” typical
section, water and sewer facilities and off-site impravements (including tum lanes and

extension of water and sewer mains to serve the Project).

Page 3



There will also be stormwater structures and conveyance culverts within the Project which
will outfall into the on-site retention ponds. These structures and pond areas comprise the
overall stormnwater facilities of the Project. Installation of the water distribution and
wastewater collection system will also occur at this time. Below ground installation of
power, telecommunications and cable TV will occur, but will notbe funded by the District.
Installation of conduit for street lights within the public right of way will be funded by the
District.

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

The infrastructure improvements include the following:

Stormwater Management Facilities
Stormwater management facilities consisting of storm conveyance systems and retention

ponds are contained within the District boundaries. Stormwater runoff is collected via
roadway curb and gutter to storm inlets, which are connected by storm culverts. The storm
culverts convey the nnoff into the proposed detention ponds for water quality treatment
and attenuation. The proposed stormwater systems will utilize wet detention for biological
pollutant assimtlation to achieve water quality treatment. The design criteria for the
District’s stormwater management systems is regulated by the City of Lakeland, Polk
County and SWFWMD.

FEMA Commuuity Panel No. 12105C-0460F (dated 12/19/2000) demonstrates that the
propetty is located within Flood Zones A & X. Floodplain compensation will required for
any fill placed witliin Flood Zone A. Additionally, there are existing wetlands on site that
have been delineated and approved by the appropriate regulatory agencies for such

purposes,

Page 4



During the construction of stormwater management facilities, utilities and roadway
improvements, the site contractor wiil be required to adhere to a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) as required by FDEP as delegated by the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA). The SWPPP will be prepared to depict for the contractor the
proposed locations of required erosion control consisting of staked turbidity barriers along
the down gradient side of any proposed construction activity and adjacent to the wetland
edges and the perimeters. The site contractor will be required to provide the necessary
reporting on various forms associated with erosion control, its maintenance and any rainfall

events that occur during construction activity.

Roadways

The proposed public roadway sections are to be S0' R/W with 20’ of asphalt and Miami
curb and gutter on both sides. The proposed roadway section will consist of stabilized
subgrade, crushed concrete or cement treated base and asphalt wearing surface. The
proposed curb is to be 2' wide and placed along the edge of the proposed roadway section
for purposes of protecting the integrity of the pavement and also to provide stoymwater
runof f conveyance to the proposed stormwater inlets. Roadway underdrains may be

provided as necessary to control groundwater and protect the roadway base material.

The proposed roadways will require signage and pavement markings within the public
rights-of-way, as well as street signs depicting street name 1dentifications and block
numbers, which will be utilized by the residents and public. It is intended that the CDD

will boud all public roadway improvements.

Page S



Water and Wastewater Facilities

A potable water system wclusive of water main, gate valves, fire hydrants and
appurtenances will be installed for the Development. The water service provider will be
the City of Lakeland Public Utilities. The water system will be a "looped” system
consisting of 47, 6”7, and 8" diameter PVC water lines. These facilities will be installed
within the proposed public 1ights-of-way within the District. The water system will
provide the potable (domestic) and fire protection services which will serve the entire

District.

A domestic wastewater collection system consisting of gravity sanitary sewer mains and
sewer laterals will be installed. The gravity sanitary sewer mains will be 8" diameter PVC.
The gravity sanitary sewer lines will be placed inside of the proposed pubtic rights-of-way.
under the proposed paved roadways. Branching off from these sewer lines will be laterals
to serve the individual lots. No pump station or torce mains are required because the

project has an existing sanitary sewer pump station adjacent to the site.

Reclaimed water is not available for this site. An irrigation wellto be funded by the District
will be installed onsite to provide irrigation within the public right of way. Any water,

sewer. or reclaim water pipes or facilities placed on private property will not be publicly
funded.

Page 6



Off-Site Improvements

There are no oft-site improvements currently planned for the District,

Miscellaneous:

Upon completion of each phase of these improvements, inspection / certifications witl be
obtained from SWFWMID, the Polk County Health Department (water distribution
system), Department of Environmental Protection (DEP, wastewater collection) and the
City of Lakeland.

The stormwater improvements, roadways, landscaping and irrigation, mitigation area(s),
and certain permits and professional fees as desciibed i this report, are being financed by
the District with the intention of benefiting all of the developable real property within the
District. The construction and maintenance of the proposed public improvements will

benefiit the Development for the intended use as a mixed use planned development.

Page 7



PERMITTING

Construction permits for Phase 2 have been obtained, which include the SWFWMD
Environmental Recourse Permit (ERP). There are no Army Corps of Engineer (ACOE)
jurisdictional wetlands within the project boundaries, therefore no permits are required

fromthat agency.

Following is a summary of required permits obtained and pending for the construction of

the public infrastructure improvements for the District:

PHASE 2
Permits / Approvals Approval / Expected Date

Zoming Approval (Lakeland) October 2014
Preliminary Plat (Lakeland) December 2014
SWFWMD ERP February 2015
Construction Permits (Lakeland) February 2015
FDEP Water February 2015
FDEP Sewer February 2015

There are no current permit applications filed for Phase 3.

Page 8



VII.

VIIIL

RECOMMENDATIONS

As previously described within this report. the public infrastructure as described is
necessary for the development and functional operation of the Community as required by
the City of Lakeland, Florida. The site planning, engineering design and construction plans
for the infrastructure are in accordance with the applicable requirements of the City of
Lakeland and SWFWMD. Tt should be noted that the infrastructure will provide its
intended use and function so long as the construction and installation is in substantial

conformance with the design construction plans and regulatory permits.

Items utilized in Tuble 2 - Opinion of Probable Costys for this report are based upon current
plan quantities for the infrastructure as shown on construction drawings incorporating
specifications m the most recent review comments received from SWFWMD and the City

of Lakeland as well as estimated quantities for the future phases.

REPORT MODIFICATION

During development and implementation of the public infrastructure improvements as
described for the District, it may be necessary to make modifications and/or deviations for
the plans. However, if such deviations and/or revisions do not change the overall primary
objective of the plan for such improvements, then the costs differences would not

materially affect the proposed cost estimates.

Page 9



IX.

CONCLUSION

It is our professional opinion that the public infrastructure costs for the District provided
in this report are reasonable to complete the construction of the infrastructure.
Furthemnore, the public infrastructure improvements will benefit and add value to lands

within the District at least equal to the costs of such improvements.

The Opinion of Probable Costs of the nfrastnicture is only an estimate and is not a
guaranteed maximum price. The estimated costs are based upon unit prices currently
experienced on an ongoing and similar basis for work in Polk County. Furthermore, the
quantities are a derivative of line items from specific constiuction dociuments and
construction contracts as of this date. However, labor market, future costs of equipment,
materials, changes to the regulatory permitting agencies activity, and the actual
construction processes employed by the chosen site contractor are beyond the engineer's
control. Due to this inherent opportunity for changes (upward or downward) in the

construction costs, the total, final construction cost may be more or less than this estimate.

Based upon the presumption that the Project construction continues in a timely manner, it
is our professional opinion that the proposed public improvements when constructed and
buwlt in substantial conformance with the approved plans and specifications, can be
completed and used for their intended function. Be advised that we have utilized historical
costs and direct unit costs from site contractors and consultants in Pollc County, which we
believe to be necessary in order to facilitate estimated costs associated with the Opinion of
Probable Costs. Based upon the information above, it is our professional opinion that the
acquisition and construction costs of the proposed project can be completed at the cost as

stated.

Page 10



w N

Table 1 - Land Use Summary Within The District Boundaries

TOWNE PARK

Community Development District

Distribution by Land Use "

Land Use Area (acres) Percentage
Stormwater Ponds 72.0 12.3%
Residential 285.3 48.8 %
Commercial 0 0%
Wetland / Conservation 207.5 35.5 %
Recreation / Open Space 20.0 3.4 %
TOTAL 584.8 100.0 %
Distribution by Lot Size @
Phase SF Lots MF Units TOTAL Percentage
2 2079 0 2079 9.9 %
3 1,431 450 1,881 901 %
TOTAL 1,638 450 2,088 100.0 %

Notes:

Figures are approximate; Areas may change upon final layout

Lot widths subject to change
Current approved lot count




TOWNE PARK

Community Development District

Table 2 — Summary of Opinion of Probable Costs ¢

TOTAL

Infrastructure @%®) Phase 2 {"! Phase 3 "
Stormwater Management @& $ 3,654,000 $ 11,088,000 $ 14,742,000
Utilities (Water and Sewer) $ 1,363,000 $ 4,136,000 $ 5,499,000
Roadway ¥ $ 1,305,000 $ 3,960,000 $ 5,265,000
Entry Feature & Signage 7! $ 750,000 $ 1,450,000 $ 2,200,000
Amenities $ 1,000,000 $ 3,000,000 $ 4,000,000
Contingency $ 700,000 $ 2,500,000 $ 3.200,000
TOTAL $ 8,772,000 $ 26,134,000 $ 34,906,000
Notes:

1. Infrastructure consists of roadway improvements, stormwater management facilities, water lines, sanitary sewer utilities,

entry feature, landscaping and signage, neighborhood parks and recreational facilities

Estimates are based on 2013 costs.

@NDO B WN

Includes stormwater pond excavation, placement of fill, and wetland mitigation.
Includes sub-grade, base, asphalt paving, curbing, and civil / site engineering.
Includes subdivision infrastructure and civil / site engineering only.

Stormwater does not include grading associated with building pads.

Includes Entry Features, Signage, Hardscape, Landscape, Irrigation, and Fencing
CDD will enter into a Lighting Agreement with Lakeland Electric for the street light poles and lighting service




Community Development District

TOWNE PARK

Table 3 — Summary of Proposed District Facilities

District Infrastructure Construction Ownership Capital Financing Operation and
Maintenance
Entry Feature & Signage District District District Bonds District
Stormwater Facilities District District District Bonds District
Water & Sewer Utilities District City of Lakeland District Bonds City of Lakeland
Street Lighting/Conduit District Lakeland Electric District Bonds Lakeland Electric
Road Construction District City of Lakeland District Bonds City of Lakeland




TOWNE PARK
Community Development District

Table 4 — Preliminary Development Schedule

Phase Estimated Estimated Number of
Start Date Completion Date Lots / Units
2 2014 2015 207

3 2015 2018 1,881




v.up.u\sm:“"' =

Fhighitlins

Ewoll-Re

Sourcels: Eri. DeLorme, NAVTEQ. TomTom, intermap. imcrement P Coyp ..
GEBC®, USGS:FAQ, §PS, NRCAN, G:eoBa$e.z\, IGN, Kadaster NL,
Ordnance Survey, Esrijlapan, METI. Esri China (Hong Kong). {wigstopo.

and the GIS User Community

i

ANDWARK

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING
CORPORATION

8515 Palm River Read; Tampa, Flerida 33619
813/621-7841 (voice) 813/621-676] (lax)
wwwlesc.com

Towne Park

Exhibit 1
General Location Map

Data provided by ESRIL FGDL, Polk County and SWFMWD

IN: 2140055
Date: 06/17/14

1 inch = 2,000 feet




Parcel No. ParcelID

2908-000000-021020
2909-000000-042010
2909-13963]1-002072
29
2
2

09-139631-002081
917-000000-031000
917-000000-010000

2917-000000-042110
2917-000000-044 110
232917-000000-04 4140
232917-000000-042070
232917-000000-042120
232917-000000-023080

2
23
23
23
23
23
23
23

[ LR LV I NV N ]

O

e

1 oy +"Souo: Eafl Diglarione (Roiye; -eudes, ERiNses Segumpilesy
EWELISROAD “ENESIATbus BE, USEA, USES, ABX, Geltm apprg,;\m @it 1GN), 1@}3
i ag@;mwu Eﬁﬁ@?@@\ sen®ommiinitg -

&Q&QK Towne Park IN: 2140055

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING oH_
CORPORATION EXhlblt 2 Date: 06/17/14

8515 Palm River Road: Tampa, Flerida 33619 . .
813/621-7841 (voice)  813/621-6761 (fax) District Boundary Map

www.lesc.com Data provided by ESRI, FGDL. Polk County and SWFMWD Linch= 1,000 feet




TOWNE PARK
Community Development District

EXHIBIT 3 - Legal Description

Phase 2:

THAT PART OF SECTIONS 8 & 9, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, POLK COUNTY,
FLORIDA MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGIN AT THE SOUTHWEST
CORNER OF SAID SECTION 9 AND RUN THENCE N-89°58'07"-E ALONG THE SOUTH
BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 9, 1865.81 FEET; THENCE N-00°01'63"-W, 247.65 FEET,;
THENCE N-00°41'07"-E, 178.59 FEET; THENCE N-65°58'09"-W, 132.26 FEET; THENCE
N-58°19'08"W, 210.85 FEET; THENCE N-61°10'05"-W, 134.05 FEET, THENCE S-81°49'54"-W,
50.47 FEET; THENCE N-57°05'32"-W, 104.75 FEET, THENCE S-48°54'17"-W, 18.23 FEET;
THENCE ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE EAST HAVING A RADIUS OF 1360.46 FEET, A
CHORD OF 274.53 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF N-37°45'56"-W THROUGH A CENTRAL
ANGLE OF 11°34'54" AN ARC LENGTH OF 275.00 FEET, THENCE S-56°05'06"-W, 50.03 FEET,
THENCE ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE NORTH HAVING A RADIUS OF 1010.00 FEET,
A CHORD OF 269.29 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF S-65°09'55"-W THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 15°19'20" AN ARC LENGTH OF 270.10 FEET; THENCE

S-72°49'35"-W, 209.24 FEET; THENCE S-23°51'50"-W, 268.62 FEET; THENCE N-66°08'10"-W,
160.00 FEET; THENCE S-23°51'50"-W, 20.00 FEET; THENCE N-66°08'10"-W, 115.00 FEET;
THENCE N-88°32'43"-W, 138.19 FEET; THENCE N-89°56'52"-W, 137.01 FEET TO THE WEST
BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 9; THENCE N-00°07'16"-E ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY,
1646.83 FEET, THENCE N-90°00'00"-W, 80.00 FEET; THENCE N-00°07'16"-E, 387.68 FEET TO
THE RIGHT OF WAY OF WEST PIPKIN ROAD; THENCE N-89°59'54"-W ALONG SAID RIGHT
OF WAY, 982.20 FEET; THENCE S-36°31'55"-W ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE
LAKELAND LINDER REGIONAL AIRPORT APPROACH SURFACE, 3224.55 FEET TO A POINT
OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHWEST % OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE S-
89°56'41"-E ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, 321.04 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF THE SOUTHEAST %4 OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE S-89°56'35"-E ALONG THE
SOUTHERN BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHEAST %4 OF SAID SECTION 8, 2655.16 FEET TOTHE
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Phase 3:

Parcel 232917-000000-031000:
NW1/4 LESS SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF NW1/4 & NW1/4 OF SW1/4 & W1/4 OF NE1/4 OF SW1/4

Parcel 232917-000000-010000:
NE1/4 & SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF NW1/4 & E3/4 OF NE1/4 OF
SW1/4

Parcel 232917-000000-023080:
N 330 FT OF W1/2 OF SE1/4 LESS E 990 FT BEING LOT 88 UNRE WOODHAVEN



Parcel 232917-000000-042120:

BEG 175 FT E OF SW COR OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SEC N365FTW 175FTN 976.32FTE
49761 FT S 43769 FTW 44761 FT S488.67FTE 175 FT S415FT W 50

FTTO POB LESS RD RW

Parcet 232917-000000-042070:

BEG 225 FT E OF SW COR SE1/4 OF SW1/4 N415 FTW
175 FT N 48867 FTE 447.61 FT S904.03FTTO S

LINE SECW 272.61 FT TO POB LESS RD R/W

Parcel 232917-000000-044110:
E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4

Parcel 232917-000000-044140:

E1/2 OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SEC LESS N
208.75 FT OF S 238.75 FT OF W 208.75 FT & LESS RD
RIW

Parcel 232917-000000-042110:
BEG SW COR OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SEC E ALONG S SEC
LINE 1775 FTN 365 FTW 175 FT STOPOB LESS RD RIW



|
4

e T 1V 1L ROADE Sot b, CRbRA Fatbed, USIA,

I @&@K . . Towne Par

ta‘%ﬁp ‘ﬂ'@ﬂh?) :@ MGC&IMU JRI?-

IN: 2140055
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING o o
CORPORATION EXhlblt 4 Date: 06/17/14
8515 Palm River Road: Tampa, Flonda 33619
813/621-7841 (veice)  813/621-6761 (fax) Future Land Use Map

wiwwilesc.com Bata provided by ESR{, FGDL. Polk County and SWEMWD I inch = 1,000 feel




R — =5 gMC,;\WMg_—h: e Y 1 P 11 R e s e e e e

r ]

Satritall W #]

10" PVC WM

8" PVC SS

Sources: Esri. DeLorme, NAVTEQ, TomTom, Intermag, increment P Corp..
GEBCQ, USGS, FAO. NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN; Kadasler NL.,
OrdAaheé’Stirvey. Esri Japan, METI. Esri China (Hong Kong), swisstopo,
and the GIS User Communily, Sources: Esri, DeLormie, USGS, NPS

ANDMARK

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING
CORPORATION

8515 Palm RiverRoad; Tampa, Florida 33619
813/621-7841 (voice)  813/621-6761 (fax)
www.les¢.com

Towne Park

Exhibit §

Map of Major Trunk Water Mains
and Sewer Interceptors

Data provided by ESRI. FGDL. Polk County and SWFMWD

IN: 2140055
Bate: 07/22/14

1 inch =500 feel




NTINONA TrOF RSP aOasd
L OGS TOr NI 000 L

e = —

NvYTId LNINDOTIAIA TIVHIAO

o 18IHX3

B4sL-2C (E99] woud
GOECT YORION
*EAVKIL I

IAY YNUNID§ T

b NOUNRANNOS 305 OT 'l SHOUS3IANI ANV T L

Mevd INMOL

DU

o ap. vl 2058263
19216 EIB vt BIOEE TATHTER L L
IOEIDEISR]  DTOY MG W A GETR

ru
Hi

Towne Park Phase 3

|[LOCAL COLLECTOR ROAD|

e L]

Tt = o

|LOCAL COLLECTOR ROAD)|

PHASE A

i PHASE G

T lli"_‘%_lml_ﬁh

|LOCAL COLLECTOR ROAD|




TOWNE PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER ENGINEER’'S REPORT DATED NOVEMBER 2014

PREPARED FOR:
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TOWNE PARK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

PREPARED BY:

AN 17

HAMILTON

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, INC.

EBEns
3408 W. Lemon SL Tampa, FL 33609 | Phone: 813.260.3636 . Fax: B13,250,3638
Engineering Business No. 8474

MARCH 2018



TOWNE PARK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DiSTRICT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

l. o B T e S N A B e T A SN

Il. OPESITE IMPROVEMENES 2o ct-s414 sty tarimiviassmmesmson sttt o5 1oy soo it S8 WS o s seahessesoionsdonsssaresiaitise

LIST OF TABLES & EXHIBITS

TABLE 2 - Summaery of Opinion of Probable Costs



TOWNE PARK
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER ENGINEER'S REPORT

PURPOSE

The Purpose of this Amendment is to Amend Section V.é of the Master Engineer's Report
dated November 201410 inciude the ofisite improvements required to be constructed for the
projecl. The costs associated with the offsite improvements are also included in this
Amendment, Table 2 has been adjusted to reflect the costs for the offsite improvements and
isincluded hetein. Table 2 hereto shall be deemed to replace Table 2 of ihe Master Engineer's

Report.

OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS

The proposed offsite improvements required for the project include extension of the force
main from the project limits to the proposed Point of Connection to provide sanitary sewer
service to the project. Additionally, both access turn lanes and other offsite roadway

improvements are required 1o serve the project.



TABLE 2

TOWNE PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Summary of Opinion of Probable Cost

tnfrastructure B1® Phase 2 {1} Phase 3(2) TOTAL
Offsite Improvements & Phase 3 Spine Road S - 15 4,443,450 | S 4,443,450
StormwaterManagementwmtsue’ S 3,654,000 | $ 15,649,500 | $ iQTSOB,SOO
Utliities (Water, Sewer, & Street Lighting) ¥ S 1,363,000 | $ 5,333,200 | 6,696,200
Roadway S 1,305,000 | $ 5,059,800 | $ 6,364,800
|entry Feature & Signage'” S 750,000 | $ 860,000 | $ 1,610,000
|parks and Amenities S 1,000,000 | $ 1,600,000 | § 2,600,000
Contingency S 700,000 | $ 1,980,000 | $ 2,680,000
TOTAL i 3 8,772,000 | 5 349259508 43,697,950

1. Infrastructure consists of roadway improvements, Stormwater management facilities,
master sanitary sewer lift station and utilities, entry feature, landscaping and signage, and

neighborhood parks.

2. Stormwater does not include grading associated with building pads.

3. Includes Stormwater pond excavation,

4, includes sub-grade, base, asphalt paving, curbing, and civil/site engineering., All roadways

will be public and accessible by public.

S. Includes subdivision infrastructure and civil/site engineering.

6. Estimatesare based on 2017 costs.

7. Includes entry features, signage, hardscape, landscape, Irrigation and

fencing.

8. CDD will enterinto a Lighting Agreement with Lakeland Electric for the street light poles and

lighting service.




TOWNE PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

THIRD SUPPLEMENT AL ENGINEER'’S REPORT

PHASE 3B (Assessment Area 38)

PREPARED FOR
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TOWNE PARK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

PREPARED BY:

ABSOLUTE ENGINEERING, INC.

Engineering Business No. 28358

JULY 2019



TOWNE PARK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENIS ..........ccoomvimvivinecican. T T e A o o o s PR e VL 0L

PERMITTING ...

CONCLUSION

.......................................................................................................................................



LIST OF TABLES & EXHIBITS

TABLE 1 = Land Use Summary Within the District

TABLE 2 - Summary of Opinion of Probable Costs

TABLE 3 - Phasing References

EXHIBIT | — Map of Phase 3B

EXHIBIT 2 — Legal Description of Phase 38

EXHIBIT 3 - Phasing Exhibit



TOWNE PARK
THIRD SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEER'S REPORT
PHASE 3B (Assessment Area 38)

INTRODUCTION

The Towne Park Community Development District (the "District" orthe *CDD") is focated south
of West Pipkin Road and north of Ewell Road. just eost of County Line Road. in the City of
Lakeland, Polk County, Florida. The District currently contains approximately 586 acres, and
is expected to consist of 1,453 single family and/or mulli-family residential units, recreation

and amenity areas. parks, and associated infrastructure,

The CDD was established under City of Lakeland Ordinance No. 14-051, which was passed
by the City Commission on November 3, 2014, as smended by thai ordinance No. 5766
enacted by the City Commission on April 1,2019. The CDD willown and operate the roadways
and stormwater management facilities, as well as the landscape, irrigation, signage, and
recreational facilities within the Community. The CDD will acquire the property and

improvements from the Developer at the lower of cost or fair market value.

Improvements and facilities financed. acquired. and/or constructed by the CDO will be
required to conform to regulatory requirements of the City of Lakeland. Polk County,
Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD), and other agencies with regulatory
jurisdiction over the development, An overall estimate of probable cost is provided in Table

2 of this report.

The development plan prepared by the CDD reflects the present intentions of the CDD. It
should be noted that the location of proposed facitities and improvements may be adjusted
during the fnal design, permitting, and implementation phases. it should also be noted that
these modifications ore not expected to diminish the benefits received by the Towne Park
Community (the *“Community”). The CDD reserves the right to make reasonable cdjustments
to the development plan to meet applicable regulatory requirements of agencies with
jursdiction over the development, while maintaining comparable levels of benefits to the
community served by the improvements. Changes and modifications are expected as

changes in regulatory criteria are implemented.

1



Implementation of any proposed facilities or improvements outlined in this report requires
written approval from the CDD's Board of Supervisors. Estimated costs outlined in this report
were based on best available information, which includes but is not limited to previous
experience with similar projects. Actual costs could be different than estimates because final

engineering and specific field conditions may affect construction costs.

All roadway improvements, sidewalks, and storm drainage collection systems {from the curb
inlets to their connection to the Stormwater ponds) within the Community will be owned and
maintained by the CDD. Water distribution and wastewater collection systems [gravity lines,
force mains, and lift stations) will be dedicated to City of Lakeland for ownership and

maintenance.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this report is to provide engineering support to fund improvements in Phases
3B of the Community (also known as Riverstone Phase 2). Phase 3Bis currently designed and
being permitted for 277 single family residential units and their associated infrastructure. This
report willidentify the proposed capital improvements to be constructed or acquired by the

District along with an opinion of probable cost.

This report shouid b e reviewed in conjunction with the Moster Engineer's Report.

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

The infrastructure improvements for Phase 3B include the following:

Stormwater Mgnagement Facllities

Stormwater management facilities consisting of storm conveyance systems and retention
ponds are contained within the District boundaries and wil be owned and operated by
the District. Stormwater runoff is collected via roadway curb and gutter to storm inlets,
which are connected by storm culverts. The storm culverts convey the runoff into the
proposed detention ponds for water quality treatment and attenuation. The proposed
stormwater systems will utilize wet detention for biological pollutant assimilation to achieve

2



water quality treatment. The design criteria for the District's stormwater management

systems is regulated by the City of Lakeland, Polk County and SWFWMD.

FEMA Community Panel No. 12105C-0460G (dated 12/22/2016} demonstrates that the
propetty is located within Flood Zones A & X. Floodplain compensation will be required for
any fill placed within Flood Zone A. Additionally, there are existing wetiands on site that have

been delineated and approved by the appropriate regulatory agencies for such purposes.

During the construction of stormwater management facilities, utilities and roadway
improvements, the site contractor will be required to adhere to a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) as required by FDEP as delegated by the Environmental Protection
Agency {EPA). The SWPPP wili be prepared to depict for the contractor the proposed
locations of required erosion control consisting of staked turbidity bariers along the down
gradient side of any proposed construction activity and adjacent to the wettand edges
and the perimeters. The site contractor will be required to provide the necessary reporting
on various forms associated with erosion control, its maintenance and any rainfall events tihat

occur during construction activity,

Roadways

The proposed local public roadway sections will be owned by the District and are to
be 50' R/W with 20' of asphalt and Miami curb and gutter on both sides. The proposed
roadway section will consist of stabilized subgrade. crushed concrete or cement trealed
base and asphalt wearing surface. The proposed curb is to be 2' wide and placed along
the edge of the proposed roadway section for purposes of protecting the integrity of the
pavement and also to provide stormwater runoff conveyance to the proposed
stormwater inlets. Roadway underdrains may be provided as necessary to conlrol

groundwater and protect the roadway base material.

The proposed roadways wili require signage and pavement markings within the public
rights-of-way, as well as street signs depicting streel name identifications and block
numbers, which will be utilized by the residents and public. it is intended that the CDD will

bond all public roadway improvements.



YWater. and Wastewater Facliiies

A potable water system inclusive of water main, gate valves, fire hydrants and
appuirtenances will be installed for the Development. The water service provider will be the
City of Lakeland Public Utilities. The water system will be a "looped" system consisting
of 6" diameter PVC and DIP water lines. These facilities will be installed within the proposed
public rights-of-way within the District. The water system will provide the potable

(domestic) and fire protection services which will serve the entire District.

A domestic wastewater collection system consisting of gravity sanitary sewer mains and
sewer laterals will be installed. The gravity sanitary sewer mains will be 8" diameter PVC. The
gravity sanitary sewer lines will be placed inside of the proposed public rights-of-way, under
the proposed paved roadways. Branching off from these sewer lines will be laterals to serve

the individual lots. An existing pump station constructed in Phase 3A wilserve

Phase 3B.

Reclaimed wateris not available for this site. Anirrigation well to be funded by the District will
be installed onsite to provide irrigation within the public night of way. Any water, sewer,

or reclaim water pipes or facilities placed on private property will not be publicly lunded.

Entry Feqtures / Londscgoing & lnigafion / Amenilies;
Districi improvements will include entry features at the primary access points on Medulla
Road. These features wilt include signoge identifying the community, as well as buffer walls,

fencing, landscaping and irigation to enhance the entrance. The District willown, operate

and maintain these features.

The District will provide streetscape along the local collectorroads as required by the City
of Lakeland Land Development Code. Landscaping and irrigation will also be provided
within the local collector road rights-of-way and other common areas provided throughout
the Community. The District will maintain the streetscape. landscape, and imgation

systems as they are placed into service.

There are several tracts within the Community that are reseived for recreational use.

4



Anticipated development includes a clubhouse with paved parking areq, swimming pool,
multi-purpose fields, tennis courts, multi-purpose fields, parks and openh spaces. The

District will operate and maintain the public facilities constructed within these areas.

Miscellaneous:

Upon completion of each phase of these improvements, inspection / certifications will be
obtained from SWFWMD, the Polk County Heaith Department (water distiibution system).
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP, wastewater collection) and the City of

Laketland.

The stormwater improvements, roadways, water and wastewater facilities, entry
features, amenities, landscaping and irrigation, mitigation area(s). and certain permits
and prafessional fees as described in this report, are being financed by the District with the
intention of benefiting all of the developable real praperty within this phase. The construction
and maintenance of the proposed public improvements will benefit the Development far

the intended use as a mixed use planned development.

PERMITTING

All required construction permits for Phase 3B have not yet been obtained. including
SWEWMD Environmental Recourse Permit (ERP). There are no proposed impacts to Army
Corps of Engineer (ACOE] jurisdiciional wellands within the project boundaries, therefore no

permits are required from that agency.

Following is a summary of required permits obtained and pending for the canstruction of the

public infrastructure improvements for the District:

Permits / Approvails Approval / Expected Date
Zoning Approval (Lakeland) PUD 17-066
Preliminary Plat {Lakeland) SuB-18-014
SWFWMD ERP 43043355.001
Construction Permits (Lakeland) SUB-18-014 B
FDEP Water ' 126426-840
FDEP Sewer C553-0099495-311-ODWC/CM




CONCLUSION

It is our professional opinion that the public infrastructure costs for the District provided in this
report are reasonable to complete the construction of the infrastructure. Furthermore. the
public infrastructure improvements will benefit and add vellue to lands within the District al

least equal to the costs ofsuch improvements.

The Opinion of Probable Costs of the infrastructure is onty an estimate and is not a guaranteed
maximum price. The estimated costs are based upon unit prices currently experienced on
an ongoing and similar basis for work in Polk County. Furthermore, the quantities are a
derivative of line items from specific construction docuiments and construction contracts as
of this date, However, labor market, future costs of equipment, materials, changes to the
regulatory permitting agencies activity, and the actual construction processes employed by
the chosen site contractor are beyond the engineer's control. Due to this inherent
opportunity for changes {upward or downward) in the construction costs, the tatal, final

construction cost may be more or less than this estimate.

Besed upon the presumption that the Project construction continues in a timely manner, it is
our professional opinion that the proposed public improvements when constructed and built
in substantial conformance with the approved plans and specifications. can be completed
and used for their intended function. Be advised that we have ulilized historical cosis and
direct unit costs from site contractors and consultants in Polk County. which we believe to be
necessaryinorder to facilitate estimated costs associated with the Opinion of Probable Cosfs.
Based upon the information above, it is our professional opinion thal the acquisition and

construction costs of the proposed project con be completed at the cost as slaled.



TABLE TWO
TOWNE PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Summary of Opinion of Probable Cost

Number of Lots 227
infrastructure ' phase 38"
Stormwater Management (21345)&) $ 1,037,578
Utilltles {Water, Sewer, & Street Lighting) ™ 5 1,375.188
[Roadway ! k $ 1,917,850
]Entrv Feature & Signage'” S 486,775
IContingencv S 722,609
TOTAL $ 5,540,000

1. Infrastructure consists of roadway Improvements, Stormwater
management facilities, master sanitary se:wer lift station and utilities, entry
feature, landscaping and signage, and neighborhood parks. Any land
acquisitions or improvements purchased by the District will be made at the
lower of cost or fair market value.

2. Stormwater does not include grading associated with building pads for
initial construction and in conjunction with home construction.

3. Includes Stormwater pond excavation., Does not include cost of
transporting fill to, or use of fill on, privately owned land.

4. Includes sub-grade, base, asphalt paving, curbing, and civi/site
engineering. All roadways will be pubiic and accessible by public.

5. Includes subdivision infrastructure and civil/site engineering.

6. Estimates are based on 2018 costs,

7. Includes entry features, slgnage, hardscape, landscape, irrigation and
fencing.

8. CDD will enter intoa Lighting Agreement with {akeland Electric for the
street light poles and lightingservice. Only undergrounding of wires on
public right-of-way, utility easements and on District land will be financed by
the District. Only undergrounding of wires on public right-of-way and on
District Land will be funded by the District.



Phasing References

“Master” Supplemental Engineer’s Reports Bond Documents
Hamilton Phasing Map Phasing? (Sub-Phasing) {Assessment Area References)
| Towne Park Estates Phase 2A Phase 2A Towne Park Estates 2A
e First Supplemental Engineer’s Report Phase 2A e Partof Assessment Area 1 per First Supptemental
& 2B (Assessment Area 1), dated May 12,2016 | Trust Indenture (Series 2016) {also known as
| Assessment Area 2A per Fourth Supplemental Trust
| Indenture, Series 2019)
~N |
Towne Park Estates Phase 2B % Phase 2B | Towne Park Estates 28
£ e First Supplemental Engineer’s Report Phase 2A e PartofAssessment Area 1 per First Supplemental
& 2B [Assessment Area 1), dated May 12, 2016; Trust indenture (Series 2016)
' and e PartofAssessment Area 2B per Second
‘ e Second Supplemental Engineer’s Report Phase Supplemental Trust Indenture (Series 2018)
| 2B & 3A {Assessment Area 2), dated February
2018
Riverstone Phase 1 Phase3A Riverstone Phase 1
| » Second Supplemental Engineer’s Report Phase e PartofAssessmentArea 3A per Third Supplemental
2B & 3A (Assessment Area 2), dated February Trust indenture (Series 2018)
2013
Towne Park Estates South
e Map attachedto Second Supplemental
” Engineer’s Report Phase 2B & 3A (Assessment
@ Area 2), dated February 2018
1]
Rlverstone Phase 2 £ ' Phase 3B

| Riverstone Phases 3 & 4

[ Riverstone Phases S & &

e Third Supplemental Engineer’s Report Phase 3B
{Assessment Area 3B}, dated June 2019

Riverstone Phase 2
e PartofAssessmentArea 3B per Fourth
Supptemental Trust Indenture (Series 2019)

TBD

T8D

TBD

8D

1 per Preliminary Engineer’s Report dated November 2014, as amended by that First Amendment to the Master engineer’s Report, dated March 2018




Table 1 — Land Use Summary Within The District Boundaries

TOWNE PARK

Community Development District

Distribution by Land Use ("

Land Use TOTAL (acres) Percentage
Stormwater Ponds 18.8 214 %
Residential 56.73 644 %
Commercial 0 0%
Wetland / Conservation 12.5 14.2%
Recreation / Open Space 0 0%
TOTAL 88.03 100.0 %
Distribution by Lot Size @}
Phase SF Lots MF Units TOTAL Percentage
TOTAL 277 0 277 100.0 %
Notes:

1. Figures are approximate; Areas may change upon final layout

2. Lot widths subject to change




SKETCH & DESCRIPTION — NOT A SURVEY
8OO
_ g
| ki
~_POINT_OF BECINNING 400 4
N 895112 € 374.34' | “NW CORMER OF ME 1/4 SEC 17 g
) 78 ¢: 8 neys2ey E 152747 + 8 8.9 @
"N BDRY OF NW 1/4 OF SEC 17 37 17 N BORY OF NE 1/4 OF SEC 17 ] 17 | 16 0
5
%
¥
Iy
Ke
%
l!
I._
B
2
& ¥
34 ,
82 :
Z£7C6 S8g4II5W 17 17 17|16
e 627 = : e g | |y i = i —‘i,{
17 | 17 2 | ,,cuﬂ'é‘,ﬂu
UNE TARLE CURVE TABLE
Ef | DRECON | LOYG™ CURVED | RADIUS | CHORD BEARING | CHORD LENGTH | ARC LBNGTH | DELTA
Lt | s 26327 w| 170.08° ¢l | 30000 | s 2260" W 224.05' 2%099' | 4116%0°
Q| N 83z'4s” w | 315,07 €2 | 200000 s 3T40'0”" W 506.60° 50797 | t3308"
13 [ s 2248'54" W | 20865" c3 | 3500 |5 180014 € 63.61' 687 | 11°24'4g"
L4 | S 4306'09" E | 4506 c4 7500° | s 11'18'28° W .02 6LT5 | 4710%°
5 | s 130545 £ | so097 c5 | 1090.00' |5 7050'28° W 660.31' 68030 | 3545°'%"
15 | s ore2'u” € | 8032 05 | 150000 | S 8555'58" W 25041 2500 | o3
L7 | s 100" £ | w22
1B | 'S 15:49'43" W | 60.68
9 [N 7240708 w | 2838
L10 | S 3837°00" W | 1420°
L1t | 'S 6505'43" W | 4840°
L12 | S 82'05'46° W | 84.01 LECEND:
’ ] R) = RADIAL
U3 | S 112'47 E | 463 R ORI
P ' BORT=
L1 | s 6618'2" w | 110.00 foilisg k) |
s | S s508'M” € | 121.80° R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY
-—— ——
Y HAMILTON RIVERSTONE — POD 2
780 TENGINEERING & SURVCYING. INC. POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA

— il ' E R VR e S TR NIEe tut 10 13013 SRrrY
TEL (813) 230-3533% o
ST wpws  BWRA[vmm  ossooom i wom oyjorjaon |22




SKETCH & DESCRIPTION — NOT A SURVEY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, POLK COUNYY,
FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
SAID SECTION 17 AND PROCEED N 89" 52" 43" E, ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY THEREOF, A
DISTANCE OF 1527.47 FEET; THENCE S 00" 12" 15" E, LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF
270.53 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS
OF 390,00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 20" 26" 10" W, A DISTANCE OF 274.95 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 280.99 FEET TO A POINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE S 41" 04' 35" W, A DISTANCE OF 650,38 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2000.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
33" 48' 01" W, A DISTANCE OF 506.60 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT,
A DISTANCE OF 507.97 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 26 31" 27" W, A DISTANCE OF
179.05 FEET; THENCE N BQ" 32' 49" W, A DISTANCE OF 315.07 FEET; THENCE S 22° 48' 34" W, A
DISTANCE OF 206.65 FEET: THENCE S 45° 06' 09° E, A DISTANCE Of 49,06 FEET; THENCE S 13" 05
43" E, A DISTANCE OF 50.97 FEET; THENCE S 07° 42" 14” E. A DISTANCE OF B0.32 FEET; THENCE S
10° 30 46" E, A DISTANCE OF 43.22 FEET: THENCE S 15" 49' 43" W, A DISTANCE OF 69.86 FEET;
THENCE N 72° 40' 08" W, A DISTANCE OF 28.38 FEET; THENCE S 38" 37' 00" W. A DISTANCE OF
14.20 FEET; THENCE S 63" 05’ 43" W, A DISTANCE OF 46.40 FEET; THENCE S 82" 05' 46" W, A
DISTANCE OF 94.01 FEET; THENCE S 18 12' 43" E, A DISTANCE OF 46.39 FEET; THENCE S 66 16
22" W, A DISTANCE OF 110.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON—TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 34500 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 18 01' 14" E, A
DISTANCE OF 68.61 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF
68.72 FEET 10 THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A COMPOUND CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING
A RADIUS OF 75.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 11" 16' 28" W, A DISTANCE OF 60.02 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT. A DIST.ANCE OF 61.75 FEEY TO THE £ND OF
SAID CURVE; THENCE S 55" 08’ 14° E, ALONG A NON—RADIAL LINE, A DISTANCE OF 121.80 FEET TO
THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF
1090.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 70° 50" 28" W, A DISTANCE OF 669.31 FEET: THENCE
ALONG THE ARC OF SAIB CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 680.30 FEET TO A POINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE S 88" 43" 15" W, A DISTANCE OF 416.21 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1500.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
83" 55' 58" W, A DISTANCE Of 250.41 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT,
A DISTANCE OF 250.70 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE N 10" 51° 19% W, ALONG A
RADIAL LINE, A DISTANCE OF 314.09 FEET; THENCE N 27° 34’ 01" E, A DISTANCE OF 1799.57 FEET:
THENCE N Q0* 08" 48" W, A DISTANCE OF 678.08 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 17; THENCE N B9 51' 12" E, ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY,
A DISTANCE OF 374.34 FEET TO THE PQINT OF BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE PARCEL CONTAINING 88.03 ACRES. MORE OR LESS

Agron J. Murphy, PSM Dote
Flarido Professionol Surveyor & Mapper No. 6768
for Homilton Engineering and Surveying, Inc.
Certificate of Authorizotion No. LB7013

e HAMILTON RIVERSTONE — POD 2

m ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, INC, POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA

S ¥ ] S—— [REC VT OGE VOO NOTSER SEATE TN
BIOP R IRPH STREEE. T ot e SR f20-23  lp3sso000 AS SHOWN  lo2/07/2018

ST [




EXHIBIT "

1000
o
8
500 .
8 s. 9 -
_.____0 &,
8 > ’ 3
n
0
(= ]
8
[T
5 _ BOUNDARY OF
TONNE. PARK ESTATES | § ( TOWNE PARK CDD
PHASE 28 WA |-
-
' NE PARK ESJXTES
£ i),
7.8 BOUNDARY OF TOWNE PARK COD /I8 s _ 9
3611 N 171 16 UNDARY OF TOWNE PARK COD
8 8
§ RIVERSTONEPHASE 6§ & 6 -3
UNPLATTED LAND RIVERSTONE PMASE 2 &
¥ I g
g | 8
" RIVERSTONE PHASE 1 u
: 2
3 g
18 7|16
10 BOUNDARY OF TOWNE PARK COD 17 16

BOUNDARY OF
TOWNE PARK COD

= TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 24
PIAT BOOX 163, PAGE 47

RIVERSTONE PHASE 3% 4

BOUNDARY OF
TOWNE PARK COD

= TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 28

= RIVERSYONE PHASE 1

—

= RIVERSTONE PHASE 2

18| 17 P 17 )17
19 20 /” BOUNDARY OF 29 20
TOWNE PARK CDD
\jﬁ' = RIVERSIONE PRASE 5 & ¢
2 VHAMILTON TOWNE PARK CDD
A ENGINLERING & SURVEYING, INC, CITY OF LAKELAND, POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA
v— = — = 1] ey [TETTAC L TOR LT -rpt1n 3 172 FEET|
Tavn, FloRbA 35600 LBmows  Fax (o) 50363 |8/ /17-29-23 |03550.0002 A sHowN __Jos/22/2018 | /1







Towne Park
Community Development District

Agreement By and Between the District and
Highland Sumner, LLC, Regarding True-Up as to
Assessment Area 3B Assessments



This instrumenl was prepared by and
upon recording should be returned (o:

Roy Van Wyk, Esy.

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS, P.A.
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT AND HIGHLAND SUMNER, LLC REGARDING
TRUE-UP AS TO ASSESSMENT AREA 3B ASSESSMENTS

THiS TRUE-Upr AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 12" day of
August, 2019, by and between (collectively, the “Parties™):

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being
situated in the City of Lakeland, Polk County, Florida, with a mailing address of
12051 Corporate Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32817 (the “District™), and

HIGHLAND SUMNER, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, the developer and
owner of certain lands within the District, with a mailing address of 346 East
Central Avenue, Lakeland, Florida 33880, and its successors and assigns (the
“Developer™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, tbe District was established by an ordinance adopted by the City Commission
of the City of Lakeland, Florida, pursuant to the Uniform Community Development District Act
of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the “Act”), and is validly existing under the
Conustitution and laws of the State of Florida; and

WHEREAS, the District, pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, is authorized to levy
such taxes, special assessments, fees and other charges as may be necessary in furtherance of the
District's activities and services; and

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of certain lands witbin the District and a developer of
all or portions of the same, which lands are described in Exhibit A (*Assessment Area 38™); and

WHEREAS, the District has adopted an improvement plan to finance the planning, design,
acquisition, construction, and installation of certain mnfrastructure improvements, facilities, and
services, as detailed in the Preliminary Engineer's Report dated November 2014, as amended by
that First Amendment to the Master Engineer's Report dated November 2014, and supplemented
by that Third Supplemental Engineer's Report Phase 3B (Assessment Area 3B) dated July 2019
(together, the “Engineer’s Report”) for the improvements associated with the development of

Riverstone/Assessment Area 33/True-Up Agreement



Assessment Area 3B (the “Assessment Area 3B Project™), attached to this Agreement as
Composite Exhibit B and the estimated costs of the improvements related to Assessment Area 3B
Project is identified therein; and

WHEREAS, the District intends to finance a portion of the Assessment Area 3B Project,
througb the anticipated issuance of its Towne Park Community Development District Special
Assessment Bonds, Series 2019 (Assessment Area 3B Project), in the principal amount of
$5,485,000 (the *“Assessment Area 3B Bonds™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolutions 2019-10, 2019-15 and 2019-__ (the *Assessment
Resolutions™), the District imposed special assessments on Assessment Area 3B (the *Assessment
Area 3B Assessments’) within the District to secure the repayment of tbe Assessment Area 3B
Bonds, including interest thereon; and

WHEREAS, Developer agrees that all developable lands within Assessment Area 3B benefit
from the timely design, construction, or acquisition of the Assessment Area 3B Project; and

WHEREAS, Developer agrees that the Assessment Area 3B Assessments which were
imposed on Assessment Area 3B within the District, have been validly imposed and constitute
valid, legal and binding liens upon Assessment Area 3B, which Assessment Area 3B Assessments
remain unsatisfied; and

WHEREAS, to the extent pernitted by law, Developer waives any defect in notice or
publication or in the proceedings to levy, imposc and collect the Assessment Area 3B Assessments
on Assessment Area 3B within the District; and

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Master Assessmment Methodology, dated March 8,
2018, as supplemented by that Supplemental Assessment Methodology Report, Phase 3B. Series
2019 Bonds, dated July, 2019 (collectively, the “Assessment Report™), provides that as Assessment
Area 3B is platted or re-platted, the allocation of the amounts assessed to and constituting a lien
upon Assessment Area3B within the District would be allocated and calculated based upon certain
density assumptions relating to the number of each type of single-family units to be constructed
on Assessment Area 3B within the District, which assumptions were provided by Developer; and

WHEREAS, Developer intends that Assessment Area 3B within the District will be platted,
planned and developed based on then-existing market conditions, and the actual densities
developed may be at some density less than the densities assumed in the District's Assessment
Report; and

WHEREAS, the District's Assessment Report anticipates a mechanism by which Developer
shall, if required, make certain payments to the District in order to satisfy, in whole or in pait, the
assessments allocated and tbe liens imposed pursuant to the Assessment Resolutions, the amount
of such payments being determined generally by a calculation of the remaining unallocated debt
prior to the recording of any plat or site plan for a parcel or tract, as described in the District’s
Assessment Report (which payments shall collectively be referenced as the “True-Up Payment™);
and

Riverstone/Assessmenl Area 2B/True-Up Agreement



WHEREAS, Developer and the District desire to enter into an agreement to confirm
Developer’s intention and obligation, if required, to make the True-Up Payment related to the
Assessment Area 3B Assessments, sub ject to the terms and conditions contained herein.

NoOw, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants
of the Parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as
follows:

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and correct and by this
reference are incorporated into and ferm a material part of this Agreement.

SECTION 2. COVENANTS.

A. The provisions of this Agreement shall constitute a covenant running with
Assessment Area 3B lands, which lands are described herein in Exhibit A, and shall remain in full
force and effect and be binding upon Developer, itsheirs, legal representatives, estates, successors,
grantees, and assigns until released pursuant to the terms herein.

B. Developer agrees that to the extent Developer fails to timely pay all Assessment
Area 3B Assessments collected by mailed notice of the District, said unpaid Assessment Area 3B
Assessments (including True-Up Payments), may be placed on the tax roll by the District for
collection by the Tax Collector pursuant to section 197.3632, IFlorida Statutes, in any subsequent
year.

SECTION 3.  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REALLOCATION.

A. Assumptions as to the Assessinent Area 3B Assessnients. As of the date of Lhe
execution of this Agreement, Developer has informed the District that Developer intends to plat
Assessment Area 3B into a total of 277 single family lots or 277 Equivalent Residential Units
(“ERUs").

B. Process for Reallocation of Assessments. The Assessment Area 3B Assessments
will be reallocated among Assessment Area 3B as Assessment Area 3B is platted or re-platted
(hereinafter referred to as *“plat” or “platted™). In connection with such platting of Assessment
Area 3B of the District. tbe Assessment Area 3B Assessments imposed on the lands being platted
will be allocated based upon the precise number and type of lots within the area being platted. It
is intended that all the Assessment Area 3B Assessments will be assigned to the 277 lots platted
in Assessment Area 3B. In furtherance thereof, at such time as Assessment Area 3B is to be platted,
Developer covenants that such plat or plats shall be presented to the District. The District shall
allocate the Assessment Area 3B Assessments to the number of lots being platted and the
remaining lands in Assessment Area 3B in accordance with the District’s Assessment Report and
cause such reallocation to be recorded in the District’s Improvement Lien Book.

(i) It is or will be an express condition of the liens established by the
Assessment Resolutions that any and all plats containing any portion of Assessment Area
3B within the District owned by Developer shall be presented to the District for review and
allocation of the Assessment Area 3B Assessments to the lots being platted and the
remaining property within Assessment Area 3B in accordance with the Assessment Report

Riverstone/Assessment Area 38/True-Up Agreerment



(“Reallocation”).  Developer covenants to comply with this requirement for the
Reallocation. The District agrees that no further action by the Board of Supervisors shall
be required. The District’s review of the plats shall be limited solely to the Reallocation
of Assessment Area 3B Assessments and enforcement of the District’s assessment liens.
Nothing herein shall in any way operate to or be construed as providing any other plat and
plan approval or disapproval powers to the District.

(ii)  The purpose of the True-Up calculation is to ensure that the bond debt will
be able tobe assigned toat least 277 platted lots within Assessment Area 3B of the District.
Thus, at the time of platting of any portion of Assessment Area 3B, or any re-platting
thereof, there must be at least 277 platted lots in Assessment Area 3B to assign the bond
debt to. If not, subject to subsection (v) below, the District would require a True-Up
Payment from Developer or the person or entity seeking to file such plat in an amount
sufficient to reduce the remaining bond debt to the actual number of lots platted in
Assessment Area 3B in the par amount per platted lot as set forth in the Assessment Report.

(iii) The True-Up calculation shall be performed at the time any poition of
Assessment Area 3B is platted.

(iv)  Ifat the time the True-Up calculation is performed, itis determined that less
than 277 lots are to be platted within Assessment Area 3B, a True-Up Payment shall
become immediately due and payable. Any such True-Up Payment determined (o be due
by shall be paid in full prior to approval of the plat. Such True-Up Payment shall be in
addition to the regular Assessment Area 3B installment payable for Assessment Area 3B.
The District wil] take all necessary steps to ensure that True-Up Payments are made in a
timely fashion to ensure its debt service obligations are met, and in all cases, Developer
agrees that such payments shall be made in order to ensure the District’s timely payment
of the debt service obligations on the Assessment Area 3B Bonds. The District shall record
all True-Up Payments in its Improvement Lien book. If such True-Up Payment is made at
least 45 days prior to an interest payment date on the Assessment Area 3B Bonds,
Developer sball include accrued interest as part of the True-Up Payment to such interest
payment date. If such True-Up Payment becomes due within 45 days of the next interest
payment date, accrued interest shall be calculated to the next succeeding interest payment
date.

(v) The foregoing is based on the District's understanding with Developer that
at least 277 ERUs will be assigned to Assessment Area 3B, as identified in the Assessment
Report and Engineer’s Report. However, the District agrees that nothing herein prohibits
more or less than the number of ERUs to be assigned to Assessment Area 3B. In the event
Developer plats less than 277 lots within Assessment Area 3B, tbe Developer may either
make a True-Up Payment or leave unassigned Assessment Area 3B Assessments on un-
platted lands within Assessment Area 3B, provided the maximum debt allocation per
developable acre as set forth in the Assessment Resolution is not exceeded. In no event
shall the District collect Assessment Area 3B Assessments pursuant to the Assessment
Resolutions in excess of the tota! debt service related to the Assessment Area 3B Project,
including all costs of financing and interest. The District, however, may collect
Assessment Area 3B Assessments in excess of the annual debt service related to the
Assessment Area 3B Project, including all costs of financing and interest, which shall be

4
Riverstene/Assessment Arca 3B/True-Up Agreement



applied to prepay the Assessment Area 3B Bonds. If the strict application of the True-Up
methodology to any Reallocation for any plat pursuant to this paragraph would result in
Assessment Area 3B Assessments collected in excess of the District's total debt service
obligation for tbe Assessment Area 3B Project, the District agrees to take appropriate
action by resolution to equitably Reallocate the assessments.

SECTION4. ENFORCEMENT. This Agreementis intended to be an additional method of
enforcement of Developer’s obligation to pay the Assessment Area 3B Assessments and to abide
by the requirements of the Reallocation of Assessment Area 3B Assessments, including the
making of the Tiue-Up Payment, if any, as set forth in the Assessment Resolutions. A default by
any Party under this Agreement shall entitle any other Party to all remedies available at law or in
equity, but excluding special, consequential or punitive damages.

SECTIONS. RECOVERY OF COSTS AND FEES. In the event any Party is required to
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the substantially prevailing party,
as determined by the applicable court or other dispute resolution provider. shall be entitled to
recover from the otber(s) all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs
incurred prior to or during any litigation or other dispute resolution and including all fees and costs
incurred in appellate proceedings.

SECTION6. NOTICE. All notices, requests, consents and other communications
hereunder (“Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail,
postage prepaid, by overnight delivery service, or electronic or hand delivered to the Parties, as
follows;

A. If to the District: Towne Park Community Development District
2051 Corporate Boulevard
Orlando, Florida 32817
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to; Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300
Post Office Box 6526
Tallahassee, Florida 32314
Attn: Roy Van Wyk

B. If to Developer: Highland Sumner, LLC

c/oHeath Construction
and Management, LLC
346 East Central A venue
Lakeland, Florida 33880
Attn: Warren K. Heath II

With a copy to: Straughn & Turner, P.A.
255 Magnolia Avenue SW
Lakeland, Florida 33880
Attn: Richard E. Straughn

5

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/ True-Up Agreement



Except as otherwise provided herein, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon actual
delivery at the address or telecopy number set foith herein. 1f mailed as provided above, Notices
shall be deemed delivered on the third business day unless actually received eatlier. Notices hand
delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed
received on the next business day. If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement
would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next
succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays recognized by the United States
government shall not be regarded as business days. Counsel for the Parties may deliver Notice on
behalf of the Parties. Any Party or other person to whom Notices are to he sent or copied may
notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name, address or telecopy number to which
Nolices shall be sent by providing the same on five (S) days written notice to the parties and
addressees set forth herein.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Florida law requires notice to enforce the
collection of any assessments placed on Assessment Area 3B by the District, then the provision of
such notice shall be in lieu of any additional notice required by this Agreement.

SECTION7. ASSIGNMENT.

A, Developer may not assign its duties or obligations under this Agreement except in
accordance with the terms of Section 7(C) below. This Agreement shall constitute a covenant
sunning with title to all or any portion of Assessment Area 3B, binding upon Developer and its
successors and assigns including, without limitation, any purchaser and its successors and assigns
as to Assessment Area 3B or portions thereof, and any transferee of any portion of Assessment
Area 3B, but shall not be binding upon transferees permitted by Sections 7(B)(i), (ii) or (ii1) below.

B. No portion of Assessment Area 3B may be transferred to any third party without
complying with the terms of Section 7(C) below, other than:

(1) Platted and fully-developed lots to homebuilders restricted from re-platting.

(i1) Platted and fully-developed lots to end users.

(i11)  Portions of Assessment Area 3B exempt from debt special assessments or
to be dedicated to the City, County, the District, or other governmental agencies.

Any transfer of any portion of Assessment Area 3B pursuant to subsections (i), (ii) or (iii) of this
Section 7(B), shall constitute an automatic release of such portion of Assessment Area 3B from
the scope and effect of this Agreement.

C. Developer shall not transfer any portion of Assessment Area 3B to any third party,
except as permitted by Sections 7(B)(i), (i1) or (i) above, without satisfying the following
conditions (“Transfer Conditions’):

(1) delivering a recorded copy of this Agreement to such third party; and

Riverstone/Assessment Area 38/True-Up Agreement



(i) satisfying any True-Up Payment that results from a True-Up analysis that
will be performed by the District Manager prior and as a condition to such
transfer.

Any transfer that is consummated pursuant to this Section 7(C) shall operate as a release of
Developer from its obligations under this Agreement as to such portion of Assessment Area 3B
only arising from and after the date of such transler and satisfaction of all of the Transfer
Conditions including payment of any True-Up Payment due pursuant to subsection 7(C)(ii) above,
and the transferee shall be deemed to have assumed Developer’s obligations in accordance
herewith and shall be deemed the “Developer” from and after such transfer for all purposes as to
such portion of Assessment Areu 3B so transferred.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement
between the Parties regarding the sub ject matter discussed herein and may be modified in writing
only by the mutual agreement of all Parties. This Agreement may not be amended without the
prior written consent of the Trustee on behalf and acting at the direction of tle bondholders owning
more than 50% of the aggregate principal amount of the applicable Assessment Area 3B Bonds
then outstanding with regard to amendments having a material effect on the District’s ability to
pay debt service on the Assessment Area 3B Bonds.

SECTIONY9. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the District and Developer, both the District and
Developer have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and Developer
have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 10. TERMINATION. This Agreement shall continue in effect until it is rescinded
in writing by the mutual assent of each Party, provided, however, that this Agreement and the
covenants contained herein may not be terminated or released prior to platting and development
of all Assessment Area 3B without the prior written consent of the Trustee on behalf and acting at
the direction of bondholders owning more than 50% of the aggregate principal amount of the
applicable Assessment Area 3B Bonds then outstanding with regard to amendments having a
material effect on the District’s ability to pay debt service on the Assessment Area 3B Bonds.

SECTION11. NEGOTIATION AT ARM’'S LENGTH. This Agreement has been negotiated
fully between the Parties as an arm’s length transaction. The Parties participated fully in the
preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a dispute
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, The Parties are deemed to have
drafted, chosen and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted or
construed against either Party.

SECTION 12. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of
the District and Developer and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for
the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Except as provided in the
immediately succeeding sentence, nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or
shall be construed to confer upon any person or entity other than the District and Developer any
right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any provisions or conditions of

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/True-Up Agreement



this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants and conditions contained in
this Agreement shall inure (o the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and
Developer and their respective representatives, successors and assigns. Notwithstanding anything
herein to the contrary, the Trustee for the Assessment Area 3B Bonds, on behalf of the owners of
the Assessment Area 3B Bonds, shall be adirect third-party beneficiary of the terms and conditions
of this Agreement and shall be entitled to enforce Developer’s obligations hereunder. The Trustee
shall not be deemed to have assumed any obligations hereunder.

SECTION 13. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory
limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida
Legislature in section 768.28, Florida Stututes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would
otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.

SECTION 14. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the taws of the State
of Florida. Each Party consents that the exclusive venue for any litigation arising out of or related
to this Agreement shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, in and for Polk County, Florida.

SECTION 15. PuBLIC RECORDS. Developer understands and agrees that all documents
of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records and
may require treatment as such in accordance with Florida law.

SECTION 16. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS. This instrument may be executed in any
number of counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original,
and such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and
acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single
copy of this document to physically form one document.

SECTION 17. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining

portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

SECTION 18. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall become effective after execution
by the Parties hereto on the date reflected above.

[Remainder of this page left intentionally blank]

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Truc-Up Agreement



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer and District have caused this Agreement to be executed
and delivered on the day and year first written above.

WITNESSES: HIGHLAND SUMNER, LLC,
a Florida limited hability company
By: Heath Construction and
Management, LLC.
Its: Manager

Warren K. Heath Il, Manager

[Print Name]

[Print Name]

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of a2 DED,
by Warren K. Heath Il, as Manager of Heath Construction and Management, LLC, Manager of
Highland Sumner, LLC. He is personally known to me or has produced
(type of identification) as identificalion.

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA

(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of
Notary Public)

Riverstone/Assessment Area 38/True-Up Agreement



WITNESSES: TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
{Print Name]) Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
(Print Name]
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 1)L N
PR o , as Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors of the Towne Park Community
Development  District. He is personally known to me or has produced
e (type of identification) as identification.
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA
(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of
Notary Public)
Exhibit A: Legal Description of Assessment Area 3B
Composite Exhibit B: Preliminary Engineer's Report dated November 2014, as amended

by that First Amendment to the Master Engineer's Report dated
November 2014, and supplemented by that Third Supplemental
Engineer's Report Phase 3B (Assessment Area 3B) dated July 2019

Riverstone/Asscssment Area 3B/True-Up Agreement



EXIIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ASSESSMENT AREA 3B

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/True-Up Agrecement



@_

EXHIBIT “A”
DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT LANDS, PHASE 3B

LECAL DESCRIPTION:

A PARCEL OF tANO LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 29 SOUTH. RANGE 23 EAST. £OLK COUNTY,
Fi.ORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

fOR A POINT OF BEGINNING COMMEMCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
SAID SECVION 17 AND PROCEED N B9' 52 43" £, ALONG THE NORIM BOUNDARY THEREOF, A
DISTANCE OF 1527.47 FEET: THENCE S 00" 12' 15° E, LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF
27053 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVAIURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWBETERLY, HAVING A RADIUS
OF 380.00 FEET AND A CHORD WMICH BEARS S 2(r 26’ 10" W, A OISTANCE OF 274.95 FEET;
THENCE ALONG YHE ARC OF SAXD CURVE 7O THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 280.99 FFET TO A ROINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE S 41" 04" 35" W. A DISTANCE OF 650.38 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE Of A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUIHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2000.00 FEET ANO A CHORO WHICH BEARS S
33 48' 01" W, A DISTANCE OF 506.60 FEET; MENCE ALONG THE ARC Of SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT,
A DISTANCE Of 507.97 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 28° 31° 27" W. A DISTANCE OF
179.05 FEET: THENCE N 80° 32° 49" W, A DISTANCE OF 31507 FEET; THENCE S 22° 48" 34" W, A
DIiSTANCE OF 206.65 FEET; THENCE S 45° 06" 09” E, A DISTANCE OF 49.06 FEET, THENCE S 13 05'
43" E. A DISTANCE OF 50.97 FEET: THENCE S 0F 42' 74° E, A DISTANCE OF 6032 FEET: THENCE S
10" 30° 46™ €. A DISTANCE OF 4322 FEET; THENCE S 19~ 48° 43" v/, A DISTANCE OF 69.86 FEET;
THENCE N 72° 40' 08° W. A DISTANCE OF 28.38 FEET; THENCE S 38" 37' 00° W. A DISTANCE OF
14,20 FEET: THENCE S 63 05' 43" W, A DISTANCE OF 46.40 FTET; THENCE S B2' 05 46" W, A
DISTANCE OF 94.0! FEET; THENCE S 18" 32" 43" E, A DISTANCE OF 46.39 FEEV; THENCE S 66° 16°
22" W, A DISTANCE OF 110.00 FEET TO TME BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHWESIERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 345.00 FEET AND A CHORO WHICH BEARS S 8° 01" 14" L A
DISIANCE OF 68.81 FEET, THENCE ALONG TISE ARC OF SAI0 CURVE TO THE RIGHI. A DISTANCE OF
68.72 FEEY TO TRE POINT OF CLRVATURE OF A COMPOUND CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY. HAVING
A RAOIUS OF 75.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICM B€ARS S 11" 18° 28" W, A DISTANCE OF 80.02 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAIO CURVE 10 THE RIGHT. A OISTANCE OF 63.75 FEET TO THE END OF
SAID CURVE, THENCE S 55° G8' 14" E, ALONG A NOW~RADIAL LINE, A DISYANCE OF 121.80 FEEi TO
THE BEGINMING OF A NON-~TANGENTIAL. CURVE CONCAVE. NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADWS OF
1050.00 FEET AND A CHORD WIHICH BEARS S 70° 50° 28" W, A DISTANCL OF 669.31 FEEY; THENCE
A_ONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHMY, A DISTANCE OF 680.30 FEET TO A POINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE S 88' 43" 15* W, A DISTANCE OF 416 21 FEET 70 A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RANIUS OF (500.00 FEET ANO A CHORD WHICH BEARS S
83 55 58" W. A DISTANCE OF 250.41 FEET, THENCE ALONC THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT,
A DISTANCE OF 250.70 FEET TO THE END OF SalD CURVE: THENCE N 10° %%’ 19° W, ALONG A
RADIAL LINE, A DISTANCE OF 314.09 FEET, TUENCE N 27 34" 03" E. A DISTANCE OF 1799.57 FZET,
THENCE N 00' 08’ 48" w, A DISTANCE OF €7B.08 FEET 70 A POINT ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF
THE NORTHWEST t/4 OF SAJ0 SECTION 17: THENGE N 89’ 5% 392° £, ALONG SAID NORIt BOUNDARY.
A DISTANCE OF 374.34 FEET YO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,

TelE ABOVE PARCEL CONYAINING 88.03 ACRES, MORE OR LESS

o



O O G T A O O o e omom o e o m 3= e



Towne Park
Community Development District

Agreement By and Between the District and
Highland Sumner, LLC, Regarding the Completion
of Certain Improvements



AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE
TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND
HIGHLAND SUMNER, LLC, REGARDING THE
COMPLETION OF CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 12'" day of August, 2019,
by and between (collectively, the “Parties™):

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being
situated in the City of Lakeland, Polk County, Florida, with a mailing address of
c/o PFM Group Consulting LLC, 12051 Corporate Boulevard, Orlando, Florida
32817 (the “District™), and

HIGHI.AND SUMNER, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, the developer and
owner of certain lands within the District, with a mailing address of 346 East
Central Avenue, Lakeland, Florida 33880, and its successors and assigns (the
“Developer™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was established by an ordinance adopted by the City Commission
of the City of Lakeland, Florida, pursuant to the Uniform Community Development District Act
of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the *“Act™) and is validly existing under the
Constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to issue bonds for the purpose, among others, of
planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure, including
stormwater management facilities, water and sewer utilities, roadways, irrigation, off-site
improvements, landscape and hardscape, street lighting, parks and recreation, and other
infrastructure within or without the boundaries of the District; and

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner and developer of a portion of the lands within the
District (“Assessment Area 3B™), described in Exhibit A, which will be subject to the proposed
issuance of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds, defined herein; and

WHEREAS, the District has adopted an improvement plan to finance the planning, design,
acquisition, construction, and installation of certain infrastructure improvements, facilities, and
services as described in the Preliminary Engineer's Report dated November 2014, as amended by
that First Amendment to the Master Engineer’s Report dated November 2014. and supplemented
by that Third Supplemental Engineer’s Report Phase 3B (Assessment Area 3B) dated July 2019
(together, the “Engineer’s Report™), attached to this Agreement as Composite Exhihit B
(“Improvements”), and the estimated costs of the Improvements, described as “Phase 3B” in the
Engineer’s Report (the “Assessment Area 3B Project™), are identified therein; and

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Complction Agreement



WHEREAS, the District has imposed special assessments on Assessment Area 3B within
the District (the “Assessment Area 3B Assessments™), to secure financing for a peortion of the
construction of the Assessment Area 3B Project described in Composite Exhibit B, and has
validated $50,000,000 in special assessment bonds to fund the planning, design, pernitting,
construction and/or acquisition of Improvements including a portion of the Assessment Area 3B
Project; and

WHEREAS, the District intends to finance all or a portion of the Assessment Area 3B
Project through the anticipated issuance of its Towne Park Community Development District
Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2019 (Assessment Area 3B Project), in the principal amount of
$5.485.000 (the “Assessment Area 3B Bonds”"); and

WHEREAS, Developer has requested that the District limit the amount of Assessment Area
3B Assessments imposed upon Assessment Area 3B by allowing the Developer to directly fund a
pertion of the Assessment Area 3B Project; and

WHEREAS, Developer has agreed to complete or cause funds to be provided to the District
to complete the portion of the Assessment Area 3B Project, as set forth in the Engineer’s Report,
not funded by proceeds of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds; and

WHEREAS, in consideration of the District limiting the amount of Assessment Area 3B
Assessments on Assessment Area 3B, Developer has requested that the District enter into this
Agreement and to provide the terms and conditions under which the Assessment Area 3B Project
shall be completed; and

WHEREAS, in order to ensure that the Assessment Area 3B Project is completed and
funding is available in a timely manner to provide for its completion, Developer and the District
hereby agree that the District will be obligated to issue no more than $5,485,000 in Assessment
Area 3B Bonds to fund the Assessment Area 3B Project and Developer will complete or will
make provision for additional funds that may be needed in the future for the completion of the
Assessment Area 3B Project, over and above the amount of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds
including, but not limited to, all administrative, legal, warranty, engineering, permitting or other
related soft costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants
of the Parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as
follows:

1, INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and correct and
by this relerence are incorporated herein and form a material part of this Agreement.

2 COMPLETION OF IMPROVEMENTS. Developer and the District agree and
acknowledge that the District’s proposed Assessment Area 3B Bonds will provide only a portion
of the funds necessary to complete the Assessment Area 3B Project. Therefore, Developer hereby
agrees to complete tbe Assessment Area 3B Project or cause such funds to be provided to the

Riverstone/Assessment Arca 3B/Completion Agreement



District in an amount sufficient to allow the District to complete those portions of the Assessment
Area 3B Project which may remain unfunded including, but not limited to, all administrative,
legal, warranty, engineering, permitting or other related soft costs (collectively, the “Remaining
Improvements™), whether pursuant to existing contracts, including change srders thereto, or future
contracts.

(a)  Subject to Existing Contract. When all or any portion of the Remaining
Lmprovements are subject to an existing District contract, the Developer shall provide
funds directly to the District in an amount sufficient to complete the Remaining
Improvements pursuant to such contract, including change orders thereto.

(b) Not Subject to Existing Contract. When any portion of the Remuining
Improvements is not the subject of an existing District contract, the Developer may choose
to complete, cause to be completed, or provide funds to the District in an amount sufficient
to allow the District to complete or cause to be completed, those Remaining
Improvements. subject to a formal determination by the District that the option selected by
the Developer will not materially and adversely impact the District.

Nothing herein shall cause or be construed to require the District to issue additional bonds or
indebtedness to provide funds for any portion of the Remaining Improvements. The Parties
hereby acknowledge and agree that the District’s execution of this Agreement constitutes the
manner and means by which any and all portions of the Remaining Improvements are to be
funded and completed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the Developer, either jointly
or individually, fails to timely provide funds or to complete the Remaining Improvements, the
District may exercise its authority to issue additional bonds, notes or similar obligations, and
certify for collection additional special assessments in an amount sufficient to complete the
Remaining Improvements.

3. OTHER CONDITIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS.

(a) The District and Developer agree and acknowledge that the exact location,
size, configuration, and composition of the Assessment Area 3B Project may change from
that described in the Engineer’s Report depending upon final design of the development,
permitting or other regulatory requirements over time, or other factors. Material changes
to the Assessment Area 3B Project shall be made by a written amendment to the
Engineer’s Report, which shall include an estimate of the cost of the changes. Material
changes to the Assessment Area 3B Project shall require the prior written consent of the
Trustee acting on behalf and at the direction of the bondholders owning more than 50% of
an aggregate principal amount of the applicable Assessment Area 3B Bonds then
outstanding.

{(b)  The District and Developer acknowledge and agree that the provision of
funds under this Agreement or the completion of the Remaining Improvements will be
considered a contribution in lieu of the imposition of special assessments upon
Assessment Area 3B benefitted by the Assessment Area 3B Project.

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Completion Agreement



(c) (1) The Developer agrees that all developable lands within Assessment
Area 3B benefit froin the timely design, construction, or acquisition of the
Assessment Area 3B Project.

(i) Developer agrees that the Assessment Area 3B Assessments which
were imposed on Assessment Area 3B within the Distiict, have been validly
imposed and constitute valid, legal and binding liens upon Assessment Area 3B,
which Assessment Area 3B Assessments remain unsatisfied.

(d)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the
payment or performance by Developer of its obligations hereunder are expressly sub ject
to, dependent and conditioned upon (a) the issuance of $5,485,000 par amount of
Assessment Area 3B Bonds and use of the proceeds thereof to fund a portion of the
Assessment Area 3B Project, and (b’) the scope, configuration, size and/or composition of
the Assessment Area 3B Project not materially changing without the consent of Developer.
Such consent is not necessary, and Developer must meet the completion obligations. or
cause them to be met, when the $cope, configuration, size and/or composition of the
Assessment Area 3B Project is materially changed in response to a requirement imposed
by a regulatory agency.

4. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. A default
by any Party under this Agreement shall entitle the others to all remedies available at law or in
equity. which may include, but not be limited to. the right of actual damages and/or specific
performance, but excluding special, consequential or punitive damages. Except as expressly
otherwise provided in this Agreement, the District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its
rights under this Agreement against any interfering third party. Except as expressly otherwise
provided in this Agreement, nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the
District’s right to protect its rights under this Agreement from interference by a third party.

S. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. If any Party is required to enforce this
Agreement by courl proceedings or otherwise, then the Parties agree that the substantially
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other(s) all fees and costs incurred, including
reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, altemative dispufe resolution, or appellate
proceedings.

6. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by all Parties hereto,
but only with the written consent of the Trustee acting at the direction of the bondholders owning
more than 50% of an aggregate principal amount of the Assessment Area 3B Bonds then
outstanding, with respect to amendments having a material effect on the District’s ability to pay
debt service on the Assessment Area 3B Bonds.

£ AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by
the appropriate body or official of tbe District and Developer, both the District and Developer

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Complelion Agreeneni



have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and Developer have full
power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

8. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this
Agreement ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail,
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows:

(a) If to the District: Towne Park Community Development
District
12051 Corporate Boulevard
Orlando, Florida 32817
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.
1 19 South Monroe Street. Suite 300
Post Office Box 6526
Tallahassee, Florida 32314
Attn: Roy Van Wyk

(b) If to Developer: Highland Sumner, LLC
c/o Heath Construction
and Management, LLC.
346 East Central Avenue
Lakeland, Florida 33880
Attn: Warren K. Heath II

With a copy to: Straughn & Turner, P.A.
255 Magnolia Avenue SW
Lakeland, Florida 33880
Attn: Richard E. Straughn

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day,
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.
Counsel for each Party may deliver Notice on behalf of such Party. Any Party or other person to
whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change
in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (S) days written
notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein.

9. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully

between the District and Developer as an arm’s length transaction. Both Parties participated fully
in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a dispute

Riverstone/Assessment Areid 3B3/Completion Agreement



concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are deemed to have
drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted or
construed against either Party.

10.  THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 10
with respect to Trustee, this Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties and no right or cause
of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party
to this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 10 with respect to Trustee,
nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon
any person or entity other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of
this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions,
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole
benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and Developer and the respective representatives,
successors, and assigns of each. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Trustee for
the Assessment Area 3B Bonds, shall be a direct third-party beneficiary of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and shall be entitled to enforce the obligations of Developer
hereunder. The Trustee shall not be deemed to have assumed any obligations hereunder.

11. ASSIGNMENT. No Party hereto may assign this Agreement or any monies 0
become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the other Parties and the Trustee
acting on behalf and at the direction of the bondholders owning more than 50% of an aggregate
principal amount of the applicable Assessment Area 3B Bonds then outstanding.

12.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions contained
herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.
Each party consents that the exclusive venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this
Agreement shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, in and for Polk County, Florida.

13.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall be effective upon execution by all Parties
hereto.

14. PuBLiC RECORDS. Developer understands and agrees that all documents of any
kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records and treated
as such in accordance with Florida law.

15.  SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions
of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining poitions of this
Agreement, or any part of this Agreement nol held to be invalid or unenforceable.

16.  LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall
be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory
limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida
Iegislature in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would
otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.

Riverstone/Asscssment Area 3B/Compielion Agreement



17.  READINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this Agreemeni
are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction of any of the
provisions of this Agreement.

18.  COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterpatts,
each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts
together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment pages,
if any. may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to
physically lorm one document,

(Remainder of this page left intentionally blank)

Riverstone/Assessmenl Area 3B/Complciion Agrecment



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Agreement on the day and year first

written above.

ATTEST:

TOWNE PARK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Secretary/Assistant Secretary

WITNESS:

D. Joel Adams
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

HIGHLAND SUMNER LILC,
a Florida limited liability company
By: Heath Construction and
Management, L.LL.C

[ts: Manager

Warren K. (“Rennie™) Heath [I, Manager

[Print Name]

Exhibit A:
Composite Exhibit B:

Legal Description of Assessment Area 3B

Preliminary Engineer's Report dated November 2014, as amended
by that First Amendment to the Muster Engineer’s Report dated
November 2014, and supplemented by that Third Supplementul
Engineer's Report Phase 3B (Assessment Area 3B} dated July 2019
(together, the “Engineer’s Report™)

Riverstone/Asscssmenl Area 3B/Completion Agreement



EXHIBIT A
Legal Descriptien of Assessment Area 3B

Riverstone/Assessment Area 3B/Completion Agreement



‘I



Towne Park
Community Development District

Bids for Phase 3 and Phase 4 Site Work
Construction Services

(provided under separate cover)






Towne Park
Community Development District

Floralawn Phase 2B Landscape Maintenance
Proposal



Ora lawn TR Sy Crapbee Kol SO3 6O 1o
Ladecland, [Tovtda 33804 ROF) Goi-A0L1IS |

Premier Lawn & Pest www . floralawn.com

Landscape Maintenance Proposal
Town Park II Addendum

July 19,2019
Town Park II

Lakeland, FL. 3381 (

We sincerely appteciate the opportunity to propose bow FloraLawn can help enhance the quality of your landscape.
Our proposal includes integrating a custom maintenance plan to meet the needs and demands of your property
while considering service expectations and community budget.

We hereby propose the following for your review:

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE FOR COMMON GROUNDS

Service Price Per Month Price Per Year

Landscape Maintenance $2,275 $27,300

Fomp Manenanee | Well Service & Manrenance | brenior Pest Conteol | Landscape Laghitag | Fouatams




TURF CARE

Mowing

Trmminsg

Edging

Landscape Maintenance Program
Scope of Services

Rotaty lawn mowers will be used with sufficient peiwer te leave a neat, cean, and uncluttered appearanee 42 times per calendar
year (logatam) and 42 times xer calendar year (Buhia) depending o growing season and condifions, 11 is anticipated thar
mowing serviees shall be provided weekdy during the growing season April thtough October and every uther week during the

non-growing scason or as needed Navember through Macch

Bahia lake and pond banks will be mowed 24 times per year consistenr with 3 times per moath Alay through October and 1 time
per month or as needed November through Apal,

"I'uef areas inaccesstble to mowers, areas adjacent to buildings, trees, fences, ete. will be controlied by 4 steing trimmer. Whien
string trimming, a continuous cutring height wil be maintined to prevenr scalping.

All tusf edges of walks, curbs, and ddveways shall be perfornned every mowing (42 times per year), A soft edge of all bed arcas
will be performed cvery oiher mowing (21 times per year), A power edirer will be used for this purpose. A string teimmer may
b used only inarcas nut accessible to a pawee edger.

TREE, SHRUB, AND GROUNDCOVER CARE

Prunumg

Weeding

IRRIGATION

{verview

Inspections

Repairs:

Al shrubs and trees (up to 10 feet) shall be pruned and shaped a4 maximum of 10 times peryear ta ensure the following:

e ANamtaiu all sidewalks to eliminate any overbangiog brasiches ur foliage which abstructs and/or binders pedestzian or
motnr Lraflic.

® Retain the individual plant's natural form and prunce to-elipinate branches which are rubbiog agamst walls and roof's.

The cemaval of dead, diseased, or injured branches and palms wi'll be pecformed as needed

® (round covers and vines can maintain a neat and uniform appearance.

Weeds will be cemoved feam all plane, teee, and flower bueds 18 dines per year. This incorporates 2 times pur month during the
growing scasonand 1 ime per month during the nongrowing season on an as-needed basis, Manual hand pulling and chemical
herbicides will be used as control methnds.

At the commencement of the contract. we will perform a complete iengation cvaluation aud furnish the customer with a
summary of cach clock and zone operation. Floral awn will submit reccammendaticos for all necessary repairs and
tmprovemenrs: to the system with an itembiced cosr for eompleting the proposed work. Florafawn is not responsible for turf or
planr loss due to water testrictions sct by qty, county, and/or water management distdet ordinances.

Albicrigation zones shall be inspected 1 time per month to insure proper operation. All zones will be tumed on to check for
proper coverage and any broken irrigatiom compencnrs. Management shall receive a monitoring report after cach manthly
wrigation inspection,

Any repairs that have been caused by FloraLawn will be repaired at no cast. Al repais to the ieciganon system other than those
caused by FloraLawn will be pecformed on i ime and mategials basis with the hourly labor rate being $60.00 per hour, TFaults
aad failures of the ircigation system communicated to FloraLawn will be addressed in a fair and responsible ame period. but
I"loralswn cannot guarintee a specifie time response.

MISCELLANEOQOUS

Clearellp

All nonturf areas will be cleaned with a backpack or street blower to remove debsis created by landscaping pracess. All wash
shall be picked up throughout the common areas before cach mowing 42 times per year. Construction debeds or simiar trash is
not included. Trash shall be disposed of offsite.

OPTIONAL ITEMS & ADDITIONAL SERVICES

¢ Landscape design & installation ® Sodding and/or Seeding

Pomp Maenance | Well Service & Mamrmenance | Interior Pest Coniol | ].'.l'lh]'-t.,l]‘".' Lightung | Pountams



® Annual flower bed desipgt & rstallation ® Mulchung

® Thin & prunc trees over 10" in heiglu ® Prunc Palms over 19" of clear trunk

® New plant installation ® | eaf cleanup

® Purap Maintcnance ® ['ump repair & instatlation
COMPENSATION

FloraLawn agrees to provide all of the above services for an annual fee of $27,300.00 to be patd in monthly fecs of
2,275.00 for the landscape maintenance of common areas. An invoice will be delivered the first week of the
current month's service. It is agreed that the invoice will be paid within 30 days of submittal to avoid a finance
charge of 1.5% per mionth (periodic rate) of the unpaid balance uatil paid.

CONDITIONS

This proposal is intended for an mitial term of 12 moaths (1 year) with an antiapated start date of TBD and wall
reman in effiect after inital terin untl caneelled by either party.

Pompr Maenanee | Wl Service & Matenance | Tnievior Dest Coniol { andseupe Lighriog | Founkiuts



o et PUPE

Bt 0y e v = T T

.xx. ..‘
Yavae 3acat




PHSTIGIEINGD  velediZiiioen

B oy

3 e TR ST RS TS T
Bl | thsmmunaas

e mﬂwlh. - "

pilii

ln|mim

1

|

v 3 et
RETE b T B i A
| . LIAHS LAY ANV AEVANNOE
ggaﬁ _ VMY ANTOD Yi0d ThY 0N | D ALC 1SYE ST AENYN THLMOS 62 <EHMC. 0 HOUWIIT MOLD DWAT NNEADETS Y

H? SYHd SILVISE MAVd INMOL




a0y eled PHSTIEIERSD  arebady wocn

| T u" L
| ‘:"i

liinlgln!-;ﬂ!] i

siimz«ms

4

SR

MATOH LNE

TOWNE PAIK‘GI&STATES PHASE 2B

& SURDIVISION LYiiG WTHIR JSEMOR & Toee

SHEET Y

MWATOH LINE

ENGERETRNG & SUAVE (S, NC




v gebg

BIGTLEIOZINID ge0RLZs | n00g

TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 2_!

& LUBCTWSIGN LYHG wTrid SECTION 2, TOWNEIOF

Bk 118 ruce 5O

25 SOUTH. RANGE 23 EAST, O~

MATCHUNE

HETS e e

"

1

L EJ!I::

r;! sl L
E‘tg ﬁﬂuﬂ%

un&!;ﬁ

H ON
ERGREERING & FUPVEWNC, NC

-
® du0n 3301
e —

PO LUTED
-
Fred
s




fppsbed

:‘;Jﬁ m PAGL 5J,—

POLK COUNTY, FiRILA,
P et e R et B

TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 2B

A SUSIHMES: LIHG #THED SESTION B TCWRMIE WY 39 50UT), RANCE 23 TAST, QTy OF LARELMD,

SHEEY 3

WOt L

i

T 1| fiiii
ii'-iiﬁig;'\iﬂt! i
'-i]; Era !ma-ﬂ
HehTananngs ﬂai;_:-.'ﬁ.“-_-‘uj
= O ey

e TR Dl

Z
o
=
pd
oy
2
<
<

CHUNEERNG & SURVETWE, &

g it




49 L 50eg

PESTIOIOZINGD  20%0ealjung

TNy, FLOBIA,

TOWNE PARK ESTATES PHASE 2B

A SUBMWRIOY LMING WTHI STTTION 8, TOWNSHE 39 FOUTH, FANGE 23 EatT, CITr GF LANELANE. Poia

e i
Eggg?!i .
fi bl
155;355%;'*'; i

saerraring

am

WAt M ST

Nll'lﬂ'\;-‘
-
s

e

a“_éag:

%-_

L

FIOCT RATARD WaRN{NG

S
L

» WV 4 N
—as mm— ¥ g
BUTECE,
.

17‘|n

INC.
nn
-

33

Lo il

g 3
E }
2 ";




TESTIBIOZENGD  svOedizioel

/00 o0ud

| . -
[mma i |
Cma [ e e ]+
R Eid Rl it
e | Tmwt | s e
O R - -
asin | was T ovmm | s mmss
‘ani | | v e
Sawa | em Avw ey
e e
W | s = | -] w———
T

e

f

€5 P _ YOUOU ALWREE WA TNYTIVT S0 AU USYD OF G0NVE WINOS 52 dWSHMOL 6 NODUTIE MLl ST NOSA0ST v
il H7 IASYHd SILVIST ¥AVd INMOL

4Nt e LR ety SO YA AP
- "“ = rr - e T bty W e
~mages § P T e
P I E L, s N 'SHUIAENS T ONRCOIONS
- L G o SR S R R R IIN e
T L fhhecc= S b A 44 cmivema
G-‘.LEF.H- - FEIOR
RIS .
e R T P S =







Towne Park
Community Development District

Payment Authorization No. 111



TOWNE PARK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Payment Authorization #111

71312019
Item Payee Invoice Number General
No. Fund
1 Bright House Networks
Internet service for clubhouse - 2019.7 077420101062519 3 7498
2 Floralawn
Monthly Lawn Maintenance - 2019.7 85760 $ 2,260.00
Pest Control/Interior - 2019.7 $ 75.00
Fertilization Program - St. Augustine Sod $ 135.00
Fertilization - Shrub - 2019.7 3 34.00
Monthly Irrigation System Checks $ 120.00
Pest Control/Ant treatment -Mailbox area - 2019.7 $ 200.00
3 Grunit
Pool Service & Maintenance- June 2019 1218 $ 1,350.00
4 Hopping Green & Sams
Legal Services through 05.31.2019 108311 $ 3,256.00
5 The Lake Dr's
Monthiy Water Management Service 444530 $ 68500
TOTAL $ 8,189.98

-

b

Chain%Von



Spectrum

BUSINESS

June 25, 2019
Invoice Number: 077420101082519
Account Number:  0050774201.01

Securlly Code: 5038
Sewvice At; 3883 WHITE BIS RD

LAKELAND, FL 33803 SPECTRUM BUSINESS NEWS
Contact Us

Vis!t us al Spectrumbusiness.nel
Or, call us at 1-877-824-6249

ot o 078

Summary /"

Pravious Balance 7498
Paymeits Recelvad - Thank You ~-74.98
Remaining Balance $0.00
Speclrum Business™ Interns! 74.98
Current Chargses - $74.98
Total Due by 07/11/19 $74.98

Thank you for choosing Spectrum Business.
We appreciate your prompt payment and value you as a

customer,
June 25, 2019
S Uet'lfUﬂib TOWNE PARK I! CDD
[ BU'SINESS involce Number. 077420101062519
Account Numbaer: 0050774201-01
4145 S. Fakenburg Rd Rlverview, Fl. 33578-8662 Service At; 3883 WHITE 1B!S RD
7135 1810 NORP 26062562619 MNNNNY 01 001781 0005 LAKELAND, FL 33803
TOWNE PARK | COD ‘Total Due by 07/11/19 ~ $7498
1251 CORPORATE BLVD Amount you are anclosing $

ORLANDO FL 32817-1450

""'"h'.l""'" 'I"llllll'll'tlllI'""'l‘"ll |||||||l'r'|" Pleasn Romit Payment To:
BRIGHT HOUSE NETWORKS
PO BOX 790430
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63178-0460

LT R TR I B R TTTRT

]

0001100100507 742010L69007494



P.O. Box 91597 Invoice
i ﬂ Ord lawn Lakelan’t;, FL 33804 -

Premier Lawn & Pest Date involced
71/2019 85760
8l To
Towne Pack CDD
12051 Corporate Blvd
Orlando, FL 32817
P.O.No, Terma Projact
Duc on seceipt
Quantily Descrplion Rate Amount
t | Monthly Lawn maintenance 3020 S Floride Ave . Lekeland, Tl 2,260.00 2,260.00
33801
1| Inserior pest cantrol 75.00 75.00
1| Lawn fartilization progrsm for St. Augustine Sod 135.00 135.00
1| Sheub fortlization grogream 34,00| 34,00
1| Menthly irigation eystem cheoks 120.00 120.00
1| Mailbox area ant treermenie - sdded additional sq ft for ent 200.00 200.00

trealnem
Billing For July2019

Thank you for your businese,
Total $2,824,00

Phone # Fax# Wab Sita

Balance Due $2.824.00

863-668-0494 863.668-0495 www.(oralawn.com




Grunit Pool Service

Invoice

485-5 Distribution Ct T e d
= N Unit 2
PR Orlando. FL 32822 12019 1218
888-390-0194 info@grunit.com
www.grunit.com
| { 1;_.
| B To Servics To
Town Pork Estates CDD Towa Perk Eslalcs 1
Moaica Sutera
Bethany Femgrisen
Terms Project
Duc on receipt
Quantity Deecription Price Each Amount
1 Pool Service & Mointenance _650‘00 1.350.0-. oy
Make all checks payable to Grunit Pool Service. Subtotal 51,350.00
Invoices due in 30 days.
Overdue acconts sub ject to a service charge of 2% per month. Sales Tax (6.5%) su00
Total $1,350.00




Hopping Green & Sams
Altomays and Counselors
118 S. MonoeStresi, Ste. 300
P.Q, Bex 6526

Tallarasses, FL 32014
850.2227500

==z=s=========c=szzsszss=nscees==c== STATEMENT ====sz=szs=z=c==m=cs=c=cs==co=oss=3sstc==

June 30, 2019
Towne Park Community Development District Blii Number 108311
¢/o PFM Group Consuiting LLC Billed through 05/31/2019
12051 Corporate Boulevard
Orlando, FL 32817

General Counsel/Monthly Meeting
YPKCDD 00001 RVW

FOR PR €
05/08/19  AH} Prepare agenda Items and updates to district file regarding same. 0.S0 hrs
05/01/19  MKR Review executed termination of notice of commencement; review proposed 1.80 hrs

agenda item regarding conveyance to district; research development versus
financing phasing.

05/01/19  AHJ Prepare and confer with Gaarlandt regarding agenda items. 0.80 hrs
05/03/19 MKR Prepare district engineering agreement. 0.70 hrs
05/06/19 RVW Confer with staff regarding land transfer documents. 0.30 hrs
05/06/18  MKR Review final agenda; prepare agenda items; confer with Patil regarding same. 0.60 hrs
05/06/19  AH] Confer with Patil and Wertz regarding agenda items. 1,20 hrs
05/07/19  MKR Research outstanding district business from board meeting follow-up; confer 1.30 hrs

with Patil regarding sanve; research status of district-financed Improvements;
prepare budget approval resolution; review final agenda; prepare agenda
items; confer with Wertz regarding engineer's reporsts; review draft third
supplemental engineer's report,

05/08/19 RVW Confer with chairman regarding signature blocks. 0.30 hrs
05/08/13 MKR Confer with Gaarlandt regarding board meeting; follow-up; review third 2.30 hrs

supplemental engineer's report; prepare phasing chart; confer with Wertz
regarding same; review updated agenda.

05/09/19 RVW Prepare for and attend board meeting by phone. 1.10 hrs
05/09/19  MKR Attend board meeting by phone; follow-up. 0.80 hrs
05/09/19  AH1 Prepare updates to development status chart; attend development status 0.20 hrs

conference call.

05/10/19  JLK Research with district management team, insurance providers and ADA 0,10 hrs
consultants regarding policies, accessibllity and requisite standards.



General Counsel/Monthly Maetin Eill No. 10831}

05/15/19  AHJ Confer with Patil regarding executed agenda items; prepare updates to district
file regarding same.

05/16/19 ARJ Prepare updates to development status chart.
05/23/19 AH] Confer with Algard and Gaarlandt regarding agenda items; prepare updates to

district file regarding same; prepare updates to development status chart;
attend development status conference call,

05/30/19 MKR fFinalize construction funding agreement regarding Riverstone phase 2; transmit

Same.

Total fees for this matter

DISPURSEMENTS

Document Reproduction

Total disbursements for this matter

MATTER SUMMARY
Jaskoiski, Amy H. - Paralegal 3.90 hrs 145 /ht
Killnski, Jennifer L. 0.10 hrs 275 /hr
Rigoni, Michelle K. 8.00 hrs 265 /hr
Van Wyk, Roy 1.70 hrs 310 /hr

TOTAL FEES
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER

ILLING SUMMARY

Jaskolski, Amy H. - Paralegal 3.90 hrs 14S /hr
Kifinski, Jennifer L, 0.10 thrs 275 /hr
Rigoni, Michelle K, 8.00 hrs 265 /hr
Van Wyk, Roy 1.70 hrs 310 /hr
TOTAL FEES
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL

Please include the bill number on vour check.

0.10 hrs

0.80 hrs

0.50 hrs
$3,240.00

16.00

$16.00

$565.50
$27.50
$2,120,00
$527.00

$3,240.00
$16.00

$3,256.00

$565.50
$27.50
$2,120.00
$527.00

$3,240.00
$16.00

$3,256.00



The Lake Doctors, Inc.
Aquatic Management Services *

<5 PRI ol

3543 State Road 419, Wiatet Springs, 'L 32708
PI{: 808.666-5253

Bill To

TOWNE PARK CDD

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT
12051 CORPORATF BLYD

ORL.ANDO. FLLORIDA 32817

P.O. No Terms
NCT 10 DAYS

tem | Descriplion

‘ Monthly Wuer Mavagement Service
1

|
|
i

INVOICE

Invoice # 444530
Account# 725596
Invoice Date 77172019
Due Date 2112019
‘ Rep KPL

Invoice Questions:
Lakes@lakedoctors.com
Payment Questions:
Payments@lakedoctors.com

Invoice Date Reflects Month of
Service Provided

Amount

685.00

Customer Total Balance $2.085.00 |

Total Invoice

|
$685.00 |

To help ensure prompt and accurate eredit te your nccount, please laclude your account sumber and lavoice number on your check and alwsys

include your remittance stub with your payment.

Please visit www.Jakedoctors.com for your local office contact informatien,

PLEASE DETACH & RETURN THIS FORTION WITIHI PAYNENT

BiliTe

IOWNE PARK CDD

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT
12051 CORPORATE 131.VD

ORLANDQ, IFLORIDA 32817

For address and contact updates, please email us at
Frontdesk@lakedoctors.com.

The Lake Doctors, Inc.
3543 State Road 419
Winter Springs, FL 32708

f o)V

Amount Enclesed Invoice # 444530
Accounl# 725596
Date 7/1/2019

Go Green! Contact us at Payments@lakedectors.com to

have your invoices emaited,

I PAYING BY CREDIT CARD, FlLL QUT BELOW
_ Mastereaed  _ Visa  ____ American Express
Card ¥

Card Verification #

Exp Datch

Print Name | S R i
Hilling Address:  Check box if same as above

Signature






Towne Park
Community Development District

Monthly Financials

(provided under separate cover)



